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NOTICE is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of the members of Super Tannery Limited will be 

held on Monday the 30th September 2024 at 9:00 a.m. at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010, the registered 
office of the Company to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Toreceive, consider and adapt the Audited Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 315t March 2024 the Balance 
Sheet as on that date and the reports of Directors' and Auditors' thereon, 

2, Todeclare Dividend, 

3 Toappoint a director in place of Mr. Imran Siddiqui who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re- 
appointment. 

4. To appoint M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants as Auditor of the Company and fix their 
remuneration. 

SPECIALBUSINESS: 

5. Appointment of Dr. Mohammad Izhar, as an Independent Director 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

*RESOLVED THAT Dr. Mohammad lzhar (DIN 02281224) who was appointed as an Additional Director{Non- 

Executive, Independent) of the Company effective August 13,2024 by the Board of Directors ("the Board”) of the 
Company, in terms section 161 of the Companies Act,2013("Act) read with related Rules(including any 
modification, amendment or re-enactment thereof),SEBI (listing Obligations' and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company ,and wha is eligible for appointment and who 
has consented to act as a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a Member under section 160(1)of the Act proposing his candidature for the Office of a Director, be 
andis hereby appointed as a Director of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149,150 and 152 of the Act, read with Schedule 
IV and other applicable provisions of the Act{including any statutory modification ,amendment or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force).the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)Rules, 2014 as 
amended and Regulation 17 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing Regulations") as amended 
and the Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment of Dr. Mohammad lzhar, who meets the criteria 
for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 
16(1)(b} of the SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect and whao is eligible for 
appointment, be and is hereby appointed, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive Years commencing from 30th September 2024 to 28th 

September 2029(both days inclusive). 

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution” 

6. Appointment of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar, as an Independent Director 

To considerand, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

‘“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar (DIN 10722986) she was appointed as an Additional Director{Non- 
Executive, Independent) of the Company effective August 13,2024 by the Board of Directors ("the Board”) of the 
Company, in terms section 161 of the Companies Act,2013("Act) read with related Rules(including any 

modification, amendment or re-enactment thereof),SEBI (listing Obligations’ and Disclosure Requirements) 
Requlations, 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company, and who is eligible for appointment and who 
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has consented to act as a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a Member under section 160{1)of the Act proposing her candidature for the Cffice of a Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149,150 and 152 of the Act, read with Schedule 
IV and other applicable pravisions of the Act{including any statutory modification ,amendment or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force),the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as 
amended and Regulation 17 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™) as amended 
and the Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar she meeats the criteria for 
independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16{1)(b) 
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submifted a declaration to that effect and who is eligible for 

appointment, be and is hereby appointed, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive Years commencing from 30th September 2024 to 29th 
September 2029(both days inclusive) 

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution” 

7. Re-Appointment of Mr. Aftab Ahmad as an Independent Director 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with orwithout modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

*RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("Act) The Companies{Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)Rules 2014 read with Schedule IV 
to the act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of India(Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing Regulations”)as amended from time 
to time, Mr. Aftab Ahmad age 80years (holding DIN 08415223), Director of the Company, who was appointed as 
an Independent Director at the board meeting and later on appointed as Independent Director at AGM on 
30.09.2018 for a period of 5 years and who meets the criteria for Independence as provided in section 149(6)of 
the Act along with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who has 
submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member under Section 160(1) of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby re- 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retirement by rotation and to hold office for a 
further period of 5 years with effect from September 30,2024 up to September 30,2029 from the conclusion of 
this meeting." 

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 
to take all such steps as may be necessary, properor expedient to give effect to this resolution” 

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution; 

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to donate to charitable and other funds not directly related to 
the business of the Company or the welfare of its employees up tothe extent of Rs. 30.00 lacs (Rupees thirty lacs 
only)} during the financial year ending 31st March, 2025." 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

for Super Tannery Limited 

Flace : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi 

Date : 13th Aug. 2024 Company Secretary 



AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND YOTE AT THE MEETING |S ENTITLED TO APPOINT APROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

- Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are requested to 
send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf atthe meeting. 

- The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in raspect of Special 

Businesses is annexed hereto. 

- The Reqgister of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 16th 
September to 30th September 2024 (both days inclusive) for dividend. 

- Members holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the 

Company, enclosing the Shares Certificate for consolidation of their holding into one folio. 

- Members holding Shares in physical form are requested to notify the followings to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent to facilitate better services. 

1. Anychange in their address under their signature clearly quoting, their folio numbers, old address along 
with the changed address with Pin code. 

2. Share cerlificate(s) held in multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of the 
names for consolidation of such shareholding into one account. 

3. Members holding shares in electronic form may inform any change in address to their Depository 
Participant. 

- Members holding Shares in electronic form are requested to provide their Client-1D and DP-ID numbers at the 
meeting for easy identification. 

- Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification concerning the Accounts and Operation of the 
Company are requested to address their queries in writing to the Company Secretary at least seven days 
before the annual General Meeting, so that the desired information may be made available at the Annual 
general Meeting, if the Chairman permits to do so. 

- The Shares of the Company are compulsorily tradable in demat form. with effect from April 1, 2019 except in 
case of request received for transmission or transposition of Securities. In view of this and fo eliminate all 
risks associated with physical Shares and to ease of portfolic Management members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form. The equity Shares of 

the Company have been assigned ISIN INE460D01038. Members are requested to get their Shares 
dematerialized at the earliest to make them tradable. 

Members are requested to note that, dividend if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date 
of transfer to unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and protection Fund ("|EPF" The shares in respect of such un claimed dividends are also liable to be 
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this Members/claimants are requested to 
claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline, The Members whose unclaimed 
dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an application to the IEPF 
Authority, in Form No. |IEPF 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.The Members/claimants can file only one 
consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per IEPF Rules, 

As you may be aware Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on May 30, 2024, have 
declared a Dividend of Rs. 0.05/- per equity share (having a nominal value of Re. 01/- each) for the 
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Financial Year 2023-24. 

As you may be aware, in terms of the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ('the Act'), as amended by 
the Finance Act, 2020, dividend declared, paid and distributed by a Company on or after 1st April, 2020 
shall be taxable in the hands of the shareholders. The Company will, therefore, be required to deduct tax 
at source at the time of payment of the dividend at the applicable rates as per the provisions of the said 
act. 

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 shareholders are entitied to make nomination in respect 
of share held by them in physical form. Shareholders desirous of making nomination are requested to send 
their request in the prescribed Form to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. KFin Technologies Limited, 
Hyderabad. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to consult/contact with their 
respective Depository Participant (DF) for availing nomination facility. 

Members are requested to notify immediately change in their address, PIN code, if any to the company at its 
registered office by quoting their folio number. 

Members’ proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly completed for attending the meeting. 

Brief Resume of Directors those propose proposed to be appointed, nature of their expertise in specific 
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships / Chalrmanships 
and Relationships between Directors inter—se as stipulated under Regulation27 of the listing agreement with 
the Stock Exchanges in India, are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual 
Report. 

Woting through electronic means: 

Theinstructions for e-voting are as under: 

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 

Wi, 

In mmpi_ha_nce with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
n t and Administration les, 2014 amended from tim ime, Regulation 44 Bl 

Llsfln-:l Raflulatmns and In terms of SEEI vu:le cm:ular no. EEBI:’HDJ’GFDICMDJ GJREF'JE{]EDFNE datad 

WEBSHBS of DBDOSI*.DHES fDPs il"l urdar tD II'HBFGESB the affim&ncv Df the voling process. 

Indlwdual damat account holders wnuld be able to castthalr uute wfll'nnut hawnu tn r‘emster agam uwth tha 

"fl'ua w:mng nghts ufMembars shall be m Drun-crrtmn to their shares in.the pai d ug agumg share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date 23.09.2024, 
Any: QEI‘SJDI‘I hnlding shares in nh'n.rsma[ fun'n and non- mdmdual sharahnldars whfl EG‘EILIII‘ES shares flffl‘ifl 

Cc-panv and becnmes a Mamber of the Gnmp_a 1' after sendinu nf the Nntme and hr::-ir:!mu shares as r::-f 
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the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below under "Login method for remote e-Voting and or 
attending physical meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical mode.” 

wiii. The details of the process and manner for remote e-\Voting and -AGM are explained herein below: 

Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 

demat mode. 
Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in_physical and non- 

individual shareholders in demat mode. 

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 
Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

Type of 
shareholders Lagin Methad 

Individual 1. Useralready registered for IDeAS facility: 
Shareholders holding I, Visit URL: https:/leservices.nsdl.com 

securities in demat 
mode with NSDL . 

V. 

Ua&r not registered for IDeAS e-Services 

JI 

M. 
IV, 

Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL 

V. 

V. 

Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under "Login" under '1DeAS’ section. 
On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication, 
click on "Access to e-Voting" 
Click on company name cor e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting the vote during the remote e- 

Voting period. 

Toregister click on link ; https:/feservices.nsdl.com 

Select "Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp 
Proceed with completing the required fields. 
Follow steps given in points 1 

Open URL: hitps:/feservices.nsdl.com/ 
Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Post successful authentication, you will requested to select the name of the 
company and the e-Voting Service Provider name, I.e KFintech, 
On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-\Voting page for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi/Easiest 

User not registered for Easi/Easiest 

. 

Altnrnativaly. by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL 

V. 

Visit URL: hitps:/fweb. cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
URL: www.cdslindia.com 
Click on New System Myeasi 
Login with your registered userid and password. 
The user will see the e-\Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e. 
KFintech e-Voting portal. 
Click on e-Voting service provider name tocast your vote. 

Option to register is available at 
https:/iweh.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 
Proceed with completing the required fields. 

Follow the steps given in point 1 

Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 

Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No. 
System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESF, i.e KFintech where the e- Voting is in progress. 

Individual 

Shareholder login 
through their demat 
accounts / Website of 
Depository 
Participant 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your DP registered with NSDL /CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-\Voting option.Once you click on e- 
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL [ CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-\oting feature. 
Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service provider— 

Kfintaech and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period without any further authentication. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot user 1D and 

Forgot Password option available at respective websites. 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login Type Helpdesk Details 

Securities held with 
NSDL 

Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 2244 30 

Securities held with 
CDSL 

Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.comor 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below: 

) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual's shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

(A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s). will receive an email 
from KFintech which will include details of E-Vioting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and password. They will have to 
follow the following process: 



vil. 

wiil. 

Xil. 

Launch interet browser by typing the URL: https:/fevoting.kfintech.com 
Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User 1D will be EVEN (E- 
Voting Event Number) oo, followed by folio number.-In case of Demat account, User ID will be your DP 1D 
and Client ID. However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use your existing 
User |D and password for casting the vote. 

After entering these details appropriately, click on "LOGIN". 
You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your 
password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), 
one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@ .#,3. etc..). The system will prompt 
you to change your password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID ete. on first login. 
You may alsc enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you 
forgetit. Itis strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential, 
You need tologin again with the new credentials. 
On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the "EVEN"i.e., '40th AGM" and click on “Submit” 
On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut-off 

Date under "FOR/AGAINST" or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in "FOR" and partially 
"AGAINST" but the total number in "FOR/AGAINST" taken together shall not exceed your total 
shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the Member does 
not indicate either "FOR" or "AGAINST" it will be treated as "ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be 

counted under either head. 
Members holding multiple folios/demnat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for each folio/ 

demat accounts. 
Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire o cast your vote on 
any specific item, it will be treated as abstained. 
You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on "Submit”. 
A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK” to confirm else "CANCEL" to modify. Once you have voted 
on the resolution (s}, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can 
login any number oftimes till they have voted on the Resolution(s). 
Corporatefinstitutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required fo send 
scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM. Together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised 

representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at email id knshridhar@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@kfintech.com. The scanned image of the above-mentioned documents should be in the naming 
format "Corporate Name_ Super Tannery Limited 40" AGM Even No.” 

i. The Members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote 
through voting system available during the AGM. 

ii. AMember can opt for only single mode of voting i.e., through Remote e-voting or voting at the AGM. If 
a Member casts votes by both modes, then voting done through Remote e-voting shall prevail and 

I. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, Members may refer 
to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voling user manual available at the 
download section of hitps://evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact at evoting@ kfintech 
.com or call KFintech's toll free No. 1-800-308-4001 for any further clarifications. 
Il The Members, whose names appear in the Reqgister of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on 
23.09.2024, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A 
person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes 
anly. Once the vote on a resclution(s)is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. 

I, In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on or 
before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner as 
mentioned below: 

i. If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./ OP 1D Client ID, the member may 

send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DP ID Client 1D to 9212993339 

1. Example forNSDL: 

2. MYEPWD <SPACE=IN12345612345678 
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3, Example for CDSL: 

4. MYEPWD <SPACE=>1402345612345678 

5. Example for Physical: 

6. MYEPWD <SPACE>XXXX1234567820 

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID 

Client ID, then on the home page of AMevoti ntech.com, the member may click 

“Forgot Password” and enter Folio Mo. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a password. 

ii. Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the AGM 

are requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or write to them at 

aevoting@kfintech.com. 
VY.  Theresults of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchanges after the AGM. 

The results along with the Scrutinizer's Report, shall also be placed on the website of the 
Company. vote at the AGM shall be treated as invalid. 

Procedure for Registration of email and Mobile: securities in physical mode 

Physical shareholders are hereby notified that based ion SEBI Circular number: 

SEBWHO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37, dated March 16th, 2023, All holders of physical 

securities in listed companies shall register the postal address with PIN for their corresponding folio 

numbers. It shall be mandatory for the security holders to provide mobile number. Moreover, to avail 

online sarvices, the security holders can register e-mail ID. Holder can register/update the contact 

details through submitting the requisite ISR 1 form along with the supporting documents, 

ISR 1 Form can be obtained by following the link: https://ris kfintech.com/ clientservices fisc / default 

A35pX 

ISR Form(s) and the supporting documents can be provided by any one of the following modes. 

a) Through 'In Person Verification' (IPV); the authorized person of the RTA shall verify the original 

documents furnished by the investor and retain copy{ies) with IPV stamping with date and initials; or 

b) Through hard copies which are self-attested, which can be shared on the address below; or 

Name: KFIN Technologies Limited 

Address Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddy, Telangana India - 500 032. 

¢) Through electronic mode with e-sign by following the link: 

https:/fris. kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/default. aspx# 

Detailed FAQ can be found on the link: htips:/fris kfintech.com/fag.htm| 

For more information on updating the email and Mobile details for securities held in electronic mode, 

please reach out to the respective DP(s), where the DEMAT alc is being held. 

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) UseriD Password 

By Crder of the Board of Directors 

for Super Tannery Limited 

Flace ;: Kanpur R.K. Awasthi 

Date : 13th Aug. 2024 Company Secretary 



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
{Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

ITEMNo.5: 

Appointment of Dr. Mohd. Izhar (DIN :02281224) as an Independent Director 

The Members may note that pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act,2013 read with articles of Association of the 
Company and pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 
company had on 13th August, 2024appointed Dr. Mohd .1zhar, (DIN 02281224) as additional Director in the capacity of 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years with effect from 30th 
September, 2024 to 28th September 2029 subjectto the approval of share holders of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) of the Act Dr. Mohd. I1zhar, shall hold office up to the dale of this Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible to be appointed as Director, the Company has, in terms of section160{1) of the Act received in 
writing a Notice from a Member along with deposit of Rs 1.00Lacs proposing the candidature of Dr. Mohd. Izhar, to be 
appointed as an Independent Mon-Executive Director at the ensuing AGM not liable to retire by rotation, and he has 
consented to the proposed appointment and declared qualified Dr. Mohd. Izhar, possesses the necessary qualifications, 
expertise knowledge experience skill for the position of Independent Director as per required criteria under the Act, rules 
regulation made thereunder. A brief profile of Dr. Mohd. |zhar, is given below: 

Brief Profile of Dr. Mohd. Izhar: 

Dr. Mohd. Izhar {67) is a Dr. (B.M.5) he was first time introduced in the board of Directors of the Company on June 
30,2005 as a non-executive Independent Director and he served the Company up to 30-09-2014. In view of his past 
experience in the field of administration, marketing and corporate governance the board of directors has decided 
to take the services of Dr .Mohd. Izhar. 

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as an 
Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms and conditions of his appointment 
shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the Company during the normal business hours on 
any working day({except Saturday) and will also be kept open atthe venue of the AGM ill the conclusion of the AGM, 

Except Dr. Mohd. |Izhar, none of the Directors Key Managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are in anyway, 
concerned orinterested, financially or otherwise in the resolution setoutin ltemno 5. 

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Special resolution setout in Item no 5 of the Notice in relation to 
appointment of Dr. Mohd. Izhar as an Independent Director of the Company. 

ITEMNO 6: 
Appointment of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar(DIN 10722986} as an Independent Director 

The Members may note that pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with articles of Association of the 
Company and pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 
company had on 13th August, 2024 appointed Ms, Kabita Rani Dhar, }DIN 10722986 ) as additional Director in the capacity 
of Mon-Executive Independent Director of the Company ,for a term of 5 consecutive years with effect from 30th September, 
2024 to 29th September, 2029 subject to the approval of Share holders of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) of the Act Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar shall hold office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible o be appointed as Director, the Company has, in terms of section160(1) of the Act 
recefved in writing a Notice from a Member along with deposit of Rs 1.00 Lacs proposing the candidature of her, to be 
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director at the ensuing AGM not liable to retire by rotation, and she has 
consented to the proposed appointment and declared gualified She, possesses the necessary qualifications, expertise 
knowledge, experience skill for the posifion of Independent Director as per required criteria under the Act, rules regulation 
made thereunder. A brief profile of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar is given below: 

Brief Profile of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar: 

Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar (69) is a MA English BED Retired employee Kendriya Vidyalaya Sangathan She has 
experience in the field of administration, and corporate governance the board of directors has decided to take the 
services of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar. 

In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as 
an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms and conditions of her 
appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the Company during the normal 
business hours on any working day(except Saturday) and will also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion 
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Except Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar, none of the Directors Key Managerial parsonnel of the Company or their relatives are in any 
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set outin ltemno 6 

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Special resolution set out in ltem no & of the Notice in relation to 
appointment of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar as an Independent Director of the Company , 

ITEMNO :07 

Based on recommendation of Momination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors proposes to avail the 
continues services of Mr, Aftab Ahmad,(DIMN 08415223 who was appointed as Independent Director not liable to retire by 
rotation, for a term of 5 years at AGM held on 30-09-2019. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13.08.2024 has 
proposed to re-appoint Mr, Aftab Ahmad for a further period of 5 years from September 30, 2024 to September 30,2029, 
subject to aggrmrai of the Members. The Company has in terms of section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a Notice 
from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director. 

The Board based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
considers that given his background, experience and contribution, the continued association of Mr. Aftab Ahmad, would be 
beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as Independent Director. 

The Cumpangr has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided in 
section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16{1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements )Regulations 2015 (SEBI Listing Obligations).In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, he has confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstances or situation which exists or may be reasonably 
anticipated that could impair orimpact his ability to discharge his duty. 

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as an 
Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms and conditions of his appointment 
shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the Company durning the normal business hours on 
any working day(except Saturday)and will also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM. 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Aftab Ahmad, as an 
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

Except Mr. Aftab Ahmad, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No.7, This Explanatory 
Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Regulation 17 of the Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange. 

Mr. Aftab Ahmad,(80 Years) was introduced in the Board of Directors in April 1,2018 as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director. Mr. Aftab Ahmad has vast experience of 48 years in the field of Marketing and accounts. 

The Board considers that his continues association would be of immense benefit fo the Company and it is desirable to avail 
continues services of Mr. Aftab Ahmad, as an Independent Director. 

ITEMNOS8 

It has been the policy of the company to contribute in those charitable funds, which serve the society at large or for the 
welfare of its employees, whether such charitable institution are directly related or not with the business of the Company. 
The action of the Board is taken keeping in mind the responsibility that the Company owes to society as well as to full fill the 
requirement of CSR by way of promoting preventive health care, promoting education, including special education etc. 
Sometimes contribution so made exceed the limit prescribed by the section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board 
can not do such welfare work, beyond prescribed limit, without the approval of the members. The aggregate of such 
contribution during the year ending 31.03.2025 is likely to exceed the limit as prescribed by the Act. Therefore, your 
permission is requested, 

The Directors recommend the resolution set out in item no 8 of the Notice for approval of members. 
None of the Director of the Company in any way whether, directly or indirectly, except as trustee of trust which receive the 
fund, is interested or concerned in this resolution. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

far Super Tannery Limited 

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi 

Date : 13th Aug. 2024 Company Secretary 
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Dear Shareholder, 

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 40th Annual Report on the business and operations 
ofthe Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2024: 

FINANCIAL RESULTS Year Ended Year Ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) 

PROFITS: 

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & 2018.54 1888.12 

extra-ordinary items 

Less: Interest 461.89 445.63 

Depreciation 670.74 655.65 

Exchange Fluctuation Loss/{gains) 00.00 00.00 

Bad Debts written off 28.80 1161.43 27.93 1129.21 

Profit before tax 857.11 758.91 

Less: Provision for current tax 190.00 180.00 

Provision for deferred tax 55.36 34.40 

Income Tax relating to earlier Years 21.02 266.38 (61.37) 153.03 
Profit after tax 500.73 605.88 

Add: Profit brought forward from previous 3756.94 3139.57 

year 

Other Comprehensive Income 11.92 10.49 

3767.86 3150.06 

Profit available for appropriation 4358.59 3755.94 

NOTE : Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped/re-arranged in order fo make them comparabile. 

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES: 
The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure to recommend a dividend of Rs. 0.05 {(5%) per equity share of 
Re.1/ each for the year ended 31st March, 2024 subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual general 
Meeting and shall be subjected to deduction of Income Tax at Source. The dividend if approved, shall result in a 
payout of 8.14% current year profit available for appropriation. This makes the Management Investor friendly and 
creates more confidence to keep the Investors interestat heart. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act') in 
prescribed form MGT-8is uploaded on www.supertannery.com. 

OPERATIONAL REVIEW: 
During the year under review, the income from operation of the company was Rs 22,902.91 lacs as against Rs 
22,665.35 lacs during the last financial year, showing improvement in the operational income by Rs. 237.56 lacs. The 
Company overall growth is satisfactory despite recession in the market. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 

The Company has Seven subsidiaries namely: Super Corporation Limited, , Aarifi Tanners Limited, Secure Safety 
Limited, HX London Fashions Pvt Ltd, Super Tannery (UK) Limited, Pioneer Investment FZCO and Super ltalia 
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S.R.L. The Financial statement including Consolidated Financial statement and separate statement in respect of 
each of its subsidiaries have also been placed on the website of the Company. A statement containing salient feature 
of the Financial Statement of subsidiaries! associates companies is forming part of Annual Financial statement. The 
Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies will be kept open for inspection by any investor at the head office of the 
Company and the subsidiary concerned. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 
During the period industrial relations have been extremely cordial. Employees' cooperation and co-ordination had 
been an important factor in the growth of the organization. 

EXPORT AWARD: 
The Company received the State Export Award - Uttar Pradesh for the overall export performance during the year 
2021-22 from the Hon'ble Chief Minister Mr. Yogi Adityanath. 

FIXED DEPOSITS: 
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposit during the year under review, under the provisions of the 
Companies Act2013 and the rules framed thereunder. 

CREDIT RATING: 
During the year under review Care Rating Limited reaffirmed the long-term rating of BEB on the bank borrowings of 
the Company. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY: 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the 
end offinancial year and date of Reports. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
The Directors state that the Secretarial standards i.e., $3-1, 55-2, 55-3 and 55-4 relating to Meetings of the Board of 

Directors, General Meeting, Dividend and Report of Board of Directors respectively. Have been duly followed by the 
Company. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial Controls with reference to financial statements, During the 
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed, 

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT: 
Employees are vital to the Company. We have created a favorable work environment that encourages humble 

relationship. We have also set up a scalable recruitment and human resources management process, which enables 
us to attract and retain high caliber employees. The Company in collaboration with UP Leather Industries Association 

is running a training center for recruiting trained labors. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL ACT, 2013: 

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual 
working for the Company through various intervention and practices. It is the continuous endeavor of the 
Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including Sexual harassment. During the year ended 31 March 2024,no complaint 
pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 
There were 550 permanent employees with the Company as on 31st March, 2024, The percentage increase in 
remuneration, ratio of remuneration of each director and Key managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median of 
employee's remuneration, and the list of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn, as required under section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 form part of Annexure |1 to this Board Report. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & 
OuUTGO: 

The particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption etc. pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the 
Companies Act,2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out in the Annexure Ist 

forming part of this Report. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 
No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the previous year which 
may impact the going concern status of the Company's Operation in the future. 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM: 
To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, and ethical behavior in all its 

operations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism named as SUPER Whistle Blower Policy' in addition to 
the existing code of conduct that governs the action of its employees. This Whistle blower policy aspires to 

encourage all employees to report suspected or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, Unethical or inappropriate events 
{behaviors or practices) that effect Company's interest/ image. A copy of the Policy is available on the website of the 

Company and may be accessed through the web link www: hitp;//supertannery.com. 

DIRECTORS & KMP: 
In terms of Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Imran Siddigui, Director of the Company 
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Brief 
resume of all the Directors, their expertise in specific functional areas and names of other companies in which 
Directorship held and the membership of committee of the Board as stipulated under the listing Agreement are given 
in corporate governance annexure lind, attached to this report. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet 
with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act,2013. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS'APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 
Far the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination &Remuneration Committee identifies persons of 
integrity who posses’ relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and also takes 
into consideration recommendation, if any received from any member of the Board. The Committee also ensures that 
the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies 
Act,2013 or other applicable laws. The Board has, on the recommendation of the Momination &Remuneration 
Committee framed a policy for selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors &senior Management. The 
Remuneration policy of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate Govemance Report, which forms a part of the 
report. 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation27 of the listing Agreement, the Company has put in place a 
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles rights 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Company in which Company operates, business model etc. 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Agreement, a report on Corporate Governance is given in Annexure lind to 
this report. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5)read with section 134{3){ ¢ ) of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement, itis hereby confirmed: 

{i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii)That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fairview of the state of 
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period; 
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(iii)That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv)That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch 2024 on a going 
concem basis. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consoclidated Financial Statements, your directors have 
pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of Annual Reports and 
Accounts. These consolidated financial statements include accounts of Super Tannery (U.K.) Limited, Aarifi 
Tanners Limited, Super Corporation Limited, Secure Safety Limited, HX London Fashions Private Limited, 

Pioneernvestment FZCO and Super talia s.r.L. 

AUDITORS: 
M/s. Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants, Kanpur {Registration No.000952C) the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, we recommend their re- 
appointment. They have furnished a Certificate to the effect that their re- appointment if made, will be in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act.2013 ' 

COSTAUDITOR: 
As required under the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011, the requirement of Cost Audit report is not 
applicable to the Company as per MCA circular. Hence no report was filed. 

SECRETARIALAUDITORS: 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M!S K.N. Shridhar.& Associates, 
Company secretary Kanpur to undertake the secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is 

annexed herewith as “annexure B"The Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24 
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark by the Auditors. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS: 

The particulars of Loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company 
www.supertannery.com. All contracts/arrangements entered by the Company during the previous financial year with 
the related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The Audit Committee and the 
Board of Directors reviewed the transactions (which are repetitive in naturejand the Audit Committee granted 
approval for such transactions. The disclosures as required under AS-18have been made in notes forming part of the 
standalone financial statement. The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered in to by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in Form No. 
AOC-2 which is annexed herato, 

AUDITORS' REPORT: 

The comments of the Auditors in their Audit Report and reference to "Motes on Accounts” forming part of the Financial 
Results are self-explanatory and need no further comments. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

Your directors would like to express their gratitude and appreciation for the continued support and co-operation 
raceived from State Bank of India, Central & State Government Authorities, Regulatory Bodies, Stock Exchanges and 
Shareholders. Your directors wish to place their deep sense of appreciation on record for the devoted services of the 
officers, staff and workers of the Company. O Betialfgriie Board ofDivestors 

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN 
Date: 13.08.2024 Managing Director Whole Time Director 
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(a) 

(b) 

(€) 

ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS® REPORT 

Statement as required under Section 134(3)}(m} of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies{Accounts) Rules,2014. 

Conservation of Energy: 
{1} Energy conservation measures taken: Upgradation of power generation and distribution systems for long 

term energy savings. Special emphasis has been laid on boiler and steam generation. 
(2) Additional investments and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy: 

Introduction of energy saving devices and systems in process machines. 
{3} Impactofthe measures at (1) & (2) above for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact 

on the cost of production of goods: Energy conservation measures have helped in generation of required 
guantity of steam at a minimum cost which resulted in improving efficiencies and reduction in costs. 

{4} Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form A of the Annexure 

in respect of industries specified in the Schedule thereto: Not Applicable 
{5) We have installed 250 KWp Roof Top Solar Power Plant for reducing the expenditure on energy purchase 

with the intention to join the National Action Plan on climatic change by harmessing non-polluting renewal 
energy source which is ultimately easying the burden of Green House Gas Emission. 
We have further called for vendor to install 450 KWp Roof Top Solar Power Plant to further reduce the 
expenditure on energy purchase: 
We are reducing the consumption of Coal as a Boiler fuel & in place using Biomass Briquettes as a Boller 
Fuel for easying the burden of Green House Gas Emission. 

Technology Absorption: Research and Development (R & D): 
(1) Specific area in which R & D carried out by the Company: 

{a) New product development based on different raw hides/skins. 

(b) Apart from production of safety footwear establishing standard products for fashion shoes/sandals. 
(2 Benefits derived asaresultofthe above R&D:; 

{a) Cost reduction and better unit realization. 
{b) Better product acceptance. 

{3} Future plan of action: To continue to investin R & D for faster introduction of new products. 
(4) ExpenditureonR&D: 

2023-24 2022-23 
(Rs.inlacs) (Rs.inlacs) 

(a) Capital 0000 0000 
{b) Recurring 2.72 540 
(c) Total 2.72 5.40 
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as % of turnover 0.01% 0.02% 

Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation: 

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation: The Company is using 
indigenous technology and is developing in house technology and is not dependent on any outside 
technology / source. 

(2) Benefits derived as aresult ofthe above efforts:  NotApplicable 
(3) Incase of imported technology (Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year): 

{a) Technologyimported}}}}} MNotApplicable 
{b) Yearof import 

{c) Hastechnology been fully absorbed? 
{d) If not fully absorbed, areas where not taken place, 

reasons therefore and future plan of action 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO: 
{1) Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets or 

products and export plans: 
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On Export front, Company’s performance is quite satisfactory and it is expected to be strong in the time to 

come. 

(2) Totalforeign exchange earmed & used: 
2023-24 2022-23 
{Rsinlacs) {Rsinlacs) 

(a) Foreign exchange earned 16,838.09 17,072.90 
(FOB value of exports) used 

{b) Foreign exchange used 2,970.04 2,693.28 

(d) STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF MANAGING AND JOINT MANAGING DIRECTORS FORMING 
PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT: 

MName Designation | Gross Qualification |Experience | Date of Age Particulars 
Remuneration (Years) Commencement | (Years) |of previous 

of employment employmen| 

Mr. Managing Rs. 24,00,000.00 | Post 38 06.02.1984 65 Promoter 
Ifikharul | Director Graduate 
Amin 
Mr. Jt.Managing | Rs, 24,00,000.00 | Graduate 34 21.12.1988 g2 Promoter 
lgbal Director 
Ahsan 

Notes : 

1. Mr. Iftikharul Amin and Mr. Igbal Ahsan being brothers are related to each other within the meaning of 
schedule |A of Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Remuneration includes salary and perquisites as per rules of the company and recorded under the Income 
TaxAct, 1961. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN 

Date: 13.08.2024 Managing Director Whole Time Director 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

ANNEXURE-II 
TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

In accordance with the Regulation17-to 270f ( LODR) Regulation 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges in India (Regulation27) and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, 
the report containing the details of governance system and processes at Super Tannery Limited is as under: 
Corporate Governance Philosophy 
At Super Tannery Limited it is our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of becoming a global 
corporation our corporate governance standard must be globally benchmarked. That gives us confidence of having 
put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring that we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and 
sustainable manner. 

Shareholders Communications 
The Board recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders for giving a balanced report of 
results & progress and responds to the questions and issues raised in a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders 
seeking information may contact the Company directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask 
guestions in person at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can contact the company via dedicated 
shareholder contact points as provided with this report or through any of Investor Service Centre of the Company's 
Registrars and Transfer Agents. The company ensures that queries, complaints and suggestions are responded ina 
timely and consistent manner. 

Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process 
The Company Secretary holds a keyrole in ensuring that the Board Procedures are followed and regularly reviewed. 

The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, detalls and documents are made available to the 
directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meeting. The Company Secretary is primarily 

responsible to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the 
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the company have access to the 

advice and services of the Company Secretary. 

Observance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India 
The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSl), one of the premier professional bodies in India, has issued 
Secretarial Standards on important aspects like Board Meetings, General Meeting, Payment of Dividend, 
Maintenance of Registers and records, Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and Debentures, Passing of 

Resolution By Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal, Board's Report although these standards are recommendatory 
in nature, the Company substantially adheres to the standards voluntarily. 

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
{Iy The Board of Directors comprises a Managing Director, and Joint Managing Director five Executive and 

Six Non-Executive Directors. Out of 11Directors Four directors are Independent and Non-executive 
Directors, Women director is Independent hon-executive Chairperson and two are non-Independentand 
non-Executive directors. 

(i) Mone of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10Committees or Chairman of more than 5 
committees as specified in the regulation across all the Companies in which hefshe is a director. 
Necessary disclosure about position in other public companies as on 31st March 2024 has been made by 
the Director. 

{ili} The names and catagories of the Directors on the Board, thair attendance at Board meeatings held during 
the year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship/Membership held by them in 
other companies is given below, Other directorships do not include alternate directorship and directorship 
of private limited companies, Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees included on Audit, 
Remuneration and Shareholder/Investors Grievances committees. 

{iv) The present strength of the Board is 11 comprises Five executive and Six non-executive directors. During 
the year 2023-24, the Board met 4 times on the following dates:30th May 2023, 12th Aug. 2023, 8th 

November, 2023 and 10th Feb. 2024, the maximum time gap between any two board meetings was not 
more than one hundred and twenty days. The following table gives details of directors’ attendance at the 
Board meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting, number of memberships held by director in the 
Board/Committees of various companies: 

18



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

Mame Category | Attendance Particulars | NMumber of other Directorships 
Committee Member/Chairman 

Board Last AGM Director- Other Committes 

Meetings ships Committee  [Chaimman 
Membership 

Titikharal Amin MD 3 Yes 4 1 
Iqbal Ahsan JMD 4 Yes 5 1 
Wegarul Amin NED-I 4 Yes 2 
Imran Siddiqui ED 4 Yes 2 
Arshad Khan ED 4 Yes 
Maohd. Imran ED 4 Yes 2 
Yogendra Singh Kativar | ED 4 Yes 
Dr.Rohit Mohan NED-| 4 Yes 1 3 1 
P. K. Sinha NED-I 4 Yes 1 3 1 
Sadia Kamal NED-I 4 Yes 2 
Aftab Ahmad NED-| 4 Yes 2 3 1 

MD-Managing Director; JMD-Joint Managing Director; ED-Executive Director; NED-I-Mon- 

Executive Director —Independent. 

Mone of the Director is member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees 
across all companies in which helshe is Director. Brief resume of Directors seeking re-appointment, 
nature of their expertise in specific functional area, is given here under: 

Dr. Mohd. Izhar, age 68 years is a B.M.3. He was first introduced in the Board in the year 2005 as 
Additional Director (Mon-Executive Independent) of the Company and was regularized at the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company as a (Non-Executive Independent) director of the Company. He served 
the Company up to September 2014. Keeping in mind the vast experience in the field of Marketing and 
corporate Governance the Board of Directors have again inducted him as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company on 13th August 2024 He is not director of any other company. 

Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar, age 69 years is a MA English, BED retired from (Kendriya Vidyalaya ) having 
experience in the field of administration and Corporate Governance .She is not director of any other 
Company. 

Mr. Aftab Ahmad, age 80 years, is an independent Director of the Company, He is leather technologist 
and plays an important role in suggesting the company to increase its production and selling the product, 
He also suggests better ways to labors and technicians for handling with complexities during the 
production. Mr. Aftab Ahmad, is also Director in Amin Tannery Limited, The Company has appointed him 
as an Independent Director for a further period of 5 years from the date of AGM 30.09.2024 

Mr. Imran Siddiqui, age 66 years is a Chemical Engineer and has been associated with the Company for 
last 39 years and closely involved in the Operations of the Company. He has rich experience in the field of 
leather and leather products. He has visited many countries for this purpose and gained rich experience. 
Mr. Imran Siddiqui is also director in Secure Safety Limited 

2. AUDITCOMMITTEE: 
The Audit Committee consists of three Members - Mr, Rohit Mohan, (Non-Executive Independent Director) 
acts as Chairman, from 10.05.2023Mr.Aftab Ahmad (Non-Executive Independent Director) member and Mr. 
P.K. Sinha {Non-Executive Independent Director) member of the committee. During the year 4meetings were 
held one of which was before finalization of annual accounts. The said meetings were held on 30th May ,2023 
12th Aug.2023, 08thMNov. 2023, and 10th February 2024. The meetings of the committee were attended by the 
members of the committee. Dr. Rohit Mohan has financial and accounting knowledge. 
The meetings of Audit Committee were attended by the heads of accounts & finance and other respective 
functional heads and statutory auditors as invitees. Members held discussion with the statutory auditors during 
the meetings of the Committee and half yearly and annual audited financial accounts of the company were 
reviewed by the Audit Committee before consideration and approval by the Board. The Committee reviewed 
the internal control system also. 
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The terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are as contained under Regulation 17-27 
of (LODR) of theListing Agreement, They are as follows; 

a. Oversight ofthe company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information. 
b. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval 

for payment for any other services. 
c. Reviewingwith management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, 

(i) the going concern assumption(ii) compliance with accounting standards (i) compliance with stock 
exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements. 
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions. 

e. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-up there on. 
Reviewing the findings of any interal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board. 

g. Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as post- 
audit discussion to as certain any area of concern. 

e 
2 

N 

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

For better compliance of Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Commitiee of the Company has 
been designed to determine Company’s policy on specific remuneration package of Executive Directors 
on the basis of their performance. The Remuneration and Commission decided by the Committee are paid in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

MName Status 

Mr. AftabAhmad (Non Executive Director - Independent) Chairman 
Mr.Rohit Mohan (Non-ExecutiveDirector-Independent) Member 

Mr. PK.Sinha (MNon Executive Director- Independent) Member 

Note. Dr.Rohit Mohan Appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director from10.05.2023. 

Details of remuneration paid to Directors are given below : 

Name of Director Salary | Sitting Fees Total 
including (RsZin lacs) 

perquisites 
Mr. Iftikharul Amin 24,00,000 -- 24.00,000 
Mr. Igbal Ahsan 24.00,000 - 24.00,000 

Mr. Veqarul Amin - -- - 
Mr. Imran Siddigui 708000 -- 708000 
Mr. Mohd. Imran 394000 - 384000 
Mr. Arshad Khan 438000 - 438000 

The Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration. 

4, SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE: 

The Company has constituted Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee (the committee), comprising 
Mr. PK.Sinha, Chairman, Mr. Iftikharul Amin and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves issue of 

duplicate certificates and reviews all matters connected with the securities transfer. The Commiittee also looks 
into redressing of Shareholders' /Investors’ Complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, 
non-receipt of dividends etc. Mr .R.K. Awasthi, the Company Secretary acts as a Secretary of the Committee 
as well as Compliance Officer. Total No. of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders 
during the yearwas 78. No outstanding complaints were lying unresolved as on 31st March2024. No investors' 
grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month with the Company. 

5. CSRCOMMITTEE: 

The Company has constituted CSR Committee (the committee), comprising Dr. Rohit Mohan, Chairman, Mr. 
Mohd. Imran, and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves the CSR activities as run by the 
Company through its Amin Welfare Trust. Besides this it has been the policy of the Company to take up 
activities such as healthcare including preventive healthcare, education etc. During the year company has 

20



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

spend more than 2%of the average net profit of the Company through its Hospital and Schools. The basic aim 
of the Company CSR policy to improve the lives of the local Community. Dr. Rohit Mohan, a Non-Executive 
Independent Director was appointed on 10.05.2023 to actas Chairman of C5R Committee. 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

During the last three years, following Annual General Meetings (AGM) & Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
(EGM) were held: 

Year Location Date Time 
2021-21 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2021  9.00AM 
2021-22 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2022 8.00AM 
2022-23 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2023 9.00A.M 

7. DISCLOSURE: 
(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of 
material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that 
may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company atlarge. 
MNone of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company. All the 
related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are only intended to safeguard the interest 
of the company. Wherever necessary, the related party transactions are disclosed in Notes to the Accounts, 
forming part of the Annual Report. 
(b) Detalls of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
years. There were no instances of non-compliance of any matier related to the capital markets during the last 
three years. 

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

Quarterly Results: The quarterly results were published in the Financial Express (English), New Delhi and 
Jansatta (Hindi), Kanpur. The Management Discussion and Analysis (M D &A}is a part of Annual Report. 

9. INSIDER TRADING: 

In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 1992, as 
amended in February2002, the Board of Directors of the company formulated the code of conduct for 
prevention of insider trading in shares of the company by its employees. 

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

10.1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: Date and Time 30th September 2024 at 9:00 a.m. Venue — 187/170, 
Jajmau, KANPUR -208010. 

10.2 FINANCIAL CALENDAR (1stApril 2024 to 31st March 2025) : (Tentative) 

BOARD MEETINGS: 
Results for the quarter ending 30.06.2024: 2ndweek of August 2024 
Results for the quarter ending 30.09.2024: Zndweek of November 2024 
Results for the quarter ending 31.12.2024: 2nd week of February 2025 
Results for the quarter ending 31.03.2025: Last week of May 2025 (as per Listing Agreement.) 

10.3: BOOK CLOSURE DATE/ record date: 16th September 2024 to 30th September 2024 (both days 

inclusive) for the purpose of dividend payment. 

10.4 Dividend payment date: Credit/dispatchof divided between 3rd October 2024 to 5th October 2024 

10.5: (a) LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES ON STOCK EXCHANGESAT: 

1.TheStock Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, MUMBAI-400001. 
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Months Cnmp:fmy‘s Equity Share 

High Low 

April 2023 8.60 6.20 

May 2023 8.30 6.91 

June 2023 8.30 7.15 

July 2023 7.79 6.82 

August 2023 7.76 6.80 

September 2023 9.49 7.06 

October 2023 9.54 7.52 

November 2023 9.39 8.50 

December 2023 9.18 8.05 

January 2024 11.18 8.50 

February 2024 12..80 9.69 

March 2024 10.99 7.76 

MNOTE: Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-25 as applicable has been paid fo the BSE. 

(b) DEMAT IS IN NUMBERS IN NSDL & CDSL: EquityShares INE460D01038 

10.6:STOCK CODE: Trading in Mumbai Stock Exchange and Stock Code is 523842, 
10.7:REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT: 

10.8 

KFin Technologies Ltd. 
Karvy Selenium Tower B", Plot No 31&32, Financial District, MNanakramguda, Gachibowli, 

HYDERABAD-500032 Telangana, India 
Phone: 40-67162222, 33211000 ; Fax: 40-23420814 
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

:SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 
In compliance of SEBI Circular No.D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated 27th December 2002, your 
Company has appointed common agency to shareholders for all the work relating to share registry in 
terms of both physical and electronic at single point by our Registrar & Transfer Agent L.e. KFIN 
Technologles Ltd. (K.TL.) Hyderabad. The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are 
processed and the share certificates returned within a period of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt, 
subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respect. 

10.9:5HARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2024 

10.11:DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY: 

S. No. | Description Cases Shares | % Equtiy 

1 BANKS 1 3000 0.00 

2 Clearing Members 0 oo 0.00 

3 DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES 10 63077723 58.42 

4 HUF 170 1213442 1.12 

5 BODIES CORPORATES 44 3186105 2.95 

=} MNEI Non-Repatriation a7 83236 0.08 

7 NOM RESIDENT INDIANS 78 314059 0.29 

-] RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 15482 36411881 33.73 

g IEPF 1 3683914 3.41 

Total: 15823 107973360 100.00 
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11. 

12. 

10.10: Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2024: 

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31/03/2023 

Sno | Category Cases | % of Cases Amount % Amount 

1 |uptol -5000 14738 93.14 13328505.00 11.62 

2 | 5001 -10000 595 3.76 4313387.00 37 

3 | 10001 -20000 258 1.63 3720637.00 2.88 

4| 20001 -30000 91 0.57 2260891.00 1.45 

5| 30001 - 40000 21 0.13 780203.00 0.67 

6 | 40001 -50000 24 0.15 1137245.00 1.00 

7 | 50001 - 100000 55 0.36 38857859.00 3.17 

8 | 100001 & ABOVE 41 0.26 78546703.00 75.50 

Total: 15823 100.00 107973360.00 100.00 

The company has entered into agreement with NSDL and CDSL for the dematerialization of its equity 
shares. The equity shares of the company are frequently traded on the BSE. Approximately 91.33 % of 
the equity shares issued by the Company have been dematerialized up to 31st March 2024. 

10.12:0UTSTANDING GDR/ ADR/ WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION 
DATEAND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY : Nil 

10.13: PLANT LOCATIONS: 
{a) Chrome Tannery : 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010 
(b) Sole Tannery : (i} Mona MNagar, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010. 

. (if) 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur—208 010 
{c) Fashion Shoe Division : 6, Akrampur, Unnac—-209 801 
{d} Footwear Division : 169, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010. 
(e} Safety Shoe Division : Leather Technology Park, Banthar, Unnao, U.F. 

10.14: ADDRESS FOR INVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE: 
Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the address 
mentioned above. Shareholders may also contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office ofthe 
Company at: 
187170, Jajmau, Kanpur-208010 
Phone: 0512-7522000371, 7522000372, 7522000373 Fax: 0152-2460792, 

E-mail: share@supertannery.com; info@supertannery.com. 
Website: www . supertannery.com 

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective 
Depository Participant. 

CODE OF CONDUCT: 
The Company has a code of conduct applicable to its Directors and senior management personnel. 

Declaration as required under the Listing Agreement: 

All Directors and senior management of the company have affirmed compliance with company's Code of 
Conduct for the financial year ended 31" March 2024. 

IFTIKHARUL AMIN 
Kanpur: 13.08.2024 Managing Director 

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 
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The company has adopted non-mandatory requirements to the following extent: 
Chairman of the Board — The Company does not have a Chairman. At every Board meeting, a Director is 
elected to preside over the meeting, The company has constituted Remuneration committee of the Board. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN 

Date: 13.08.2024 Managing Director Whole Time Director 
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ANNEXURE-II 
DETAILS PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 187(12) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 

A. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013 
READ WITH RULES 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES,2014: 

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
during the Financial year 2023-24, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of 
the employees are as under: 

Name of Director Director Remuneration of | %increase/decrease Ratio of 
/KMP and Identification No Director/KMP in Remuneration in remuneration of 
Designation DIM for the Financial the Financial each Director /to 

Year 2023-24 Year 2023-24 median 
(Rs in lacs) remuneration of 

employees 

1. Mr.lftikharul Amin 00037469 2400000 oo 14.286 

2. Mr. Mohd Imran 00037424 393164 oo 2.5 
3. Mr. R.K. Awasthi NA 279663 00 MN.A. 

2. The % increase of remuneration is provided only for those directors and KMP who have drawn remuneration 
from the Company for full fiscal 2024 and full fiscal 2023.The Ratio of remuneration to Median Remuneration of 
employees is provided only for those directors and KMP who have drawn remuneration from the Company for the 
full fiscal 2024, 

3. No remuneration paid to non-executive directors including independent directors. 

4. The Median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial year was Rs 1.64 Lacs. 

5.In the Financial year, there was an increase of 5.07% in the median remuneration of the Company. 

6.There were 450 permanent employee of the Company on the rolls of the Company as on March 2024, 

7. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in 
the last financial year 2022-23 was 4.87. 

8.The Key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the 
Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee as per the 
Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

9.The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year -Not Applicable. 

B. STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES 2014 

1-Top ten employees, in terms of remuneration drawn 

Name Designation| Age | Qualification Date of Experience Gross Pravious 
commencement remuneration | employment 
of employment 

Mr. Htikharul | MD 66 Post Since 39 2400000 Super Tannery 
Amin Graduate incorporation Limited 
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Mr. Igbal JMD 63 | Graduate 211211888 35 2400000 | Super Tannery 

Ahsan Limited 
Mr. Mohd Director 57 | Graduate & 11/05/1994 30 393164 Super Tannery 

Imran & CFO C.A Limited 
Mr. Imran Director 66 | Graduate 16/03/1978 46 704564 Super Tannery 
Siddqui Limited 

Mr. Arshad Director 60 | Graduate 01/11/1994 30 416564 Super Tannery 
Khan Limited 
Mr. Mubas- Product 40 | Graduate 01/01/2008 16 1833164 | Super Tannery 
hirul Amin Manager Lirited 
Mr. Tanveerul | Product 38 Graduate 01/08/2007 17 1468164 Super Tannery 

Amin Manager Limited 

Mr. Urnairul Product 34 | Graduate 13/05/2013 i 1353164 | Super Tannery 
Amin Manager Limited 

Mr. Ahmad Product 30 | Graduate 01072017 Fi 573164 Super Tannery 
Faraz Amin Manager Limited 

Mr. R.K. Company | 59 Post 21/11/2008 16 279663 Super Tannery 

Awasthi Secretary Graduate Limited 

2. Employed throughout the financial year 2023-24 and in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate, not less 
than one crore and two lacs rupees:; - N-A 

Name Designation |Age | Qualification Date of Experience Gross Previous 
commencement remuneration | employment 
of employment 

Notes:- 

—
_
 All appointments are contractual and terminable by notice on either side. 

2. Mr. Iftikharul, Managing Director Mr. lgbal Ahsan, Joint Managing Director, Mr. Mubashirul Amin, 
Mr. Tanveerul Amin, Mr. Umairul Amin and Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin, are relatives of each other. 

3. No employee was employed for a part of the financial year who was in receipt of remuneration of Rs.8.50 
lacs or more per month. 

4. Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid as per the remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees 
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MANAGEMENT DI ION AND ANALYSI 

Industry Structure and Development: 

The Indian Leather Industry plays a significant role in the Indian Economy in view of its substantial export earnings, 
employment generation and growth opportunities. The export of leather and leather products has increased over 
past few years. 

The Company is striving high to capture over Global Market in respect of Leather and Leather Products. The 
Company has taken various steps to promote company's products all over the world and it is being done in line with 
global trends to enhance scale, global competitiveness and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards 
achievement of company's objective and to increase revenue, production volume, market shares and shareholder's 
returns. 

Your company in view of the competitive scenario has taken various steps to meet these challenges and also 
capitalize on budding opportunities available. The company is regularly carrying out detailed analysis of leather 
industry and has been making all possible efforts to understand the various minutiae of the emerging market 
scenario. The company has been investing considerable amount of funds on its Research & Development Programs 
inorder to enrich and improve the quality of products. 

Opportunities: 
Company has gained reputation and established itself globally as Supplier of quality products. The company has 
demonstrated global competitiveness and has achieved international standards for the quality of its products and its 
immense capabilities provide massive opportunities in the foreign market. Company’s overall strategy is to enhance 
shareholder value by receiving better returns through along-terminvestment. 

Threat: 

The company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs 
through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production process and 
enhanced customer salisfaction. 

Even under difficult operating conditions, company has been consistently performing at its best. It is expected that 
company's sound policies, competitive cost position will enable the company to lead the market effectively. 

To exist in the competitive market and improve the value of shareholder, company is consistently considering all the 
significant factors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the margin. 

Out Look: 
Company's maximum operational income is based on the margin on export of leather and leather products. As most 
of part of the earning is realized from Export, out look depends upon the global economic scenario, global demand 
and supply and international product prices. Above all the performance of your company largely depends on the Ex- 
imp policy of the Union Government. Looking at the overall development of the Indian economy and the efforts of the 
Central Government to achieve higher GOP, Board of directors of your company is very much optimistic to the future 
of the Company. 

Risks and Concerns: 
Although Your Company does not perceive any serious threat, still company is taking care against the risk of growing 
pressure of prices, foreign exchange rates variation, current and future litigation, working capital management, bad 
debts etc. Foreign exchange liabilities / revenues are mainly concemed with the company's operation. Reqular 
monitoring of movement of foreign exchange rates is carried out and decisions are taken as to when outstanding are 
to be covered and payments are to be made. Working Capital requirement are to be kept at minimum level in order to 
maintain the lowest possible interest rate. 

Company has strongly prepared itself to meet cutthroat competition in global market by adhering to international 

quality standards of its product. 

In addition to above company has overall risk management strategy, follows such practices & policies that are 
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framework of efficient management to count the risk in advance. 

Internal Control System and their Adequacy: 
The company has made sufficient arrangement for internal control system and its monitoring for keeping proper 
record of the purchase of raw materials, stores, components, plant and machineries, equipment’s and all other assets 

for production and sale of finished leather and leather products. The company has clearly fixed rules and 
responsibilities for all management personnel and all operational activities are well controlled. The system ensures 
authorization of all transactions, records and the reports correctly and properly through computerized system. 

The Audit committee of the Company also re-examines adequacy of internal controls, systems of risk management 
policies adopted by the Company. 

Company's Laws and Regulations are also reviewed by the internal Audit Team regulary from time to time and its 
report is submitted to the promoters and put up in every Board Meeting. In order to provide sufficient support for 
business promotion of the company, the finance and commercial functions have been properly set. The company 
lakes into account from time to time-and Analysis its progress in accordance with the Laws and Regulations set by the 
internal auditors and report to the Board in every Board Meeting in support of best practices for internal control, 
standard operating norms and guidelines are being issued. The Company also incorporates all financial operating, 
and information technology systems are also evaluated from time to time. 

Environment and safety: 
The Company feels its responsibllity and is fully aware of the importance to achieving exhibiting healthy 
environmental performance by checking effect of its activities, product or services for the environment. The 
environment policy of the company fully complies with the environmental laws and prevention of water, air and noise 
pollution and all efforts are made for continual improvement in the environmental performance, The Company has 
also initiated focusing its attention on "Charter on Corporate Responsibility” under the policy of the Government of 
India. The Company takes all measure to save and minimize the environmental effect on air, water by strictly using 
and further sounding its environmental management system to meet its objective. The Company ensures providing 
safe work place, machines and safety control measures within the organization and a sense of safety consciousness 
is spread amongst all the workmen, employees and supervisors. 

Industrial Relations and Human Resources Development: 
The Company gives much importance to maintain good relations with its employees ensuring that employees feel 
valued and energetic in creating an atmosphere and culture so that they can maximize their contribution in increasing 
the growth and further development of the company, and in turn the Company thinks of individual growth of its 
employees for their dedicated participation in organizational development. 

The company's priority is to reduce the employee's tumover ratio. The company's approach and efforts are to create 

congenial work environment for individual growth, which enable the development of whole organization. Relationship 
with the employees remains cordial throughout the year. The company has a team of over 500 dedicated employees 
working towards the company's mission. 

Discussion of Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance: 
Effective working management is regularly concentrating to reduce the cost of debt as much as possible. Prudent 
cash management endeavor to utilize the optimum Working Capital in order to reduce the interest cost and also to 
avoid the bottleneck of company's operation. 

Research & Development: 
The company is committed to continue technological innovation, physical and chemical standardization and 
improvement to achieve high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction 

Key factors that keep the company one step ahead: 
a. Extensive interaction with the latest technological developments. 
b Presence in all major trade fairs, seminars and workshops for optimum knowledge up gradation. 
& Well qualified and progressive workforce. 
d. Fully equipped Laboratory 
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The tannery units of the company work under guidance of a well-equipped laboratory conducting physical and 
chemical tests, It also has a pilot tannery to conduct trials of new leathers at a small scale before its implementation in 
bulk production. The laboratory has all the requisites to perform tests of leather as per EN, ISO and DIN standards. 
The company is amongst few companies which provide certification as per the REACH guidelines of European 

Chemicals Agency. 

Design Studio: 
The footwear units of the company conduct their production as per the guidance of a newly built, state of the art 
designing cell, lead by well qualifiad shoe technologists and designars. Due to a rapid change in the product profile 
over the past few years, this studio was installed keeping in mind the ever-changing tests and preferences of the 
customers, while keeping time frame into consideration. 

Quality Assurance: 
A major factor which keeps the company ahead is its obsession with total quality, which includes products of the 
highest standards, quick and efficient customer service, leading to complete customer satisfaction. Factors like these 
help the company to retain customers, some of them, for as long as 34 years. 

Fair Participation 
Asia Pacific Leather fair, Hong Kong 

Lineapelle, Bologna, Italy 
Moda, Birmingham, United Kindom 

All China Leather Exhibition, Shanghai , China 
A+ AFair, Dusseldorf, Germany 

Fimec Fair, Novo Hamburgo, Brazil 

Cautionary Statement: 
Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which seek to describe the company’s objectives, 
projections estimates, expectations and predictions may be considered to be "forward looking statements” and are 
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. 
Many factors including global and domestic demand-supply conditions, prices, raw materials availability, 
technological changes, changes in Government policies, tax laws and other statues may affect the actual results, 
which could be different from what the Directors' envisage in terms of future performance and out look. REPORT ON 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Social Responsibility: 
Super Tannery Limited {STL) believes in total commitment to society, The promoters of the company run an 
organization known as AMIN WELFARE TRUST (AWT ) which follows the motto of "Promoting Hope in Life."” This trust 

has taken up number of social causes in the field of EDUCATION & HEALTHCARE. 

STL nurtures relationships across the entire range of stakeholders, which has the Company understand pertinent 
issues, develop businesses, enhance shareholder value and manage risks better. It is the relationship, trust and 

commitment to stake holder's interest and the warm reciprocal of the same by the stakeholders that make STL robust, 
resilient and sustainable. STL actively integrates shareholder goals with its own and then pursues them 

collabaratively. 

STL's commitment towards excellence in Health, Safety and Environment Performance is one of the company’s core 
values. The company is unwavering and its policy of, "safety of persons overrides all production targets”, which drives 
all employees to continuously break new grounds in safety management for the benefit of the people, property, 
environment and the communities in which STL operates. This is the Company's responsibility as a global corporate 
citizen. The 'pursuit to achieve world class operational excellence' has been the key focus of the Company. 

Healthcare: 
AWT operates a hospital known as Chaudhry Ehsan Kareem Hospital, well equipped with the most modern 
machinery and infrastructure, in the industrial area of Jajmau, Kanpur City, providing healthcare facilities ina number 
of fields including Neurology, Vision, Endocrinology, Dentistry and Pre/Post Matemal Care. 

STL has a program an initiative to promote healthy workplaces and reduce health and safety risks. has been 
instrumental in creative a culture ofimplementing health, safety and environment project on priority basis. 

This performance has also helped the Company to improve its performance on the occupational health and safety 
front, 

Education; 
On 26th January 2010, AWT launched a state of art educational institution namely Super International School with the 
aim to provide world class education at affordable cost to the middle income group. The school is affiliated with the 
C.B.S.E board and is equipped with the latest infrastructure required for a healthy and constructive approach to 
education. To know more, please visit www.superinternationalschool.com 

Environment 
When the leather industry enough developed, the pollution of air and water increased and the stage reached where 
scientists started thinking on making better use or reuse of material which caused pollution keeping in mind the 
economical factor else no industrialist would accept the change. 

Special emphasis has been laid on use of low waste technology with minimum possible expenditure and maximum 

quality production because it is natural for any industrialists to resist a change unless it is likely to give better quality 
production with least expenditure. Pollution is given the last priority by them whereas we give it the first priority. 

At STL we are very much cautious about pollution. We have our own water treatment and chrome recovery plant in 
which we collect the drain water full of nickel, chromium and many more harmful substances. Our deep Interest is in 
green and clean environment. The chrome is used in the processing of hides & skins in which 65% is consumed during 
the process while 35% goes waste. The presence of chrome in the discharged water of tanneries is hazardous for 
public health as its excessive use can cause severe skin diseases. To minimize the danger we have water treatment 
plantto purify water to its maximum possible level, We believe to contribute in safe and healthy enviranment. STLis an 
eco friendly tannery. 

Health, Safety & Environment 

We at STL are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our employees by adopting a 
proactive approach. It is part-of our work ethic to ensure that safety, health and environment safeguards are in place 
right from the inception to the execution stage. We accept the need for constant up gradation of safety & health 
standards commensurate with the rapid changing technology in production. 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2024. 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 

SUPER TANNERY Limited 

187170, JAJAMU KANPUR 
UTTAR PRADESH. 

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Super Tannery Limited (hereinafter called the Company) to 
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2024.We have conducted the 
secretarial audit compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Super Tannery Limited. (here in after called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts [ statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. Based on our verification, the Super Tannery Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our 
apinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 Complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter : We 
have examined the books, papers, minute, books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
company for the financial year ended on31st March,2024according to the provisions of: 

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder: 
(i} The Securities contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder: 
{iiiy Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: 
(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):- 
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) regulation, 

2011: 
(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 : 

{c) The securities and Exchange Board of India{lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2009 —Not applicable to the Company for the year under review; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 : Not applicable to the Company for the year under review; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India{lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008: Not 
applicable to the Company for the year under review; 

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Registrars to an Issue And Share Transfer Agents) Regulation, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing With client: Not applicable to the Company for the year 
under review; 

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Share} Regulations,2009; Not applicable to 
the Company for the year under review; 

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Not applicable to 
the Company for the year under review; 

(vi) (Mentionthe otherlaws as may be applicable specifically to the Company) N.A. 
we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company is maintaining 
Minutes Book as per the norms, but not as Stated in the S5-1 and $5-2, the company has been suggested to 
comply the standard viz. numbering of Minutes Book, whether they are Board Minutes, Committee Minutes or 

General Body Minutes. 
{ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (hereinafter 

called as “Listing Agreement): 
During the period the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
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Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above, to the extent applicable; 

We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
ExecutiveDirectors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There is no change in the composition of the Board 
of Directors during the period under review. 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to convene the Board Meeting, agenda (detailed notes on agenda were 
sent, but some time at least seven days in advance notice were not adhered), and a system for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes, it was found that most of the time it was 
unanimous but the name of proposer and seconder were given in the Minutes book. 

We further report that 
The adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable. 

We further report that 
On the basis of the questionnaire provided to the Company, during the audit period, on the basis of reply received 
from the various departments, it was concluded that the company has complied with the following laws applicable to 
the Company. 

Forexample: 

(i) Water(prevention and control of poliution)Act, 1974, 
(i} Alir (prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1981; 
(i) Environment Protection Act, 1986; 
(iv) FactoriesAct, 1948; 

{v) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947; 
{vi) Paymentof\Wages Act,1936; 
(vii) The Minimum Wages Act,1948; 
(viii} Employees State Insurance Act, 1948; 
(ix) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952; 
(x) The Paymentof BonusAct,1965; 
(xi) The Paymentof Gratuity Act,1972; 
(xii} The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace, {Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013. 

Signature: 

K. M. Shridhar & Associates 

Name of Company Secretary in Practice/Firm: 
Date : 13.08.2024 FCS No.3882 C P No: 2612 
Place: Kanpur UDIN:FOD3882F000988129 
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Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read 

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of 

Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/joint Ventures 

Part "A": Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Details 

8l. S.TUKLTD | SECURE |HX LONDON|PIONEER AARIFI SUPER SUPER 
No.| Name of the Subsidiary SAFETY |FASHIONS |INVESTMENT| TANNERS | CORPOR- | [TALIA 

. LTD. PVT LTD FZCo. LTD. ATION SRL 

LTD. 
1. | Reporting period for the 31032024 | 31032024 | 31032024 | 31032024 | 3032024 | 31032024 | 31.032024 

subsidiary concamed, if 
differant from the holding 
comgany's reporing pariod 

2, | Reporting currency and GBP INR INR AED INR INR EURO 
Exchange rale & on the 
last date of the relevant 

Financial year in the cass 
of foraign subsidiaries 

3. | Share capital Rs:1.52 Rs.150.00 Rs. 100 Rs. 22.73 Rs.146.07 Rs.5.00 Rs0.75 
4. | Reserves & surphus Rs.[-) 35348 Rs.(-) 25.07 Rs. (- 0.20 Rs.(-) 3.9 Rs. 0.37 Rs.062 | Rs () 2262 
5, | Total assets Rs.7.22 Rs.28.97 Rs. 0.20 Rs. 180.86 R=.26.38 Rs. 7.28 Fe 35340 

6, | Total Liabilities Rs.7.22 Rs.28.67 Rs.020|  Rs. 180,86 Rs. 26.38 Re.720 | Rs. 35340 
7. | Imvestmants MIL MIL MIL MIL Re.1.73 MIL HIL 

B, | Tumaver NIL NIL MIL MNIL NIL Rs. 14.00 Rs.403.68 
8. | Profit before taxation Re.(-) 0.40 Rs(0.38| Rs (020 Rs ()38 Rs 1.07 Rs.059 | Rs. (1444 

10, | Provision for taxation MIL ML MIL MIL ML NIL HIL 
1. | Profit afler taxation Rs.(-) 0.40 Rs(0.38| Rs.(0.20| Rs (399 Rs.1.07 Rs.0.59 | Rs. (- 1444 
12, | Propesed Dividend MIL MIL MIL MIL NIL MIL HIL 

13, | % of shareholding 100% £3.20% 100% 100% B2.52% 52% 100% 

Notes: The following information shall ba furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to 
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of associates/Joint Ventures NIL 
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 

Shares of Associate/]oint Ventures held by the company on the year end 
No. 

Amount of Investment in Associates/]Joint Venture 

Extend of Holding% 

Description of how there is significant influence 
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Reason why the associate /joint venture is not consolidated 

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 

Profit/Loss for the year 

Considered in Consolidation 
Not Considered in Consolidation 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be 

certified. 



Form No. AOC-2 

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length fransactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

{b) Nature of contracis/arrangementsitransactions: 

(c) Duration of the coniracts / arrangements/transactions: 

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 

{e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 

{f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 

{g) Amounl pald as advances, if any: 

{h} Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: NLA 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

(b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: 

{c) Duration of the confracts / arrangements/transactions: 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any; 

{e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: 

The Details has been given under the head notes to financial statements 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Iftikharul Amin Mohd. Imran R.K. Awasthi 

M.D. Director Finance &CFO Company Secretary 
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate On Corporate Governance 

To the members of Super Tannery Limited 

1z We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Super Tannery Limited (“the 
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of 
regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing Regulations"). 

Management's responsibility 
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of management. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to 
ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Auditors’ responsibility 
Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither audit nor 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the 
Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with corporate governance 
requirements by the Company. 
We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance 
Mote on Certification of Corporate Govemnance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 
ICA|"), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for 
Special Purpose issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code 
of Ethics issued by the ICAL 
We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

Opinion 
Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided 
to us and representations provided by management, we certify that the Company has complied with the 
conditions of corporate governance as specified in regulation 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and 
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable during the year ended 
March 31,2024, 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.000852C 

(Divyank Nigam) 
Place: Kanpur Partner 
Date: August 13, 2024 M. No. 438443 

UDIN: 2443844 3BEAVEX 2871 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members of Super Tannery Limited 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the standalone Statement of Change in Equity and standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements™). 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and glve a true and fair view in 
confarmity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, therecf ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, ofthe state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit, total comprehensive income, change in aquity and its cash flows for the year endad on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143({10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the standalone Financial Statemants section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India logether with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters ars those matiers thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance inour audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are 
no key audit matters to be communicated in our repart. 

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditors” Report Thereon 
The Company's Board of Directors is respansibie for the other information. The other information comprises the informalion included in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Corporate Governance and 
Shareholders information, but doas not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our audifor's 
report thereon, 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon, 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ) 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard. 

Responsibility of Managemeant for the standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of thase 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other 
comprehensive income, change in equity and cash fiows of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted In India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and 
maintanance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent; and design, implemantation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completenass of the 
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accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstaternent, whetherdue to fraud or error. 
In preparing the standalone financial statemeants, managemant is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has norealistic alternatlve but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Regponsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Qur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whather the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
materal misstatement, whether dus to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is & high level of assurance, but |s not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statemanis, 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control, 
Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. ’ 
Conclude on the appropriatenass of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncartainty exists related to events or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify our opinion. 
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease 1o confinue as a going concern, 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial stalements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair 
presentation, 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be Influenced, We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in ([} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i} to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In internal control that we identify during our audit, 

We also provide thiose charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independance, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of mast significancea in 
the audit of the standalone financial statements of the curent period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rara 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should nof be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. Asreguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central Govemment of India in terms 

of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specifiad 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Furtherto our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(8) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
{B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books; 
{c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

standalone statement of change In equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act; read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of March 31, 2024 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) ofthe Act, 
(fi  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

aoperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annaxure B", Our report expresses an unmaodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's intémal financial controls over financial reporting. 

lg) As required by Section 197{16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the 
year in accordanca with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanaticns given to us; 

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position In s standalone financial 
statements — Refer Mote no. 33 to the financial statements; 
ii, the Company did not have any long-termn contracts: including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseaable lossas; and 
iil.there has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the: Company, 
iv.{a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bellef, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any other person or entity, including foreign antity 
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities |dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

{b) Tha Management has represented, that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which are material eithar 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or enfity, including foreign enlity 
{(“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Company shall, whether, 
directly or Indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries; 

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement, 

. (a} The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with 
Section 123 ofthe Act, as applicable. 

(b) As stated in Mote 12 {1} to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for 
the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend 
proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of tha Act, as applicable. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining ils 
books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course 
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tamperad with, 
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023 reporting undear Rule 11(g) 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co,, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.000952C 

(Divyank Nigam) 
Partner 

Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443 

Date: 30.05.2024 UDIN: 2443844 3BKAV X465 
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AnnexuraAtothe Independent Auditors’ Repaort 

{Referred 1o in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 of 
Super Tannery Limited ) 
In tarms of the information and explanatiohs sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounts and records examined by 

usin the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

{iy (=) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of lts 

( b) 

property, plantand equipment and relevant details of right-to-use asset; 
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; 
The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets soto cover all 
the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year 
and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(¢} Title Deeds of immoveable properties as disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company 
excepting the following properties {refer Mate no. 50 (a)}: 

Description of Property Carrying Value the promaoler, Since 
Gross Held in Whether Held Reason for not being held in 

f co. 
(Rupees) Name of |director or relative e b 

Land No. 1363, Banther Unnao 24.722.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 14.08.2002 | Though cost of land is paid 

Land No. 1362 Banther Unnao 99.882.00 |Vegarul Amin| __ Director 14.08.2002 | by Company but due to 
Land MNo. 1417 Banther Unnao 1.05.453.00 |Veganil Amin Director 14.08.2002 

oversight registration was 

Land Mo, 1416 & 1415 Banther Unnao 06.396.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 09.10.2002 | However the process of 
done in the name of director. 

Land Mo. 1413 & 1414 Banther Unnao| 2 05 820.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 01.01.2004 | registering the tille deeds in 

Land No. 1364 & 1365 Banther Unnao 42 850.00 |Vegarul Amin Diractor 10.03.2004 the name of company is 

Land No. 1366 Banther Unnac 1,02,520.00 |Iftikharul Amin Director 14.09.2004 | finalization of aceounts. 
underway at the time of 

(i 

{d) 
(e} 

(a) 

{b) 

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year. 
Mo proceadings have bean initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended In 2016} and rules made 
thereunder, 

The inventaries of the Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable interval during the year. In 
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and 
nature of its operation. Mo discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on 
verification during the year when compared with books of account, 
As disclosed in note no. 50(2) to the financial statemeants, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of Rupees five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The 
quarterly returns/ statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the 
Company and the details are as follows: (Re. in Lacs) 

Quarter Ending of Accounts statements filed with lenders 
Value as per Values as per quartarly retum/ Difference Reason 

June 30, 2023 11590.00 11745.83 155.83 Ag explained. the differences ara thers, 

September 30, 2023 11172.92 11787.37 BIEAE | are bamoc i frericia steleriants prapaved becauss the statements filad with the lenders. 

December 31, 2023 12234.95 12226.62 8.33 do PROviSiOnal Al R aten bad Al e ] 

March 31, 2024 13511.64 14117.52 605.88 slatements filed with the lendars. 
exclusion of certain coend 355815 in the 
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{iiiy Thecompany has madeinvestments, granted unsecured loans to companies, during the earlier years, inrespect of which: 

{a) The Company has provided loan to two WOS and also to one subsidiary. The details are as under: 

(Rs. in Lacs) 

Name of the Company | Relationship |Loan/ Guarantee Balance as at 31.03.2024 flafif‘;‘m?fi"fi'"t aAstaning 

Super Tannery (UK) Lid | WOS Loan 130.04 130.04 

Secure safety limited Subsidiary Loan 12.49 12.49 

Super ltalia SRL Wos Loan §7.59 §7.59 

Pionear Investment Wos Loan 181.57 181.57 

FZCOD 

Total Loan 411.69 411.69 

(b} Inouropinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facle, not 
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

{c) As fl%::’aras are in the nature of demand loan, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 
specified, 

(d} In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount thereon as no demand has been raised by the 
COMmpany. 

(2} MNoloangranted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or exlended or fresh loans granted 
to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

{fi  During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature loans either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any tarms or period of repayment. 

(v}  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of oans, making investments 
“and providing guarantees and secunfies, as applicabla. 

(v} In our apinion, the Company has nol accepted any deposit or an amount deemed to be deposit during the year within the meaning 
of Section 73 1o Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Rules framed there under. Hence, paragraph 3(v) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(vi)  Having regard to the nature of the Company's business / activities, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the 
Central Government under section 148{1) of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable, 

(vii) (a) According to the books and records produced and examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputad Statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Sarvice Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable 
with the appropriate authorities and nio undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at 
March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. 

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and GST which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

(wiil} ~There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded Income thal have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(i®) (a) Thecompany hasnotdefaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or on the payment of interest thereon to any lender 
during the year, 
{b)The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any govemment 
authority. 
(c)The Term loan availed by the company has been utilized for the purpose forwhich such loan was obtained. 
{d}¥2n an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not 
been used during the year for long-term purposas by the Company. 
{e)the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of Its subsidiaries and 
hence reporting under clause 3(ix){e) of the Order is not applicable. 
{f} The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in s subsidiaries, JV or associate 
Company and hence reporting under clause 3{ix){f) of the Order is not applicable. 

[x) (a) Thecompany has not raised any money by way of inifial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 
the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x}a) of the Order is not applicable, 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
dabenturas {fully or partly oroptionally} and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderis not applicable. 
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(xi) (a) Nofraud by the company orany fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
{b) MNoreportunder sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governmeant, during the yearand upto the date of this report. 
() We have laken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the yvear (and uplo the date 
of this report), while determining the nature, liming and extent of our audit procedures, 

{xii)  Thecompanyis nota “Nidhi Company"; hence paragraph 3(xii) the Orderis not applicable, 

{xili} In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in Mole no.d6 in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable Ind AS. 

{xiv) (a) Inouropinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business, 
(b} We have considerad, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in 
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

{xv}  Inouropinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Hence, 
paragraph 3(xv) the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) (a) Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1Aof the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934, Hence, 
reporting under clause 3{xvi){a), (b) and (c) of the Order s not applicable, 
{b) In our opinion, there is no core Investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi){d) of the Orderis not applicabla. 

(xvii) The Company has nol incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the Immediately preceding financial 
YEar. 

(xviii) There has been noresignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other infarmation accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance shest as and when they fall due within a pariod of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither glve any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(#x}  The Company has fully spent the required amount fowards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and thera is no unspant CSR 
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act or special account in compliance 
with the provision of Sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not 
applicable for the year. 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.000952C 

{Divyank Migam} 
Partner 

Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443 
Date: 30.05.2024 UDIN: 244 3844 3BKAV JX94E65 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 
of Super Tannery Limited) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") 

Opinion 

We have audited the Internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that data. 
In aur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reparting and such 
internal financial conlrals over financial reporting were: operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the internal contral over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the Guidance 
MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of ils 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financlal reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemmal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") and the Standards on Audifing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal financial conlrols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
uvnderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists; and testing and 
evallating the deskgn and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, 

We beligve that tha audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is'a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financlal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting Includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assels that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements, 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inharent limitations of internal financial controle over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or impropear 
managemant override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporling lo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral 
aver financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.000952C 

(Divyank Nigam) 
Partner 

Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443 
Date: 30.05.2024 UDIN: 2443844 3BKAN JX0465 



SUPER TANMERY LIMITED {CIN: L19131UP198APLODOGAT) 

Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 

Particulars MNote Mo, As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Bs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs As. in Lacs As. in Lacs 

ASSETS 
Non-current assats 

{a} Property, Plant, Equipment & intangible Assets 2{a) 7,732.90 T,172.30 

[b) Capital work-in-progress 2{d) 1.329.50 1,125.44 
fc} Other Intangible assets 2{b) 822 653 

[d) Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 3 13419 0842 
(i} Loans L] 41169 230,12 

{iif} Other Financial Assets 5 41.60 TETA8 1.6 580,14 

Current Assets 

(a} Inventories [ 5,556,539 595598 

[b) Financial Assets 

{i} Trade receivables 

[ii} Cash and ¢ash equivalents 

508728 333906 

239,43 33951 

{iil) Bank Balances other than {iii} above 70313 44263 

[v) Gither Financlal Assets 56727 759711 01,7 £.513.26 
[e] Current Tax Assets (Net) - - 
[d) Other current assets 11 1,594 30 134016 

B
w
o
 
e
 

TOTAL ASSETS 24.607.40 12,691.81 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 

{a}l Equity Share Capital 
[b) Other Equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non current liabilities 

{a} Financial liabilities 

{il Borrowings 14 A 4453 
{b) Dafarrad tax liabilities [nit) 15 #1150 751.35 

[e) Other non-current liabifites 16 Ti4.27 526,55 

Current liabilities 

{a) Financial lkabilities 

iy Short term borrowings 7 105124 6,771.59 
{il}  Trade payables 18 

{a) Total Qutstanding Dues to micre and small entarprises A8 4K 7138 
{b) Total Outstanding Due 1o parlies other than micro and small 

enterprises 2.TI4.83 347435 
{lli} Other financial lieblites 19 053 15 12,026.72 734,02 11,05].34 

(). Other current liabilities 20 620, 0 519,67 
[c) Provisions 71 22244 22111 

1.079.73 179,73 

9.047.68 10,127.41 B.490.03 9,578,786 &
R
 

TOTAL EQUATY AND LIABILITIES 24,607.40 212.0%3.51 

Material Accounting Policies 1 

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 

Az per.our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Mo, 000952C 

Mohd, Imran Iftikharul Amin 

Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Direcior 

Divyank Migam DM THET DIN:NM3T424 

Partner 

M. Mo, 438443 

Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi 

Dute: 30-05-2024 Company Secretary 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCO0GS21) 

Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars Hote Mo, 202324 02223 

Rs. s Rs. Rs. 

INCOME: 

Rewenue from Operations 

{a)] Sales / income from operations 22(a) 2161042 21.569:29 

{b} Other Operating Revenus 22{b) 1,07%.29 22.689.71 BR9.EI 21245910 

Qther income 23 213.20 206,25 

Total Income %H 1166535 

EXPEMSE: 

Cost of materials consumed 24 13,671.35 1254819 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 911,89 1.941.56 

Changes in imventories of finished goods, 

work-in-progress and stocksin-trade % L2 B0 736,10 
Employee Benefits Expenses 7 1,135,180 1 (W ¥ 

Fimance costs 4nl 8% 445.63 
Depreciation and Amaortization Expenses 9 670.74 65564 

Other Expenses 5,029.03 4,571.22 

Total Expenses: 121,045 80 21.9046.43 

Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 857,11 758,92 

Exceptional tams 
_ ] Profit before Tax 857.11 T58.92 

Tax expense; 

1. Current Tax 1540, 00} 18000 

2. Deferred Tax 55.36 34.40 

3. Tax adjustment relating to earlier years 

Current Tax 2103 [61.3T) 

Deferred Tax - 266,39 - 53,03 

Profit for the period 5M.72 5,89 

Other comprehensive imcome 

(i} Ivems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

{8} Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 16,51 14.17 

{ii] Income tax related vo items that will not be reclassified to profit or hoss (4.5%] 192 (3.68) 10449 

Total comprehensive income for the period G264 61638 

Earnings per equity share 31 

{Face Value per Share Rs. in Lacsl/-} 
1. Basic 0.55 056 

2. Diluted .55 0,56 

Material Accounting Policies 1 

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For Kapoor Tandon B Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Mo. 000852C 

Maohd. Imsan Iikharul Amin 

Dircetor (Finance) & CFO Managing Director 

Divyank Migam DIN:MM3T7627 DN (e T424 

Partner 

M. Mo, 438443 
Place: Kanpur R K. Awnsthi 

Date: 30-05-2024 Company Seeretary 

46



sJPER TAMMERY LIMITED—b4——m——cocoro  :men !\ 

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED [CIN: L19131UP1984PLC006421) 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March, 2024 

A. Equity Share Capital 
Particulars Rs. in Lacs 

Balance as at March 31, 20522 107973 

Changes m Equity Share Capital due to prior period ermors - 

Restated balance as at Apral (1, 022 107973 

Changes in equity during the vear - 

Balance as a1t March 31, 20023 LAOTR.T3 

Changes in Equity Share Capital dug to prior period ermors - 

Restated balance as a1 April 01, 2023 107973 

Changes m equity during the year - 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 179,73 

B. Other Equity 

Reserve and Surplus (] - Dher Total 

Particulars ‘Capital | Securities General Retained Oither 
Reserve | Preminm Rieserve Eamings Eaqguiiy 

Balance as of March 31, 2022 17.67 270.18 4,509,232 3,139.57 - T.536.64 

Prodil for the year BO5.E9 - AOS.EQ 

Dividend Paid {53.99) {53.99) 
Other Comprebensive Income 10.49 1049 

Balance a3 ai March 31, 2023 1767 | 27018 | 445523 | 3.755.95 - #.499.03 

Profil for the year 500,72 590.72 

Dividend Paid {53.90) {33.99) 
Other Comprebensive Income 11.92 11.92 

Balance as at March 2024 17.67 | 170.18 | 440124 | 4358.59 - 04768 

Material Accounting Policles 

See accompanying nofes to the standalone financial statements 

As per our attached repart of even date For and on behalfof the Board 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Mo. 000852C 

Mahd: Imiran Hikharul Amin 

Director {Finance} & CFO Managing Director 

Divyank Migam DINM03 7627 DIN0037424 

Partner 

M, Mo, 433443 

Flace: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi 

Date: 30-05-2024 Company Secretary 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCD0G421) 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 21, 2024 
Partienlars 2023-24 2022-23 

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit hefore tax. B57.11 758.92 

Adjustmente for ) 
Depreciation’ Amortisation 67N T4 655,64 
Profii on Sabe of Property, Plint & Equipmenta {IL) (2917 

Loss on Sale of Property, Plans & Equipments 3.26 016 

Inferest incoms {35.59) {19.31}) 

Acerétion in Invesiment and Shase of profit from LLP {3.03) (504 

Expeeted Credit Loss 10,15 17.50 

Finance Cost 41284 35204 
Drferral of income on government grant (R45.82) [RLILE ] 

Remensurement of net defined benefil plons 16,51 1417 

Drerivatives Mo Provision 248 1477 
Operating profit befare working capiial changes LEIL4 1,658.38 

Changes in working copital: 

{Increase) Decresse in trade recetvables (G3R.3R) {301,960} 
{Increase) Decrease in inventorics 10030 517.89 

{Increase ) Decrease m other non currend loan [1BL3T) - 

{Increase)’ Brecrease im other non finencinl asset - (6.75) 
{Inerease )’ Decrease in other curmend finoncial asgers [2T5.51) 33276 

{Increase)’ [ecresse in other curment asicts (254,64 {16376} 

Increased {Decrense) m non current liabilitres - - 
Inerease’ (Decrease) in trade payables (Z23.413 20345 

Increase’ (Drecrease) in other financial liahilitics* 213 {114.46) 
Increases { Decrease) i uthes current liabilites 7352 {164.53) 
Inerease’ (Dhecrease) m Proviaions (.60 RENE] 

Cash gencrated from operations ILIT 1,28522 
Inopme taxes rufi.lml.ul..l'{p.ui]l. ned {152.597) {12295} 

Mot cash generated from operating sctivifics TERZ0 113224 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchise of Property Plant & 

Equipment{inchding CWIF) {1 b a5 ) {BEE3R} 

Purchase of other intungible assets {4.05) {0.12) 
Proceeds from sabe of propeny, plast and equipment 566 30,96 

Ingrease of nen-current investments {21623 - 

Inderest recerved 2559 19.31 
Oalser bank balances (Margin Money) (2, 500y Hb.63 

et cash {used ind ¢ penerated from investing activitics (1.422.37T) (T30.60) 
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeda{repayment) fromiof short-term loans aTh.65 (52341} 

Trocesds{repayment) from'of long-term loans 3997 (8,90} 

Finance costs paid (41284 (352106} 
Dhividend paid {33.99) (53.99) 

Met cash wsed in Armncing activities S5LTH (L338.36) 
INCREASE }{DENHA!!.} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (L3R 4138 

Cash and cash equivalents af ihe beginning of the year 33081 29753 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 23%.43 ERLE ] 

(refer Mote Mo. & for break-up) 

Material Acconnting Policics 

See socompanying nodes 1o the standabone financial statements 

As per our attached repont of even dale For and on belulf of the Boand 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co. 

Chartered Accountanis 

Firm: Regestration Mo, D00G52C 

Mohdd, Tmrmn Tfiikharul Amin 
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director 

DIM:O003T62T DIM:ANKIAT424 

Divyank Nigam 
Partner 

M. Mo, 438443 

Place: Kanpur B K. Awsasthi 
Diige: 30-05-2024 Company Secretary 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 
Notes forming part of financial statement for the yearended March 31, 2024 

Note 1: 

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Super Tannery Limited {"the Company") is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170 
JAIJMAL ROAD JAJMALU KANPUR was incorporated on 06.02.1984. 
The principal activity of the Company Is manufacturing and exports of Leather and leather footwear. 
The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 
The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30, 2024. 

B. MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Statement of compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (India 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance 
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied 
except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. 

2. Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
following assets and liabilities which have been measured atfair value amount: 
iy Certainfinancial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments), 

i) Defined benefit plans - plan assets 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or 
services. 
Fair value is the price that would be recejved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

3. Operating Cycle for currentand non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. 
An assetis classified as currentwhen itis: 
a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle, 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) cash or cash eguivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
Aliability is classified as current when: 
a) itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle, 
b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalentis 12 months. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

4. Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. 

5. Critical estimate and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, 
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estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

Employee benefits {estimation of defined benefit obligation) 

Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settied in the future and require assumptions to 
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit' accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of 
future benefit costs over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and 
the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions 
regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can 
have a significantimpact on the defined benefit obligations. 

Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporiing 
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and 
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment. 

Contingencies 

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the inherent in 
such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the 

Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties 
and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim the 
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults 
with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when 
it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is 

disclosed. 

Valuation of deferred tax assets 

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary 
In nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future 
recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in 
the future, planned transactions or planned optimising measures. Economic conditions may change and 
lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability. 

Fairvalue measurements 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation 
techniques, including market multiples model (Market Approach) and Capitalisation method (Income 
Approach)which involve various judgements and assumptions. 

impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (other than 
goodwill) and Capital work-in-progress 

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after 
considering current economic conditions-and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates 

and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using 
internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 
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present value, 
For the purpose of assessing impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

6. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which 
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per 
the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts 

and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets, 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and 
ready forintended use. 
Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income earhed during the project 
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under 
Capital Work - in - Progress. 
Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these 
during more than a period of 12 months. 

7. Investment property 

Property thatis held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 
Company, is classified as investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of 
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase 
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its 
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate 
variations attributable to the assets. 
An itemn of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property 
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the 
assetis derecognised. 

8. Depreciation 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 

residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line 
method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule || of the Act. 

Estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as estimated by the management is the same as 
prescribed in Schedule || and the same are as follows: 
Factory buildings - 30 years 
Mon-factory buildings - 5to 60 years 

Railway sidings- 15 years 
Plant and equipments - 15 years 
Furniture and fixtures - B to 10 years 
Computers (included under plant and equipments) - 3 years 
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Office equipments - 5 years 
Vehicles -8to 10 years 
Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised. 

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as 
owned assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease. 
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except that, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully 
depreciated in the year of purchase. 
The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

9. Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing 
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net 
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to 
the intangible assets. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, ifany. 
Galns or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the assetis derecognised. 
Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years, 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on 
April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of 
transition date. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of 
each reparting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
The amertisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such 
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

10.Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Campany estimates the 
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount. 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

11.Leases 

Company as a Lessee 

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define period of 

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefiis from use of the asset through the period of the lease 
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset. 

52



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
assetorthe site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated 
useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In 
addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the 
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or 
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in- 
substance fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise an extension option; 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease 
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date. 

Company as a Lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 
are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is 
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments 
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the term ofthe lease 

12. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for 
various categories of inventory are as follows: 
(a) Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of 

purchase (Met of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. 

({b) Stock in process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads. 
(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - At estimated realisable value, 
(d) Inter unit gods transfer — transfer price 
(e} Import Entitlement/ Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

13.Foreign Currencies 

a) Functional and presentation currency 
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

b) Transaction and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of the transaction. 
Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are 
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accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss sither under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or 
interest cost, asthe case may be, exceptthose relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items. 

14. Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates 

Investmentin associates and other related parties are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. 

15. Fair Value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measuremant is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset ortransfer the liability takes place either:; 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the 
Company far the asset or liability. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assurnptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest, 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 
use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair valug measurement as a whole: _ 

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly orindirectly observable 
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

16.Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.. the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 
Subseguent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. 
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of 
the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss. 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the 
amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in 
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inance income in the profit orloss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profitor loss. 

Debtinstruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 
A'debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 
The asset's contractual cash flows reprasent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive income (OCI) 

in n ir value th h Profit or F 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate 
companies. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as 
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and 
losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition 
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
ermarIly derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either: 
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset. 

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments {(other than debt instruments measured at 

FVOCI) and equity instruments {measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Slatement of Profit and Loss. 
Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCI| and that are accumulated in OCl are 
reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that 
are recognised and accumulated in OCI are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognitian. 

17. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss 
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e g., loans, debt securities, 

deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. 

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has notincreased 
significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. Howeaver, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss 
allowance, 

18. Financlal Liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financlal I|E|h|||t|Es at fEHT vaiue thmughpmfit or tflfis mciude financial liabilities designated upon initial 
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recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the 
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, 
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are 
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially 
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
rocess, 

imartisad cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
andloss. 

Derecognition 

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

19. Derivative financlal instruments 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on 
account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are 
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequantly 
measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried 
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss. 

20. Borrowings 

21, 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised-as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extentthat it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until 
the drawdown occurs. 
The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has 
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset 
transferred orliabilities assumed, is recognised in profit orloss as other gains/({losses). 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities uniess the group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of 
the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a 
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability 
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the 

lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to 
demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 

funds. 
Bommowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing 
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costs. 

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of 
activities relating to construction/development of the gualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such 

assetis added to the costof the assels. 
Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying 
assetis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation, 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

22. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneocusly. The legally enforceable right 
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the 
event of default, insclvency or bankruptcy of the company, orthe counter party. 

23.Claims 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts 
and legal aspects of the matterinvolved. 

24. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments 

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance 

sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 

reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific fo the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as afinance cost. 
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no' longer a contingent 
asset, butitis recognised as anasset. 

25. Government Grant 

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. 
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous 
period{s}. Such a grant is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable. 
Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or ather relevant basis. 
Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as 
they become receivabla. 
In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in 
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

26. Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Goods and services 
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Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when (a) control is transferred to the 
customer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in case of 
export sales. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and 
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers. 
Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & 

Services Tax (GST). 
Interestincome 
Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal 
outstanding. 

Dividend Income 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established. 
Export Incentives 
Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of recelpt is established. 
Insurance Claim 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitied / expected to be admitted and to the extent 
that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 

Otherincome 
Other income is accounted for en accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain and in such 
case itis accounted for on receipt basis. 

27. Employee Benefits 

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly 
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Govermnment. 

Defined Contribution Sct 

In case of provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. 
In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such 
trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the 
investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of India. 
The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved 
Trust, Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees' State Insurance 
Corporation are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense when employees have rendered 
servicesentitling them to contributions. 

Defined Benefit Scheme 

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using 

the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding 

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and return on plan assets), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur, It is included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 
Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year is encashed and balance leaves earned 
thereafter to the extent notavailed by the employees are provided in the accounts. 

28. Research and Development Expenditure 

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature 
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is capitalized as fixed assets, 

29. Taxes onincome 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions 
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance 
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using 

the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and 
deferred tax assets are ganerally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses 
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off 
set, and presented as net. 

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognhised as an deferred tax asset in the 
Balance Sheetwhenit is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 

30. Dividend Distribution 

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are 
approved by the Board of Directors, orin respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders. 

31. Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and 
cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not 
available for general use on the date of balance sheet. 

32. Earnings per share 

Basic eamnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of 
extraordinary items, if any} by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear. 
Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of 
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of 
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity 

shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the 
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be 
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. 
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares 
are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. 

33. Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the Company. 
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34. Recent Indlan Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 

Effective 1st April 2023, the Company has adopted the amendments vide Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 notifying amendments to existing Indian Accounting Standards. These 
amendments to the extent relevant to the Company's operations were relating to: Ind AS 1 “Prasentation of 
Financial Statements” which replaces the requirement for the entities to disclose their “significant” accounting 
policies with a requirement to disclose their “material” accounting policies and further pravides guidance on 
how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The 
amendments clarify that accounting policy information is expected to be material if, without it, the user of 
financial statements would be unable to understand other material information in the financial statements and 
also clarify that immaterial accounting policy information need not to be disclosed, however, ifit is disclosed, it 
should not obscure the material accounting policy information. Further, consequential amendments with 
respect to the concept of ‘'material accounting policies’ have also been made in Ind AS 107 “Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures” and Ind AS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting”. The Company has modified and 

presented its "material accounting policies” in the financial statement for the year commencing from April 1, 
2023 in compliance with the amendments made. " 

Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” which introduces a definition of 
“accounting estimates” and provides guidance to help entities to distinguish changes in accounting policies 
from changes in accounting estimates. The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company. 

Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes" narrows the scope of the 'initial recognition exemption' so that it does not apply to 
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on its initial recognition. The 
amendments apply to the transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented in the annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. In addition, at the beginning of the 
earliest reporting period presented deferred tax on all the temporary differences associated with Right-of- use 
asset and lease liabilities; decommissioning. restoration and similar liability and the corresponding amounts 
recognized as part of the cost of the related assets shall also require to be recognized as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings. The amendments do not have any material impact on the Company as it 
has already been following accounting policy of recognizing deferred tax on equal and offsetting temporary 
differences oninitial recognition of lease transactions. 

There are other amendments in various standards, including Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption if Indian 
Accounting Standards”; Ind AS 102 "Share-based Payment”; Ind AS 103 "Business Combination”; Ind AS 109 

*Financial Instrumenis”; and Ind AS 115 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which are not listed herein 
above since these are either not material or relevant to the Company. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is 
no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2024. 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITENCTN: L19I3TUPIOHPLOMIEI ) 
Sotey forming part of the Standalane Finsmcial & for the year ended March 51, 3604 

2,8 Property, plant and equipmesnt i i aca] 

Cleciric 
Panticulars Lot Framhold | Factory bakiing l::;:::nl rataigtion & | Eometurs iw:::"-" F":I:::"' Vahicla Tatal 

Tigtings 
drass carying wbus® 

fis @1 Mearch B, 2053 arian 3,068 14 6.7ad.02 045K A7.k1 RSO0 17755 SE6.54 A0 ET 
Adiditinng H FYH TR0 [T FE] B 1412 R &0 501 &3 
el Adjustinants - - 137.30 = - - 3 = L2739 

fbetaons oy - 32,33 - - - - a3 12383} 
A Wearch 13, 2033 aroag 58661 TAaL08 600 S0.58 3 19167 65393 1,155 06 
Addidiang 30 O 15258 EJA.05 2.0 004 6.11 3R.04 0051 R334 

inclhs Adjurimants . . 17617 - - S . z 27617 
ket A ; (12.61] s : f . |76.55) 1R937) 
A at March 31, 2004 35092 2,539,189 B,172.70 236,00 50,52 7033 23081 GAT. T 82,30530 

Accwsnlited Do preciation® 

As @1 March 31, 2032 - 33921 1 3E0.87 103.7E 39,60 30,08 106,75 ECY 3,381 38 

Additiong - 4518 44020 E.80 i} 0.R1 2211 7253 SOR.O% 

el Bddjusimans - : 57,14 - - - - - 57.14 

i H (13.24] 3 : = F 1043) 1357 
A5 wt March 31, 2023 - 3E4.37 1.E844.97 180.58 40,80 48 EY 11B.3 axa 3,962 76 

Additions - 7123 442,68 769 L.59 B.71 1857 4542 59695 

i As Adjunimants - 7319 - - - - - 7313 

Dkt - %85| - - - - {MES) |B050) 

Bis @t March 31, 2024 - 55 B6 3,337.75 118.27 4235 57.58 14B53 39B.58 4,572 40 

St Carrying amount 
Bs a1 March 31, 2032 31120 1,943.93 £ A427.15 101.80 8.1 2595 7083 21455 711659 

A5 @ March 31, 2033 33092 2,000.24 A436.13 A06.41 9.78 2440 62741 208.72 717330 

As @l March 31, 2004 35092 208353 4.534.05 107.73 17.13 2185 Bl.1E 28E20 7,732 80 

2.b] _Other Intasgible assats 
[ Wit 

Particulars Seltware . Trademnark TOTAL 

1R, In lascs] IR, In lacs] |Rs. In kacz) {Rs. In facs) 
Gross carying walus® 
Az a1 March 312022 6.25 0.ET 155 B&7 

Edditions 212 012 

Dwrhations 

As 3t March 31, 2023 5.37 .67 155 B.73 
Addiions 3313 3328 

Deketons & 

A5 at March 31, 2024 3.65 .57 155 1207 
Accuerelated Dej ad 

| s 2t March 31_ 2022 .58 .47 [T 1m 
Additions a2l QIL (g £ 045 

Deietces 
A5 a1 March 31, 2023 0.B9 058 nrE 118 

Addiions 55 055 

|Deletions 
mumhgg,‘m 1.48 0.58 0.7E IES | 

Mt Carrging amount 
mam:hsg‘:m 5.57 0.0 053 B.A% 

A er{h?!;!flfl- 5.28 0.z3 T B33 | 

Az a1 March 31, 2024 8.17 .28 T a1z 

"&b deemed coIr o5 per WORAS 100, 

ek (i Assets piven as secury for borrowings 

Al tre Hiems of Property, Pant and Equipment of the Compasy hase besm gien bo lenders 22 securgy for varlous bomowing faclities 

§ii] The manzsgement has carned gut an exercee of idesiifang the asset that may have been impairsd, doning the sear, in respect of each cash generaticg wnd. On the bass of review caried out by the 

rranagement, thers was no Impairment ioss on fued messts during the year, 

2.4} Capitab-Whark-in Progress (CWIRY 
] Agpaing dchaduls for Capiabwirk-n prugrass A March 31, 2004 s at March 31, J03% 

Partulss Artarusl in WP far & gariedd of Fotal Armzaitl in CWI fer 3 piriod of 

T tha 1 year 1- 2 ywar -3 ypan Worr than & pean Lews than 1 ywar 1-2ymany 1-1yeary Ftnrn than 1 yaars 

] Poojects in pdogres 4.7 B3 45 6672 115.28 133950 33345 E2ETE g3 11038 

[} Prejiits tmmgurnr iy ol . 

Tetal 0407 3E3.45 aln.7E 11536 133850 333 45 BRE.T1 Lo3 e H 11¥5a8 

10 OWIP. wiase comphelion is owerdue of has esceeded it 03t Compared 50 ks prigingl plan Hil 1] 

.4 o . —— s i CWIP] il Ml 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED {CIN: L19131UP1984PLOMDBAZ ) 

mlurn“#lulnfl fah Fimancial 52 for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3 Financlal Assets: Investmsemts - Mon Corrent 
Parinculars A at March 31, 2024 Az ot March 31, 2023 

Mo, of Ha, of 

Shares Ris.Im e Sharcs Ris.in lacs 

Equity Shares. Lngmoted 

A INVESTMENT IN SUBSIIMARIES 

{i} BUPER TAMMERY [LLE.} LIMITED 

Oindinery Shares of GBP | each filly paid up SAll 152 2,100 Lz 
(il AARIFI TANNERS LIMITED 

Equity Shares ol Rs. in Lacs K- each fully paid up 1204366 1k 24 1,205 366 14424 
iy SUPER CORPORATION LIMITED 

Equity Shares of Be. in Lacadib- cach filly pasd up 2600 Lai FLELE 160 
{iv] SECURE SAFETY LIMITED 

Byusity Shares of Rs. in LacsHb- ench fully paid up 2,300 3403 045,30 9493 
{¥) Super linla SRL 

Omlinary Shares of Enra 1/ gach Rally paid up 090 0.75 ) 75 
{vil HX London Fashions Pvi. Lid. 

Equity Shares of e 104~ each flly pasi 1600 [ - 1 

{viil Momcer Investisent Foco 

Equity Shares of Re. 1K= each fally paid | 1374 . i 

Total - A ZBT.TH 2ol .04 

B. OTHERS 

{ii  SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED 
Byuity Shares of Bs. in Lacs1i- cach fully paid 5000 0.50 5,000 50 

(iil AL-HARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED 
Bouity Shares of Re i Lagsl{b- each fully paid 20,000 ZAny 20,100 Lo 

i SVIT PROMENT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED 

Equity Shares of Re. in Lacs - each fully paid £.500 1414 #,500 147 
{iv] [NDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (INDLA) LIMITED 

Equity Shares of R, in Lacs 1= cach fidly paid R000 0.74 %000 074 
(v} KANPLUR LIMMAD LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT O0. LTT: 

Equiry Shares of Re i Lacallh- ech fully paid TEAND 750 TE N 1.5 

{vil LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT 

Fyuity Shores of Riin Lacs1i- each fully paid = = 10,410 1.0d1 

{uil} JAIMAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSDCIATION 
Byuity Shares of Rs. in Lacs1il- each fully paid 26,200 262 26,200 262 

Toeal « B 14.44 1553 

C. INVESTMENT TN PARTNERSHIFVLLP FIRM 
(i) BOVINI] FRILLS LLP 

15% in the capilal of the LLP 075 075 

Share of Reserves and Sarples of the LLP F0T 27.58 

Towal - i1.41 FLEY) 

Equity Shares Qreoted 

B i) Seperhowse Lid, 

Eyuity Shares of Bs. in Lacs V- gach fully paid 5200 052 5200 52 

Tueal < 1 052 [LEF) 

Tugal [ A+ Ase MiR 42 

Agprepsae Book Vakue of Quated Investments 0:52 52 

Marke Vahee af Quoted Investmens 1ol 1225 

Agpregate Book Vaboe of Unguoeed Investments apr2y 27957 

Aggregse prowision for dinvinution in value of lnvestments 

Rs. m Lacs 

. ) Sharing Capidal a5 an Capital as om 

Nanse of Partmers Ratin 31.03.2074 3183, 2023 
| Mir.; Shahbhaz Khan 534 275 175 

2 Suger Tannery Limissd 15% s 0TS 
3 M Mfikhanal Asis 15% 075 075 

4 Mr. ighal Ahsan 15% 475 B35 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L15131UP1984PLO00BAT1) 
Motes forming part of the Standalone Fi iz for the year ended March 31, 2024 

4 Fimamclal Assat: Luoans - Mo Carrent 
Particulans A5 at Manch 31, 2004 s st March 31, 2023 

Rs. Infacs Rz In lacs Bs in lacs R, In ks 

Liuaes and Advances 
i Subsidharios 

Secured Considered Gond . 

Unseeired Conaldered Good 411 aM 2 

Unsecured which bave significant increase in credi risk - = 

Unsecured credis imnpuired - - 

(refer Nate wo, 35 for demila) 41168 M2 

Tital 41169 PRl b 

5 Ohiler Finmmcinl Asaeis - Non Current 

Particulars #s at harch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. In lacs Rz n lacs. 
Unsotnred Considirod Cooml 

Semrity Deposiis 4161 4160 

Taital 4160 A1 

6 Inveniories (At cost or met reafisable value whichever is lower) 

Particilan A5 at March 31, 2034 AL ar March 31, 2023 

Rs, Inbacs Bi in lacs 

Haw Materinls | 2E2.6R 14TLTE 

Wark im Progress. 2. 11848 1,95038 

Fimished Goouls T4, 44 | R334 

Chemnical, Companents and spore pors 136193 142062 

Waste & Scrap ZdEh 2h.Eh 

Tetal 5 450.39 555590 

{a) Al the Invernnes have boen lypothocuted 2 sreunty for various workmy focilsics fom bamks. 

by Dwring the vear Bs. in LogsMNil was d &5 expense rils write-down of mvenikiry 

7 _Fi inl Assets - Current: Trmde Heceivahle 

Farticulars A5 at March 31, 2004 a5 at March 31, 2023 

R, I bacs Rz, in lacs R, bn lacs Rs, bn lacs 
Soooned Considoned Good . . 

Usecured Cansidered Good SSHT 28 5,554,06 

Umsecumad which have signiticam nerense i credin risk - - 
Urseoured credit imgpaired 12274 112.61 

i 0 14 545167 

Lesa: Impalemen) Lods Allowanecs (ECL) 12076 112.61 

Tutal E?’.’fl 533080 

tn) All the Trude Receivables have been hypathecaied as seourity i vanaos working fscilities frm bands. 

Trade Rectivable apemp Schodule: (A in Lacs 
Parisculars Bod Duse Dutstarding from due datedate of transaction Taial 

Less than i manths | year - 2 year - Bure than 
& monhs -1 year 2 year 3 year 3 years 

As al March 31, 2024 

Unilespuied Tmde Receivahles 

(1) Comsaderad Gl 195155 207276 730,92 14015 - L &89 508728 

{411 Which have significant increase 

in credil risk a0, 7 2050 1218 - Har 12276 

(k) it mpakred - 

Drisputed Trade Receivmbles 

(1] Comsidered Good = - - = = - 

i) Which have segnificant incrzwsy 
I eredin Hisk . . - . F * 

(i) Credt i pamed = = = = s = 

Tatal 195355 303348 J51.43 16833 = 200,36 A0 L84 

A ol Manch 3], 2023 

Unidespuried Trade Recervahles 

(1] Comsadenad Gioed 41941 4.336.61 50249 4.5 - TS 533006 

{11 Which have significant increase 

in credit risk < s 
() Credat mpkred - 106,14 1,08 LR | 45K 1NLal 

Disputed Trade Recervables 

{1} Comsidered Grosl = = = - - L 
{ii] Which have stgnificant increase 

th eredin ik . - - . - . 

(i) Credat anpawmed - - - = = - 

Tetal 41%.42 444175 583,57 s07 = B, B SAS1ET 



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLC006421) 
Notes farming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

8 Financkal Assets - Corrent: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars As &t March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. In lacs s In lacs s, In lacs As. bn lacs 

Balances with banks 

GEL SUFPENT ACCOUIIE 16346 3617 

on EEFC account G504 16.35 

228.50 nBrs 

Chegues and Draft on Hand/Remittance in Transit 4.73 

Cash on hand G20 729 

Tatal 13943 339.81 

9 Flnancial Assets - Current: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivabanis 

Particulars Ac it March 31, 2024 As ar March 31, 2023 

Rs. In lacs Rs. In-lacs 

Margin micney deposits (restricted, held a3 lien against bank guarantees) G91.448 ERER 

Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend 1165 T 

Total 70313 44163 

10 Oiker Current Financial Assets 

Particulars As &t March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. I lacs Rs. In Lacs 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Export Incentive Receivable 36341 23677 

Balance with GoviRevenue autlwriny 036 15495 

Total G6T.2T 39176 

11 Oiher Current Assets 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023 
Rs. o lacs Re.dn lacs 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Advances 6 Trade Creditors 143246 1,189.23 

Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for valoe to be recerved 99 30 10581 

Prepaid expenses 59.67 4512 

Interest receivable from WOS 328 

Total 159480 L340.16 

12 Equity Share Capital 
Partieulars As at March 31, 2024 #s at March 31, 2023 

Wan, ol Mo of 

Shares R, i Lacs Shares B m Lacs 
Authorized 
Equity Shares of Rupes 1/-cach 1 TR [RICEE 110,010, 0000 1, 100,10 

Issued 
Equity Shares of Rupeé 1/-zach 107973360 1.079.73 107.573, 360 L0773 

Subscribed and fully prid-up 
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/-each 107 973360 1,079.73 107,973,360 107873 

e e L ——_——— 

Total 1,079.73 1,879.73 
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SUPER TANMERY LIMITED (CIN: L19T31UPI988PLOO0RAR]) 
Motes forming part of the Standalona Financlal 5t for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(A Recancilintion of the her of equity shures and shore capital 

Particulars A at March 31, 2004 Az at March 31, 2023 
Mo of Shares Hs in Lacs Nir. of Sharys Be I Lacs 

Sutseritved amd fully poidup egriny shares 

Cratstanding at the begimnimyg of the yoar 0T RTLE 10973 L7933 360 107973 

Shores issued dunng the vear = = L. - 

Chatstamling nt the end af the yenr IT AT 60 187573 ML 973 60 1,570, 73 

(B Detail of Shares held by the promoiers: 

As gt March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023 Chanpes during ihe year 

5. Mame of the Promater. Mo af %5 of Shares M af ¥ o Shares Chamges during the vear 

M. Sharce held Shares hedil Wi ool ghares L. 

1 VEQUARLIL AMIN | 7.RR1. 900 To56% - 1 7.ER3 900 16.56% = 

1 IQBAL AHEAN G142 502 R4 0,142 503 AT - 

3 IFTIEHARLL AMEN EEITTIEE B41% 9.0R0432 241% - 

4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 4 5000000 4.25% 4 590,000 i 25% - 

3 UMATRLIL AMIN 4 550000 435 4.390,000 4.29% . . 
G TANVEERUL AMIN 4,500,000 AT A0 41T - - 
T FARIA FATIMA i1 16289 FRI% 4464912 414 (1R, 623) -0L32% 

& SOPHLA AMIN AASE AN RI0% RASH 400 20 . . 
@ ISMAT HMAL JOBLR LEA% 50K2 RO LHi 
10 RUMANA AMIN 2431400 Z44% 2653 A0 1ad% - - 

Toaal - HIATT TN RATS &3 AI646 SR (340, 625) A 

As at March 31, 2023 s at barch 31, 2022 Chanprs during the year 
5 Mame ofthe Promaier o af o Bhnres N aff o ul Shares Chenges during ihe year 

BE Shares heldd Shares el Mo af ghires ks 

I VEQUARLIL AMIN 1T HH3 500 16368 17 R3S 16 Ay - * 
1 MBAL AHSAN 142502 BATY. 0042502 RATH - - 
3 OTIEHARUL AMIN SOROAR2 Bl 4.0ED A2 EAl% - - 

4 MUBASHIRLT AMIN 4580000 A5 430,000 425, . 
5 UMAIRUL AMIN 450,000 4359 4,500,000 4.25% - 
& TANYEERUL AMIN o 5000000 41 o S0 O i 1T - 

T FARHA FATIMA d.4nd 202 4. 14% 4 SH) OO 41T L35, 0K 00 

& SOPHLIA AMIN J A58 400 3,20% A ASHA00 320 = 

% ISMAT IQBAL F0RLR0Q 2B 3,02 200 2 RE%: - 

10 RUMAMNA AMIN 2niiA00 244% 2635400 144% - - 
Tl - 63416346 SHT4% 0 61461434 SETHY. (X5 ERED0) - 

() Ttirmis aind wights attached te cquity shares 

The company has andy one: class of equily shares having o par vilise af Re. 1 per shane. Each hidder of squty shares 13 entitled o one vale per ghare. The company 

degtames mid ps dividends m Indien Ropece. The devidend proposed by the Board of Direcioss (& subgect (o the approval of the shanchalders 1 the ensabig Annsal 

Im the evewt of ligwidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entriled 10 receive remaming assets of the company, ofier distribarion of all preferential 

amuanis. The distribution will be in mropertion (o the mumber of equity slanes bold by the shancholders 

() Dretails of sharehslders hohling nsore thin 5% shares in the company 

Sharchodder's Namo Bs at March 31, 2024 £ at March 33, 2023 

e of Slires i} Hon ol Slheees k] 

inl Mz, Vegarul Amin |7, A3, HH 1h.56% (PR LER L | 65 6% 

(h)  Mix. kgbal Ahsan 0,142,402 BATHS @, 142,502 EATHG 

ek M, Etikharul Adnin 140,432 B4 wan,412 HA% 

12324 M2 
(M, of Shares) {Ka, of Shares] 

(B} Exquity Shares alboiied s fally pald pursasnt s conirscsls) withoan pavment being received in cosh WIL WIL 

durimg the immediately preceding five veans 

{Fy  Equity Shares allotied as fally paid ap Bonas Shares daring the mmediniely preceding five vears WL HIL 

(01 Equity shares buy-back i tmumsedinaly precedig five years HIL ML 

(H) Sharcs held by hobding ulemare bolding compasy sod'or theer subsidismes’ associaes KIL WIL 

1N} {a} The Board af Di afl the Comy _._Ilum-_~ fed & fimal dividend of Re, 005 per equiny share (5% f2ce vakne of Be | each fior the vear ended March 31, 

2024, suhject o the approval of Sharchobders. 

(i) The company baq paid finl dividend of R 005 per equity share{53e) Guee vole of R0 sach for the yuat ended March 31,2023 
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Motes Farming part of the Standalone Finamcial St s for the year-ended March 31, 2024 

13 Obver equity 

Pariiculars A5 3t March 31, 2024 A5 at Warch 31, 2003 

R, b |6 Rs.in lacs 

(a) Copiml Reserve 1767 1767 

(k) Securties Premium 2 1R ITLIE 

€} Gemonal Reserve 4,400 24 445523 

(i} Retined Earmings 4352 59 315585 

Total 904768 AR5 

{A) Capital Reserve 

1t represemt the gain of capital natsne which muinly isclude the excess of valne of net assets scquired aver considerstion pasd by the company for basiess 

(b} Securitics Premism 

Segurities premivm reserve is used 1o record the premium oo issue of shares and 5 wtilized in sccordance with the: pravisions of the Aot 

(C) General Reserve 

Mnndatory trnsfer to general reserve is not reguired. ander the Compasies Act, 20035, 

([Y) Retuined Enrmings 

Retnined eamings are the prafits that the Company has eamed (6] dase, |45 any transfers o genernl reserve, dividends paid ar otber distribtions ont of reserves o 

14 Flunmclal LinbiBtics - Non-current: Borrowlngs 
Farticulsm A a1 March 31, 7024 Aa ot March 31, 2023 

Bs. In lacs B in lacs 

Seenred 
Rupie loans 
Term lazns frinn banks - INR . = 

WVehicle Termy loans from banks - TNR B8 4455 

Tulal B4, Bl 44,83 

Fipaymment Teoms: 

{a] The classification of kians between current liabdlitics and non-current liabilities contisoes based oo nepay schedule under respective ngreements as 0 loans 

tivve sen recalled due o nos complaance of conditions undee any of the koan agreemants, 

by Interest ol Loaesd avaibed from banks i INF canry mberest raie mnging from [0:.05% 10 1165 % (March 31, 2023 HLES% fo 1 165%) for term lisns. 
fe]  Scheduled : Conkrachasl ropa nis i case of lomns from hanks {including Curreni moiudiies disclosed under aiher Current fimancial lnbilities: 

Particnlnrs As i March 31, 2004 fis at Warch 31, 2003 

Rs, im Lice R, in Locs 

Lipoa thmes s 5.4 59.79 

Between three 1o Gve years | 065 958 

Civer five years - - 

Refer mote 39 i) (1) & (1) on Iederest rate risk and Ligeidity Risk respeciively. 

Becurity detnils;- 
T Lean ofhur than Vehicle Liams 
Aforesaud] Term Louans are secured by hypotl ) eape of company's moveshle nnd im-muvenble propertics. Furiber secuned by the porsunal gusraniee 

of promiter Directors of' the company and Asnl e Lid. which |8 the subsilsaey of the company. 
Vehicle Loans 
Segured by hyputhoeation of wehicle fnanged. 

13 Deferred tnx linbilikies (Net) 

Prrticulars A5 &t March 31, 2024 A5 at March 31, 2023 
Ris. b lacs Rz in lacs 

Tary effiect uf ifem contrturtny deferred i Habiliy 
Borruwings meeaisured st amanized gost 

O dilTieremes borwien book halance mnd e balames of finad ndses BR4IS T22R4 

On Miodd valmtion of derivatives and other items 19H.T] 136,540 

1 R S R30.T4 
T effect of dteme contifuniag defirven i mrse 

Expenses allowshle en paymest basis and other ibesns 27146 VA 19 

Total Tax effect of Rems constiriing deflmed tay apses 27 i 104,10 
el Deferred Tax Linhiity &1 150 75155 
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SUPER TANMERY LIMITEDYCIMN: L1903 1UP19B4PLEDOEAZ1) 

Wotes forming part of the Standalone Financial § far the year ended March 31, 2024 

16 Ober Nen-curront Leasbitithes 

Parficislars Az 51 March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Ris. Rs. 

Dheferned Revunise 

fifl Grant under IDELS 1537 94.£2 

EPCG Ohligations Aa2.00 431,73 

Tlal TI4IY 51655 

fa]  Government CGrast usder [DLS, tee dofirned grant necme I8 tecognizad in Smnement of Proti and Loss o s systemarie baeis over e asefal life of sseeron 

‘which suzh gram s received pahjeet w complimes of other lerma & conilitions of the scheme, 

(B Unider EPCG seleane, the Company (s comminied to expon preseribed tmis of the dury saved on imgoet of capital goods wver a specified persod of tine spam 

fiam mninesining average export growth, In cace sach commitments sre got met, the Company would be required 1o pay the duly saved along with inierest to 

the regulatory outharities. The defieved gmnd income i recognieed iiv Saatement of Profil asd Logs on @ sysiematic hoses over the periods in which the reladed 
performance obligatioos are falfilled. 

17 Fimamcial Liabilities - Current! Short term Borrowings 

Particulars As at March 31, 2004 A= at March 31, 2023 

Rs. i lacy R in lacs 

Socuted 
‘Warking Capital Lonn from banks 

Rupee Lanns 

i Cash Crndit 43240018 419,50 

i) Packmy Credit 4 168 4R 4,521,329 

(iii} Advmnce agninsi bills send for collection 2D 4 1LAT1LHE 

7 HES fB1261 

Cumrent marmrities of long texm bommowings 2.0 24.54 

ither Shost term Borrowings 

Foreign Curmency lnan 

() Seamnd bry line of Ciedn SBLC) a20a0 134 44 

Tetal T.TAL4 &, 771.59 
—_ _ 

Amount ol dofaalr as on the Balance Shee doe: 

{a) Repayment of loan HIL MIL 

(b Imigrest on Losn NIL HIL 

(A} Becuris 

‘i'u'vul:h'i:j Capitnl Loans are primarily secured by hypothecativn of present and fiture Corremt Assets and Actiomable Clasms {viz, Invendories, imde receivahle ¢ 

book debds, oulstanifing menies, receivable claims, bills and materials in Armmad). 

These ure farther eollmerally secured by extension of charge over movesble and jmmeveahle propenties of the company. 
Further secured by persomal gunrantee of promaler directar(s) of the compary and Aorifi temmers Bd. which is the sehsadiary of ihe compamy. 

i} Seamd by Lineg of CredigfSELC) ane primarity secared by kypothecation of Plant ass machinery and raw maierial and are famher seoured by personal guaranies 
afl proanuer . direcion s} of the compuny and Asrifi tanners led. which & the subsidiary off the compamy. 

{c Raeof Imerest 
Warking capltal cradit fcibises carry Intiresi rites ranging fom 2105 60 10,1 5%, 

1K Fimnocial Linkilities - Canrest: Trade Payable 

Particulars A5 at March 31, 2024 A at March 31, 2023 

R, RS 

(n} Tatal Cutstanding Dues to micr md small enterprises {refer note helow) G840 T3 
(k) Taal Culsianding Doc 1o panies othis than miceo and small ememprise A.T14.55 3AT435 

Tatal 331333 324573 

Tmde Paynble agemng Bchedule: B, I Inos 

Particulars - Mo Due Qutstanding From due date/date of iransaction Taial 

Lz ilun | yuaer ~ 2 yar - Mg lhan 

| year 2 year J.year 3 years 

As it March 31, 224 
Unnilispned Dhaes 
(1 MSME {Micro and Small Entities) BlE AR - . M s N 48 

(i) Cribers 155652 103918 (AN 1565 1553 2,TI4.85 
Drisputed Duws 
(i) MEME {Micro and Small Entities) - - - - - - 

(i) Crhers - - - = = = 

Total L 16400 1,059.18 £8.17 15.65 1553 331333 



1144 4504 - - - TR 
92548 150622 4935 IL1R M5z IAT435 

950.93 155513 4.95 LIH 3452 35T 

Medie! The company has neguested confimution frem Supples reganding their repsirnpon (A8 ing of Meorandum ) andar the Mecro, Small snd Mediam Enterprises 

Dievelomment Act, 2000 (ike MSMED Act), Acconling lo the information svailable with the company, tbe ollowing disclopares hns bees made in respect of dues 1o 

Partigulars Azat March 31, 7024 Az at March 31, 2023 

R, In lacs Ai In lacs. 

() Principal amoani and interesi due thereon remnining unpadd o any sapplicr at the 

Principal Amonint [T TL3E 
Tterest duie o above - 1.1 

(hb Amoamt of inserest paid by the company n termes of segton 16 of the MSMED Act, MIL HIL 
abang with the amount of the paymeni made to the supplier beyonil the sppoinesd duy 

Ie ) Ampamt of interesi dise amd payable [or the period of delay in moking paymeni MIL NIL 

{which have beon paid bat beyomd the appointed diny during tho year) bal withaut 

(i) ah e of etenest aecroed and remalning wnpdbd mothe end of the yesr 5.6 S 

(e 1 e macvun of further mierest remaining due and payable even im the succesding 
venrs, until such date when the interest dses shove are actunbly paid 1o the small MIL MIL 

ememrise, [or the parpose of disall ce of & decuctible expenditure under section 

1% Fimanclal Lisbdlities - Carrewt: Otbver Flaancinl Lisbilives 

Particulan AL & March 31, 2024 A4 &1 March 31, 2023 

Bis. in lacs B in lacs 

(b} Bk ovendrafl o banks 21.23 38.40 

() Uncloimed Dividend * 1165 T 

(d} Crher Lishikities 915927 GRS 

Tatal 25215 73402 

= Ry i fdern] either nod claimed o kept m abeyance i acconfanss with Sectian 126 of the Companies Adt, 2013 

20 Chibwer Currest Lishilties 
Particulars A5 #t barch 31, 2024 A4 ot March 31, 2023 

B I lacs Rs in lacs 

(a) Advance from cusiomers 931.16 10625 

b} Adhvmnee l&lh‘lfl sale af fived assets. bk 1 37500 

(21 MTM valuation on forward cover hiu kil A3z 

Telal L S19.47 

Il Curreni Liabilities: Provisirm 

Particulars Az at barch 31, 2004 Az at March 31, 2023 

Rs. b lacs AE In lacs 

Provissan for Grtuity 11451 I14.21 

Provieson for tastion T4 I8 1] 

Tatal L1264 21111 

11 Hevense from operutbons 
Particulars A at barch 31 2024 A5 at March 33, 2033 

Rs. b lacs A n lacs 

(n) Sales /Income from aperations 

(1] Sabes { Expoanh 145242 17,084.38 
{ii} Exchinge Fluctuation on Sales (Expart] 19881 3919 

(il Sales {Imdigenous) 195019 3,545.72 

{refer Mot (2) below for beeak-up) 2161042 156029 

bl Oriher operating fevenue 

Expont Incemives {refer Mode {d) bebow for break-up) | 0re x4 245.81 

Revense fhwn operation (grogs) I26RT.T1 I, (1] 

1£) Breskup af Sakes: 

TFimished Leathor (imcluding Spdit , soddlery & other rolnted) a416094 11,641,985 

Leather Shoe and companenss. 12.193.48 9.927.35 
Tatal ) 2101042 21,4030 
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Motes forming part of the Standaloma Financlal 5 for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(d} Deetails of pther apefing ruvenis 
Expon Incentives 

Dty [raw Back 24627 (] 

Oiber expart meentivesTivenoes 233.02 248.73 

Tatal 1 07928 ERLLE] 

21 Onber Ineome 

Particulurs A5 &t March 31, 2034 Az at March 31, 2033 

R bn laes Re In lacs 

in) Iniereat ingoms 
= frum Figed Depusl with Banks 25.5% 1%31 

= Imerest received an Income Tax = 5.93% 

= Imerest recelved from WOS iz - 

[k} Profit on Sale of Property Plant & Equipuments 021 2917 
i) Miscellanemuss Income 350K 45104 

(d} Defierred revenue om EPCG & 1DLS Subsidy 145,82 [LULE 
2] Share of profil from the LLF 12 523 

Tatal i3 i 28 

24 Copl af naberial comsmmd 

Particulams Az a1 March 31, 2004 A5 mt March 31, 2033 

Rs bn lacy Rz in lacs 

tal Row Hide for sole HT.HT 4] 

(b} Raw Hide for chrosic 3,33748 2387 
(e] Wet Blue Lealber Chrome #1406 277.26 

{d} Lipper fior safety shags | 62987 A0l 58 
(2] Finieh leather for shoe upper amd shoes LA A3 200 T 

() hers 2H5.A] 076 

R Materisl consunsed TEREEA fi.fll.fi_fl 

Chemleals comsumned 16372 4, 102:68 

Stomes & Spares comsumed 1LA1RTY | ®h3.&9 

Tatsl ugus 1254019 

25 Purchase of stock in trinde 

Pariculars A= ot March 31, 2004 Az at March 31, 2023 

Fs. bn lacs A5 In lacs 

in) Fmighed Lenther (imcluding Splith LAl T L5MhES 

() Shoe Upper M52 Al 

Tatal PLERY lal.fifir 

26 Incroaseidedrense in Invembories 

A= ot March 31, 2024 Bzt March 31, 2023 

Bs. bn lacs Rs In lacs 

at the co of the year 
Fimished Cioods 1A 54 1, 3790 
Wark In provegs 125050 2,293 

Wasie & Scrap I0LRG 11R.51 

TOTAL'A” 305458 3, T90LGH 

Invemiories st ihe e ol the year 

Fimighex (ioads TdE a4 1,083 34 
Wark in process L1840 1,541,3% 

Wasie & Scrap 2i R HLEA 

TOTAL'H 1R0).TH 305454 

Dreereasulncroase) {n Stecks (A-H) 162.80 T3t 14} 
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27 Employee benefit expense 
Particulas A at March 31, 2024 A Bt March 31, 2023 

R in lacs R in lacs 

Salary and Bowis %54 58 TH43 

DHrectars Ramumeration 598 .98 

Couribagtion o Provident amd sther funds A2 THED 
Comtribaton o Ciemery Fond 5792 svaz2 

Workmen omd Sinif Wellore expenses .50 5056 

Tutal T35 T 

1% Fimampe tnst 

Particulars s at March 31, 2024 A ot March 31, 2023 

R bn lacs Rs. in lacs 

Inferiest o 

- Termi Loan k) hE2 
- (Mhers Ea L] 345 14 

41284 5206 

Bank Charges EREL] THES 
Foruipn Bank Chirges 13.17 14.72 

Tatsl +61.EY 44563 

1% Depriciatien amd Amertisafion Expenses 

Particulars A= ot March 31, 2004 Az at March 33, 2003 

Ri. bn lacy Rein lacs 

DeprecintionAmontisation an Tengible Assets AT G555 

Amorisatsan of Innngihle asets Lk (k44 

Tatal HTILT4 5564 

A0 OHbver expsis 

Particulars As at March 31, 2004 Az at March 31, 2023 

Rs. bn lacs Rs. In facs 

Banuisciurimg Expenses 

Jobs Wark Chirpes 1.450.42 1, 284.04 
Perwir amd Fual 6452 AT 

Pallatian Contral Expenses 0L HS L1a3l 

Repains snd Muinsenance 

~ Bailiding 17166 11764 

= Mochmery 145 54 142.51 

FELEE aan.n 
Salling dnd Distribution Expenses 

Freight, Hundling and Ciher Sales and Distribartson. Expenses | At 1t 1,221.3% 

Commmniesivn on Sabe FELEL] 101,47 
Advertisemunt sl Publcity 1531 A5 

Bad Diekrts » Provissan write off 10764 oy 

Expected ercid lnss: AR L] 
| A6E.64 37218 

Esmhlishment Expenses 

Rent 296 11,33 
Ranes and Taxes HER2 5244 

Imsusnce ARG 41.21 

EACAG.C Premium T4h0 T4 
Commuiiiation cost el | s 

Travelling and Conveyanoe 276068 120.72 

Repairs snd BMainsenanee - Cithers 47.74 G2 
Trmiing and Sttionery 1278 1166 
Legal and Mrofessiomal Charges TelL §5.80 

Aunilitni's Resuesmation {refer Mote (n) below | 345 LR 
Misceflaneois Expenacs. 194.K3 F92.80 

Research & Development Expensis- 272 540 

(AR Expendimme 1344 LRl 
Subscriptivn and Donation 10,73 1202 

Lass on Sake of Propenty Plant & Equipments. 126 LN 

Drivmnition in valse of lnvestment o0 L 

70



sJPER TAMNMNERY LIMITED—b——m—m—m—m—m—crcov=- Y>> . 

Exchange Floctustion 4301 42 
STTS0 #2777 

Tetal SAT083 487122 

{n) Auiitor's remunenation comprises: 

As audiior 343 kR 
Tuotal 345 1M 

Partsenlars s at Barch 31, 2024 Az atWarch 31, 2033 

R, In lacs Rz in lacs 

31, Earmimp per share (EFS) 

{a} Profit for the vear (Rs. m Lacs) 50072 5 50 
{lsh Weighted mverage mummber of squity shares for the parpose of' 107 57536000 107975, 3640, 061 

af calculation af Base anil Dilused EPS 
e} Mominal value of equiry shares (Rupees] (WU .00 

(d} EPS- Bagic and dilused (Rupécs per ghire | 055 D5E 

3k Capdinl and ether commitnents 

I Estimaed yalee of eontmets reennining s be execused om capial 

aceoani (ot of advanccs) 29700 VELT] 

ii.  Oiher Commitments NIL HIL 

33, Comtingend Babilties 

(0 Conmmpent Linbilinles in respest of: 
da} Letter af Crodil sponed and siststanding 12783 65331 

) Claines againsi the company not acknoow|edged as debs HIL MIL 

. Discbosire pursnant 10 Ind AS 19 "Employee Bemelin™: 
{a} Defined Cantribotion Plan 

The emilovees af the Company are members of' a stnfe-mansged retirement benedis plass numely Pravident flnd and Persion and Emplogee Stie Insurance 
{ES1) operated by the Government of Indix. The Company is required o coniribute a specified percentuge of paymoll costs io the retirement bene{it nnd ES] 

schemes. 

Thi saly ubligation of i compamy with respect to sach retiromaest and other benafit plan = 1o make the spocifiod cantributions, 

The Cirmpany has necognized the falkowing amoums in the lneoime Sasemient dussng t v under Cominbutson to saall provident and otlser fisds (refir nose 

I 
HE in Lacx 

Partl 2324 232 

Emgliyver’s costribumon w PF and FFF 68,10 n24H 

Ei wer’s contribubion o ESEC 18.02 1632 

Tatal 8612 TR 

{b) Defined Benefit Plon 

The employess Crmiuiry Fund Scheme, which i o defined benedit plan, is monoged by the truss mainmined with LIC, The present valie of ohligaion & 
determaned hased om actunrinl valuation wsing Prajecied Unit Credst Meshod, which recognises ench period of service as giving mise to sdditional unit of 

employee hanefit entitlement and measures ench mnit separmely ta baild up the ficad obligation. 

Bs. in lacs 

Parisculars Gratulty {Funded) 

s/31/a084 
Gratuity [Funded) 

s/ 
{A)  Muovements in present value of defined benefit obligation 

Cihligmicms as st begining of the year 

Cumrens service cos 
Ieterest sl 

Cunailment costcredit) 

Setilement costieredin 
Camend service contribation- employes 

Tast Service Cost 

Plan anseelneni 
Avceuisitons 

Remeasurement {or Acisarial {gain)Loss] arising fram 

- change i demwapraphic sssumption 

= change in financial assemption 

= EXJICTIENCE VITiance 

- others 
Benedits pail 

Presen wubee of defined henefil ohlsgation as ot end of the year 

186 

(1932 

(196T) 

36807 

(LR} 
{1357} 

(30,16} 
340,28 
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{8 Movements in e fale vabue of plan s 

Fair value of plan assets ol beginming af the year 12608 13436 

Investment Income a1 a5 
Rt om plin assans, excluding smounl recognisad in nel Inkees axpense O3 (05T} 

Actual comiributions by the employer ' 3r 12491 

Actunrinl geinos on plan asseis - - 

Emplevee contribation = - 

Henedies paid (19.61) (30 16) 
Falr vakog of plan asses s it end of the year 15426 126008 

{01 Amount recognized m the balance sheet 
Present value of definind benolin obligstion s an eod of the yee 369.07 3023 

Fair value of plan assets as.at end of the yoar 154.26 12608 

Fumded stunes {Surplus/defica)] {Z14RE 214213 
Effiect of halange sheel assel Bl - - 
Unrecagnised past service cost = - 

et nesen| |uabikity) recognised in halance sheet 1214814 121421) 

Met aszet{lisbility) recognised in balunce sheet at beginming of the vear 214210 {191.07) 
Expense recognised in Seastement of Profit and Loss 54.84 L] 
Espense recognised fn Oilver Comprohensive Bncomi (1651} [14.18) 

Actunl comiributions by the employ EPRE] 1281 
Nt nequisitinnbasiness combinniban - - 

Mt asten| Labilin recopnised i balusce shoet af end of the year [Z14.8E) 121421) 

(D Amemnes recognized in the pelement of profin and loss 

Clarrend service cost g5z AT 

Inmieres) cost 1532 11.56 

Loss/(gnimh an setifement - - 
Pt servece cosl - - 
Tatal 5484 S2Y 

(E}  Amotints recognizid mn odher comprebensive income 
Actunrial {gaim) / hess due s 
- change in densographic assumpion - - 

- change in Grancial sssoplon 36 (18} 

- Experience varinnce {1832} (1357} 
—athers E H 

Return om plin sssets, axcluding {sed f met | x| [LEILT] 0s7 

‘Remeasurement (ar sctuarial (gain)kass) arising duwe to-asset ceiling 

Tl 11651} [{ERE] 

{Fi Categary of plan asseis 

Fumds managed by bnparer 1060 A i 0% 

{0} Sensitiviey analysis 
TaBh o s wssampions At Ran 24 

A, Discount Rase 

L. Effect due to |.00% imcrease m dascount mie “H.51% 34503 =M% LB ] 

2. Biffect due o | 0% decrease in discosmt moe T.70% 30730 ] SidHl 
B. Saliry Escalation Rake 

L. Effect due 1o |.04% iscrease i salary escalabion mne 6829 30462 6.75% 36325 

2 Effeet due o 1.00% decrease in salary escalation rae B 467 SE o2k 
. Wilkdrawal Base 

L. Effiect due to 50% incresse in withdrawal e 12T I Ak 15% EEL 

1 Effect due to 50 decrense in withdmwal mie 050 3az 5% 0% 
0. Miortalsy Rase 

| Effiect due 1o | (%% increase in mossality mbe L07% 36E95 AK02% 34023 

2. Bffiect due o 1% deevease in mormliny raie (LRI k1] 1 02% EL IR 

{H} - Risk Expusure - Asset Valatilisy 
The plan |ishifities are calcalmed wsing o raie set with refi 1o e yields: if ploe assets undesperfirm this vield, this will ereate o deficil. Most of 
the plan nsset imvestments is in fived income securities with high gmdes and m govenment securities, 

Thess are subject to imersst mte risk and the fursd nansges imersst e risk derivatives to mininvize sk s on aceeptablz level. A porrion of the fueds are 
inwested m equity securities and im alternative investments % which have kow comrelation with equity securities. 
The equity secunities are expecied 1o eam a retam in excess of the discount rate and cantribute o the plan deficit 

(N Actunrinl assumprions 

Agtunrial valumbon o a1 e year-ond was dome m respeetof the aforesald delined benelin plans based on the fiallowing sssum prioss: 

il General assumptions 

- Disgonne rase {fer ammus) TN T.10% 
- Withslrawal raig LANFS pLi 
= Rate af incresse in compensabon 500 L 

72



sJPER TAMNMNERY LIMITED—b——m—m—m—m—m—crcov=- Y>> . 

SUPER TANNERY LIMITEINCIN: LISIIUFIPS4PLCOMG4Z1) 

Mates Forming part of The Standalons Financial Statetsears for (e viar ended March 31, 2024 

il 
iy 

] 

vh 
wi) 

il 

Muaadiny ranes comsidered are 38 por the pubilishod rancs in the Endis Assuned Lives Mosaling (201 2-148) Ultfimae, 

Leave poliey: Leénve bolance ag an the vatunion dase and each subsequent year Bnllowing the valurion date to the extent not avadled by the employs 

acyumulsted up 1o 3]st December 2023 is availoble for encashment | 
The discount mic should be based wpon the market yields ovnilable on-Government hosds af the aceousting date with @ term that matches that of the fihifities, 

The expected mate of Teturn om plan assets 15 based on markes expecinisan, a2 the beginming of the vear, for renums over entice |ife of the relaied ohligation. 

The assumgiion of future salary increases, conssdered in actusrial volastion, takes socount of inflation, sensority. promotsan, supply and demand ond otber 

relevami faciors. 

Liability on account of lnsg lerm absences has heen ncnmrially valued &= per Projected Unis Credit Method. 

viiT) Shart term compensated ahsences have been provided on actual basis, 

i Diefimeed beoefit labibin and employer contribuves: 

il Expecied eonmbutions 1o post-emplosnent benefin plans m mear year 

il The weighted avernge dumtion of the defined bemefit obligation is § years. Tho expecied mabarity nnobysis of undiscounicd graeuity henefits is a5 follows 

5. 256.53 lacs Ra 24987 lacs 

Ra.in Lacs 
Pormend 31.03,2024 %1.0%.23023 

| ear 11945 19Ty 

2t 8 Wears 11,58 T4 

Gio |0 Years 11022 [9.55 

More Than |0 Y ears 421,55 3250 

Tl 4560 [ 

35, Digchiaure a6 per chonic 34030 and 3300 ol the SEBL (Lising Chbipatbonz and Dhsclosure Requiremesis) Repubitions 1015 and Sectlon |86 74) of the Camgienies e, 

{u] 

b} 
<k 

di 

Laouns 1o subsidinries: [Bs.im Eacs) 

Mahmmm 

Relationshi]  Amoont outstandings an | Percentage to the toal Leams & (Y0980 ““""‘:"":"" 
_ n March 31 Advances in the nature of Lowny | PRCER R T mmfifim.:u 
Mame ol the company Ll viar 

2034 2023 2024 ELEE 224 2023 
Super Tannery (LK) Lad Sughsidiary 130, 130,04 30.59% 56.51% 1341, 13004 
Secure sfery limied Suhssdiary 12,49 12,49 1413% 54T 12.49 1244 
Super Malia SRL Sushsadiary 5730 5730 20.28% AR L] R 

Pioneer Freo Suhsairy 18157 - A 10% - 18157 - 

The niforesmid Loans his been given to mest ihe working capiol réquirements and the some hus been utilised far ihe same pamoses, 

Ievisstmnts: 
AGuaraniue g 

refior Nobe Na, 3 4A) 

The company bas ned given sny corporab: guaramiee, for securing the creds facility, 

Security provaded: 

The company kas nos provaded any aher secumny w/Sor any of ns subs|dines and associaes: 

% .I.'l.pimlri an Corporale Secial Responsibility (CSH) 

Im pursiance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 aml CER Policy of the Compamny it is reguirsd to spend twa percent af the average net prafits for the three 

istely peceding f F years wards TSR sctivithes 

Simee the company ks cammed profits m peoveius yeare. gross smoant megaired w b epent by ihe compasy towards TSR actlviees dunng the year = Bs. m Lacs 

15,44 Lacs. 
The smount recognised as expense ini the Stmtemment of Prafit und Loss o6 CSE related activities & B, 13,44 Locs [presviaus wfil.li].lll Locs| detadled ax under 

Az in facs 

Partlculars 2023-24 202223 
Paid et b bee paid Total il Vet to be paid Toal 

3R Expepsditure 1344 - 1144 %] - 151 

Toal 1344 1344 JLE] = 151 

37, Expendditmre an-Research angd Development 

Ry In lacs 
Particulars 214 13-13 

Revenue Expenditare 172 540 

| Tarad ATl 44 

M. Dscleswre pursuant fn Ind AS 116 " Leases™: 

(il 

(b} Where the company i Lesses 

Where the company & Lessor 

The company ks ned entersd mio any Lesso amabgements, 

Thir vompany Bas nsd enlered nio any Leaso amngomonts: 
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39, Fimosclal Instrumends 

i Capdml Managemsen 

The Corpany’s capital managemend s inbended s grease value for shareolderns by Swiliesting the meoting of kang-term and shost-fenm gosls of the Compony. 

The Company detesmines the amouel of capital requirsd op the basls of annual aperaiing plang angd long-terms produc and otber sirsfegic invesimens pans. The 
fmiding. requirements are met throsgh equity amd other long-termyshan-ierm bomeaings. The Company”’s policy is nimed ot combination of shari-term aed long- 

ierm barowmgs. 

The Commpany mondices the capital structuse om e basis of loial debi bo cquily rio and mahenty prodfile of e averall debi porifolio of the Company. 

The capital structure of the company consists of debi, which inchsdes the borrowings including semporary cvendrawn balance , cash and cash equivalenis 

includimg short wrm bamk deposit, eguily eomprising imued capiinl, reserves amid non-controlling tnkemests. The pesrng mbio for B year = a8 wnder: 

[Rs: im Laci] 

Particulars As ar March 31, 2024 Aw st March 31, 2E3 
Dizhi TEI604 6,8 2 

Lese: Cash and cash equivalent 23043 38| 

e dudst [A) 75001 f476.61 

Total equaty (B 112741 Q5TH.TE 

[Dieht Equity Ragin {AB} ] (it 

(i) Categaries of fimancial mstmoments. 

Calculntion of Fair ¥alues 

The fuir values of e financinl asses and liabilives ane defined s the prece that woulbd be reesived o sell an aesed o padd g trnater o lishilin i an arderly 

tramsactian hetween market particapants al the mensarement date. The following methods and assumptions were used i estimaie the frir vahies of financial 
instrumems: 

ah The faar values af investimoni m gaoted o | m wquily shanes is based on the camend bed price ol respoctive imvestmoni &z al the Balance Sheel dala, 

b The fair value of the long-term barrowings carmying, flosting-mbe of interest is nt impacied due to interest mie changes amd will not be significantly diferon 

[roam their carrying: ansounts as there is oo sigodGoan change in the under-lying credal gk of the Company (since th date of inception ol the leansh, 

€} The fair vslue of Jonns froem banks and nther fimanciol indebiedness i well ns oiler nem current fmaneinf Tishdlites is estirosed by dissounting fure cssh 
fows using rates cusrently. availahle for debe or smilar terms and remaining miusties. 

) Cash and cash equivalents, rade receivables, other financial sssets, made payvables, and ather (nancinl linhiligies have fair valoes that approximaie fo issir 
carmying amowmis due s their shori-term niare. 

[Ra. im Lags) 
Forticwlnrs Ay ot March 31, 2024 Ax of Mareh Y1, 203 

Carrylop value | Falr value Carryleg value Falr value 

Fnancial Assuls 

Fnnneinl assels messured ot fair value 

[rvestmenis measnred st 

L. Faitr walwe thrmagh siher comprehonsive iscome 333467 307 

i Fair wakne through profit and knss 052 sz 

Finaniinl agsets messured ar smomized cos 

Trade Reveivabiles b e 5,300 

Cash amd cosh equivalents 231943 33481 

Bank halunces other than cosh ansd cash equivabens ELERE] 44063 
(Oither fimancial assets h&7.2T 391.T6 

Total T.597.11 33408 6,503.28 0842 

Finunzinl Linhifives 
Financial linbilities mossured of amodased oost 

‘Homrowings T.HIS04 61642 

Trale poysbles 3.323.33 334573 
Oither financial Habilities o52.15 744,02 

Total L2 111.52 = b1 1T = 

fiii} Income, expenses. gnins or ksses an financinl i (s, im Loca) 

Purticul T013-14 I011-13 

Finanginl asseis messured al smomized cost 

Allowamoess far doubtfisl rocervahles [1015) (3360 

Fl:.mr:inlu.l:ml.:.mmmd.ll [ir value through Profil and Less {005 (s Reltr 

Finanzinl assets messured an i value through Other Comprebenslve licome - - 

Fair value measarements recognzzed in the balasce sheet; 

The folfowsng mble provides am snalysss of finapcial instnaments tha are menswered subsequens (o initial recognieion m i valee, grouped inn Leveds | i 3 
based om the degroe i which the fxir value is shservable 

-Level | fhir vabue meassrernents s those derived from quoted prives (ussdjusied ) m sctive markets for dentical nescts o labilicies. 

-Level 2 fuir volue measarements are these derived from imputs cther tham quarted prices included within Level | that are ohservahle for the asset or lhiliny, 
ither diroctly {i.c. as priccs) o indincetly {i.c. derived from prices): 

~Level 3 fulr vabue meaparements wne those derived Thoen yabastion techsques that inehide mputs Toe the msset ar labiliy that are not based on ohicrvable 

{iv) Fnncial risk managemes shjecinves: 

The Company”s prncipal financinl linkilshics comprise ol kaan from banks snd fimencinl wnstilations. and fmde payables. The mam purpose of these financisl 

liabilsies is bo mise imenoe for the Cnm'pfln.]' L3 npenl.lnm The Campany has varous fnancial assets such as irsle recenvables, cash md shost lerm deposils, 

The main rsks ansing from Company's fi are fareign carrency risk, credie risk, markei nisk, intcrest rase nisk andd Liquidisy risk. The Board of 

Direciors review anid agree policies for managmg, Dfll’!h of these risks, 

{u Credi risk: 
Credil risk |8 the risk of inancial ks 1o the Company 7o cusomer or cousterpany 1o fnmelal inarment Thils 1o meet 8 eontrachasl obligations, and srises 
principally from the Compary's irmde and other receivmbles, eash and cash equivalents and veher hank balanees, The mazimen espossre b credit risk in cose of 
all the financial instrumenis coversd bebow s r\fl'rri-:nedmfllc'r:q)uclin CAITVE AR, 
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Nates fornaimg part of the Standulone Financial Statensnts for the year ended March 31, 2004 

Trile Rezeivable 
Cwbomuer eredil 8 managed by cich busingss umit subsecy 1o the Company's esablished policaes, priscediones and control nelating to omsboner crmlit nsk 

manaperent. Trade seddivables ore fon-inderess bearlng and are penmerally on 00 days crodin Term Creds binwts ane established for all cussomsers based on 

The Company measures the expecied credit foss of tade receivables based oo historical tremd, indosiry prictices anil the busipess environmeni in which the 

embtity oeerales. Loss eales are based on achial cnnkit bss experience and past trewls. 

Expecied credit loss assessment for cmbomers: 

The pornpuny & making provisions on trade receivobles bused an Expecied Credit Loss {ECL) model. The reconeiliation of ECL is o5 follyws: 
(Rs. i Locs) 

0234 W21 
115 1750 

1017 6 2795 
11779 2543 

ither fipancial nssets 

The Commpany wadnteing gaposane in casly and cash equivalenis, rerm deposity with banks and derivative contrers. 

The Company hebd cash and cash equivabents of Bs. in Lecs 239 43 Lacs ul Manch 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. m Locs 339.5) Lacs), Cash und 

cash cywivalents are held with repumble and eredsi-worty hanks 

Irlivvhdasal risk lmies are s21 for coch comnter-party based on fnancaal pesition, credit rating and past experience, Credil imits and concentratim of expesures 

ane petively moniored by the Masigement of e Company. 

Oither than trade and other receivables, the Company has oo other financial assets that arz past due bot no) impagred 

i Marken mak: 
Murket Risk s the risk that the Bir value or future cash flows of o Ginamcial istmament will fectuale beconse of changes m market prices. Market risk comprises 

thee w0l Hske: currimey ek inberest rate risk and prace mak. 

{1} Foraige currency risk 

The Campany is exposed o curmency risk on acoount of #ts operasing snd financing activities. The fimeisonal carrency of the Company is Indizn Rupee. 

Compamy's gxp s mainky o i | im LUSD), GBP and Euro. The exchange mies have chanped substantzally in recest periods ard may comiimue o 

Duutute subsiattially i the fubare. The Company bas put in placo a Fimancial Risk Mansgement Palkcy o Ddengify the most eficiive amid eflicien ways of 

managing the curteney rsks. The Compaiy sses derivative instrumsents (mnindy farsign cachanpe forwand coneracts) o miigate the gk of changes in lorvign 

oumency exchangs rase 

The Clampany do nid use derivative Anancial instruments for trading or specalntive purposes. 

{10) Inveresn rase ik 
Interest rale risk &5 oaesured by wsing the cash Oow sensstivity for changes in varishle mieres| mbes. Any movinsenl in e relence rales could have an impact 

an the Campany™s cash Mows s woll a8 costs; The Company slso uges o mix of Iencet rate sersivive fnanésl Instruments 1o managpe the lkguiding sd find 

requiremenis fi itn dmy 1o day aperstions like shor-tem losns. 

Inlieresi rinlir somaitivaly anhlysds: 

Az al March 31, 2024 mterest beanng, financial lability (scored Joan from banks) stond at Bs. o Lacs 7236004 Lacs, was subject 1o variahle inierest mies. 

Increasedecrease of 50 baxis poimts in mierest rabes o the halance sheet daje would result in decreasedincrease in profit befiore ta of Bs. im Lacs 319,18 Lacs, 
The risk osix provded & parallel shifi af 5} hasis poinis inferest rate. This calculstion also assames that the change acours i the balamce sheet date 

anil has been calculated based on risk exposusres outstunding = at tha date. The poriod end halances are noi pecessanily representntive of the avempe debi 

autstanding during the pericd. 

Fair vahue of financesl imsiruments; 
All feancial assets are initially recognized af Fair volse of considerstion pasd. Subsequently, financis]l nssets aro caeried o Eadr value or amoctized oo |ess 

it rrsemt, Wi et — derivanive financel wseis ane carried ot e value; gams and losses on re- maasanemienl ane reeopnesed demzcily inoeguity unbss ihe 

finnneinl assets hove been designared a3 being held at fair vabog theougl profit or loss, in which cose the gains and losses e reeognized dliealy in e 

smndalone stolement of profit and less. Finencinl agses are designoted as being held st fuir vabse thromgh prafit or loss when i 5 necessmny s reduce: 
measoremen| moonsisieney for related asses and linhslitics. All fimancial linhilities other than dedvatbives ane indiially recagnized o fair value of considemation 

received nel of ransaction costs as appropriste {inftial cost) and sshseguenily carried at amotized cost. 

{0} Liquichity risk= 
The Comapamy fnllows & Comservativg pedicy -ul'm,l; suffficient houidity arall times theough a straegy of profinbie growth, eficien Tgwidiny o all nmes 
through a strategy of profishle growih., efficicn g capatal gemesd as well as prddent capital expendi The Camgpany has a cverdrafi fmeility with 

banks 1o support any lemparany funding requirements. 

Thie Company bebieves that current cash and ciish eeusvalents, tied up bomowing lines mnd costy Sow that is generaled from opertioms is sufficient i meel 

regutrensiais. Accondtngly, lquadity sk i3 perceived io be low, 

Ligguidity table: 

Ligpaidity mbles drawm up hised om the cash flows of financisl liabilites hased on the eardiest dme s which the Company can be required to pay is disclosed ot 
Motz o, 49, ' 

(V1 Unher price nisk: 

The Conspany isnod exposed o any signifscant oguaty prsoe risks ansing from equily investments, a5 an 3181 March 2024, Edquity mmviestments o helid for 

strices rather than reding pusporce. The Commany docs not actively nade Thess invesnesin 

(Vi Equity pese semsintviny anilyds: 

'fllmilmmhqfl)’wfirfiuuificrflpflh&fleflndfin[flfimlmh{. 
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Maites farming part of the Stnndalone Finanetal Statomwants for the year ended March 31, 2024 

40, Dischamre pursuadl (o Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statemsenn™ 

Tavesiments in following subsidinries and associains i asccounted it cost: 

{8 Mame of Subsitinry company / Ak il Bl 80, 2024 s i Bllmrch 31, D01 

No. Asseclate Company T Effective Effestive Effoctive Effective 

Ok prepuntion o gerapeitian al proeriion af preponien of 
vl wullng power wwnerahip valing purmer 

Imderest (%50 Imterest {Yah It (%) mberest %) 

(Ah Whily Owied Subsidianes {Foreign) 

i:  Swper Tannery [LLE.} Lul UK 100 00 100 (LETRE T FLITEC S 

il Swper lalia SRL laky 10610 T B D% (LR 
ik Paser Investmest Faco UAE 100 110 100U 1D DLEHPr 

(1] Suhekdinries {India) 
i Aarili Taniwers Limited Endin HI.52% BL.52% B2.52% HL52% 

ii. Swper Corporatian Linted Enifis AN S0P, S2.00%% 5100 

ik Secure Safity Limdied Tnidis 6129 13 20 G3T% B3.20%, 
dv,  Hix London Fashioms Enilis 1 00 00 100 R (LD 

41, There is po omsound dee asad ooretanding v be creditsd vo Investar Edocation & Trodection Fand as st March 31, 2024, 

4% DMsclesmre pursusnt to Ind AS 37 "Provislons, Contiogest Linkilities und Contimgent assets": . 

The company has recognised contingemt lisbilities as disclosed i Note 33 above and a5 sueh no provesion is required i be made, Mo provision was oststagsing as af 
the beganning and st the end of the year. 

43, Disebasure pursusnt i Ind AS 105 “Nos-current assets held for sale snd discontimwed epevations™; 
Thene ane neo such misel hold Tor sake and discomtmmied operations om 31 March 2024, 

44, Tax Expenses 

{hy 

fa] Amounts recopngoed in profil amd boss (Bs. im Locs) 

Particulars 202324 M22.23 

Cament tan expense 
Ciarment year 19HLIHE L4100 

|Changes i eslimales relating io prior yvears PR 637 

2003 [REHCE] 

Diofiernsd [ expiaie 5536 Il 41 

{Cirigimetion and reversal of iemporary differences - - 

Recognibion of previcasly unrecognined mx bosses - 
5536 440 

Tax expense recognized m the income 2655 15303 

A rocognied inather comprehensive & [Bx. im Loes) 

Famigulars 2023-24 2022-23 

ltems that will nol be reclassified to profil or s 

= Remoasuremenas of the defimed henefil plans 1651 1417 

Tas Expessciieneli 14590 [EXLT] 

et of Tax 102 DA% 

el Umssed tan losses for which mo deferned o peset (s recognised (noihe Balunee Shest MIL 

i) Unrecogessed deductible ssmporary differences for which no deferred tnx asset is recogrised in Balnoe Shoet KIL 

(dy  Compemenes of dzfered 1o (acsess) and liobdlities recogeiced in Balance Sheet and Statemend of Profitor Loss: R, In lsis 
Trarticulurs Balanyce Sheet o= al 

33124 1312025 LTl e K324 W23 

Differenee between book balames amd i balance of figed 
AHAEIR BE4.25 TIT R4 66743 16141 541 

0 diedd vohastion of derivatives amd other items 198,71 136,90 13924 &l (255} 

Cnlwery (271460 {10, 1) (9321} 1163.27) (1494} 

Net Drefiared Tax {assoi) Lishility &11.50 751,55 71347 0k (LT 

Dieferred Tox expensefincame}) LA ELEL] 

- Ruecognised i Statement of Profit & Less 5536 3440 

= Recognieed in Oiher Comprehensive Income 458 L4 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITEDCIN: LINI3IUPI984PLCIRG421) 
MNastes forming part of the Stomdalone Finaneksl Statenwats for the vear ended March 31, 2024 

fe] Reconcilintion of deformsd Tax {Asset) Lishility (B, in Lacs) 

Particulars 20k23-24 202223 

Opening Balonces 75158 T4 

Tax {income expense during the pericd rooopmised im: 

- Ramtement of Profit amd Lass in Prsdic or Loss section 2334 J4.40 

- Samtement of Profitasd Loss ander 001 sectn 4.5 LR 
Chusmy Balances SISk T51.55 

45, Fimarwinl Smtementa of ke subs|dary compamies and related desiled imformagion will b made available wo il investors, of the company asd sabeidiary companies, 
sacking such infnrmagion. The financial stniemsenis of the subsidiary companies are alse ke ot Regisiersd Oifice of the pany aml that of subsidary v 

fior inspection of imyesinrs of the company and subsidiry . i 

46. Disclosure of related parties/related party transactions/balances. to Ind AS 24 “Re d Party Disclosures™ 

{A} Mame of Related Parties and nature of relatiorship 

I Related parties over which control et [Sulnidisries) 
al Suger Tannaey {LLK ] Led, #) Safety Secure Limited 
B} Super Kaks SAL §] Fimlnu:_brn:ntl-‘mn 

€} Marthi Tannars Lid g1 H¥ Lomdon Fashians Pyt ltd 

d} Super Carporation Limited 

il Ioink Verures HiL 

il Key Management Personnel [KWF] & Redathes: 
a} M. Iftikharul Amdn ~Rianaging Director h) M ¥ 5 Katiyar+ Man Executive ndependent Directar 

b} M. gkl Shaon— Director 1) M. Bdudtsashirul Armin [30n of M. Agbal Ahzan) 
c} b Weganal Amine Bon Exeoutive 2nd Naon Independent Directon [ MAr. Tanseerul Amin {San of Mr. Hikhand Aming 

dl M Irwan Siddigui — Whole time Birecior &) Mr. Chabid Sayeed (Brosher of Mr. Imran Sddgui] 
@} Wi Arshad Khan —Whsle tme Director 1§ WAr. Umairal Amin (Son of K. ighal Ahsan) 

I} M. Mok lmrae — Whaole time Directar my hr, Aherased Farae Ardin (Son of M, Rikkeed Amin) 
El M R Awasthd - Company Secritary 

I Others: Enterprise twer which EMP or relatives of KBMP are able to exercise significant influence: 

a} dmin Tanesery Lid di Indusarial imfritnacture Seraoes 1) Lid 

i1} Banthar Imdustnal Pellution Contral Company a) Bowini Frilis LLP 

c} dimin Colonizers & Oevlopers Lid 

1B i} Disclosure of relsted Ergrmpctions during the year (in ofdinary course of business af arm ice] Smmary: 

Transactions Eahsidiares Associates Othr rulated parties KMF and Raiathes 

As gt/ For the yearencled A E T fof the: peer ended lsgl.n'fwmzmr!nrhd A at/ for the year encded 

310334 310333 31.03.29 31.03.23 310334 310333 31.403.24 3140333 

Purchades of maberals / finished goods/Fi 1399 714 . - 281.24 95.80 - - 
Zale of materiai [ finished gooos 173.36 962,45 - - 134.66 15879 - - 

Services [1ob Werk| - - . = 09 a4 - - 
‘Danaticn = . * - 13.51 1170 - = 

Rent recehed = - - - 2 o = B 
Imtesrast Recehmd 3.28 . 

Beot paid .60 A6 . - - - - - 
Aemusnarasion - - - - = - 121.51 13129 

Receivahlesddvance |Net) 30012 81127 - - 11307 12865 - il 

Pirpablag [Trade payible 5 othir 
abilities] 13.29 2059 : . 11883 33 34,98 kx| 

Loang and Sdvinies 41168 2an42 - - - 028 : - 
Investmesnts refer Note No: 3 

{B1. {li} Detall of related party transactions ckinng the year [in crdinary course of bus| at armi length price| 

W al ralabid party & Transictions Saihidinries Agsociates Crtbsief runlistied parties KM and Refatioss 
Asatf forthe yearended  As at fforthe year ended  As at / for the year ended As at f for the year ended 

303 30333 31.03.24 31.03.23 Moiw 31033 3103 24 310323 

Purchazes of matertals | finished 
poodyFined aset 
Amiin Tannery Ltd. - . - * JB4.BE EE3Y . . 

Bowini Frills LLP - . . - 12.38 19.48 - - 
Super Conporation Limied 13.89 27.14 . . = = - = 

13.00 7.4 - - 28124 95.80 - = 

Sal.of matrriat / fintshed gonds 
Anin Tanesy Lid; - = - - 11038 108,71 - - 
Super Malia SAL 173.36 §62.45 . = - . . - 

Bowini Frills LLP - - - - 2128 .06 - = 
173:38 9E2.45 . - 134.66 19879 = . 

Bervigey mvalled |lok Work] 
A Tanesesry Led. - . - - o.og 024 - E 

Bowin Frilis LLP - - = - = = - = 
" . - - 009 024 = = 

Commission paid 
Wir, Iftikhanul Bmin 200 

e, Ikl Ahgan 20 
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Remrmeration 
Wt Iftikharul A - - - - - - 24,00 14.00 
MAr_ habal Ahsan - 24,00 .00 

HAr. Imran Siddique . . - . - - 704 108 
Kir_ Arshad Ehan g . . 438 4.38 

hr. Rk b = - - - - - .04 ER 
Kir. Mubashid Amin 18.35% 1234 

BT, Ahirud Farae Airin - - - - - - £.09 5.88 

Kir. Tanyeenul A 15.54 15.54 

AT Khafid Sapid - = - = - - 176 L7 
Rir. Urnaerud Amin 13.55 1354 

M7, R K Atk - - - - - - .82 .82 
121.51 E2139 

Donation 
Armin Wellare Trust + 5 - - 1551 1M = £ 

Rent regeived 
Banini Frills LLP : : : - k] 072 : . 

Foet paid 
Ardi Taneens limited 160 360 - = - e - - 

3.e0 350 

Inferest Recelved 
Pirsessr Inyiskmant F20O 318 - - - - - - - 

338 " 

[€] Dwitstanding bakancas with relsted parties; 

11 Besetvabies/aduance (Well 
Supsr Corporation Lid, 013 5 = - - - - - 
Super Tannery UK Lid SE 45 SH AL " C . . 

Super Italia 581 341.30 T53.68 : - - - - - 
Aarifi Tanmers Lid 0OEl el ’ - " " . " 

Secure safety Limited 013 0.33 - - - - - - 
Mr. Mahd Imran " " . 

Amin Tannary Lid - - - - E316 B5.65 - - 

Eoreind Frills LLP 331 230 

Fayabtes {Trade prpmble & ssher labsdites] 
Erwini Frills LLP - - - - - 6403 - 
Amin Tannery Ltd 1128z .30 

Amin Wellare Trust ¥ - - - - - - 
Aarifl Tanmers Lid. 113 571 

Sepure safety Limited 1306 1206 - - - - - 

Super Corporation Lid. 33 

e, Wtisbsarul Amin 2 - = - = ' 14,90 1490 
MAr. kghal Ahsan LI2T a7 

BAF, tmin Sidoicue - - - - - - 138 143 

Mr. Arshad Khan L 0Es aEl 

iAr, Wibashirul frmin - - - - - - 15.44 TAS 
KAr. Akemad Faraz Amin 115 1m 

Mr, Tarreeerul Armin = | - 3 - e 91 a1 
Rir. Ehalid Sayesd 03s a3 

MAr, Umairul Amin B - = = * = 113 L 
KAr. B K Awasthi . 043 054 

i}y Laans and Acancss 
Super ILalia 581 &7.59 E7.59 < = = H - N 

Secura salety Limited 1243 1243 

Super Tannery LK 130004 13004 - - - ¥ - i 
Florser Investment FIDO 12157 E 

Amin Welfare Trust - - - - - 0,28 5 - 

lobal Ahsan 

41165 1301F = - - .28 = - 

8] Mo amcuint Fud besn written oflfbeck or provided a3 doubtful debts durmg the vesr in respect of related paties, 

[E]  May Managerial Personnal e antitied to post-employmant banofits and othar lang term emplayes benefits recngnizad s por bed A5 19 - 'Employes Banefis in tha 

Frnanicial 5, Az these employves berefits are lump sum smouris provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same |5 net induded abowe 

47, Remumeration to Whode Time Directors 
Farticulars | | 2023-14 202273 

[a) Short Term Employee Bersefits {Salary] 6131 6131 
|B] Coenmigsics foDirsctors 4.00 - 

[c] Comtribution to defired cantributson plan (PF] (1) a6 

Tota E5.98 5198 
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48 fa) Fareiga Currency Expoiure bedged and un-hedged ay at the balance ibeel date is as e 

=] 

i Foreign Cufrency amount in Lacs) 

PARTICLILARS L1 Sl e 
31.03.24 31.03.23 310334 3E03.23 31.03.24 310233 

Dbitars 4L.54 1538 13.25 1469 DEE 183 

Craditar 198 G 234 126 - - 
Other Bxyables 3,05 L35 (1) 0.6 oer oo 
Aghrances -0 3E 118 a2 Ao o ls 

Cash & Bank Balance OLET oDaT oa o3 

Luttey of Craslii 2,78 .56 - 5.23 - - 

Dervative Instrumens Dutstanding {Forward Contract for hedging) | Forelgn Clrrency amoant in Lacs| 
PARTH LILARS LI5S0/ INR ELRD § INR GHP fINR 

2023-1 | 2223 mziad | 20a3-23 | #ew-ad | 203223 
Against svpeets 558 | 672 31|  amar 5.38 | 546 

43, Desclosure pursuant to bnd A5 1 *Presentation of Francisf Statemers” 

{a} Current kabilites and borrowings expected 1o be recovered within twele months and after twelve months from the reporting date: 

Particuilars A5 an Meech 31, b4 B at arch 11, 2033 
Within after Tota! Within After Tozal 
raalun raalun Tt rwalun 

manthi manthi ik ranths 

Borrowings 7,751.24 - 7,751,204 677159 - 671155 
Trade and other payables 3,323.33 31,323.33 3,545.73 354573 

Othar Ninancial liabdities 952.15 952.15 734,03 - 73407 

Current zesets axpacied to be settled within twebie months and after teelve months from the repoing date: 

Particulars A3 3 Mach 31, 7034 s Al March 31, 2023 

Within After Total Within After Total 
raelve raelve twehe raelve 
manths manths meithes manths 

Inwentare 5.556.3% - 5,656.3% 5.055.93 - 595598 
Trade Becnivable 5,587.20 - 5,907.20 5,335.00 - 5338 06 
Other Anancial Assets EBY.2Y BET.2T I51.7TE 391LTe 

Othar Current Asets 1,5%4.80 L.594.80 k34018 - 134015 

0. Additional Begulatory Information 

actditioral Regulatary Infarmation gursuant 1o Caise &2 of Ganeral instractons Tor praparation of Balance Sheet as ghaen in Part | of Diision 1| of Schedale 1o tha 

Compamies Act, 2043, ore given hereunder ta the exterd relevant sod ather than those given eliewhere m ary other notes 160 the Frsndisl Statements 

{a| Title deeds of Immaovable Property net held in name of the Company 
Furtails of immowsble prepeetie held in the name of dreciee of the comgarny - 

B 

el 

d) 

Wekativis: thls 
irmadhoier i 2 
prosater, ditect 

Dy itz ot Tittus divied Tkl | 07 o relatine® | Broparmy hokd Hasivers Toe et B Relesant b item in e talance sheet Rt o] et ot rnens | e | e o bl huttd wilum e e G the Gy 
ornDErTy the camgarny | Adrector o date 

amplaye of 
P = ) 

[ 4 

Land o, 1105, Dirarinr 
Pruperty, Mat and Eeulprsant Land Freahold [Ramher Unnan | 28 77200 Mo | qveqeentamin| Leceanm 

Land No. 1362 Diracior 
Hurdher Unnan 9, B .05 Ho derarul Amini 14082007 

Land Mo, 1417 Diractor 
ganther Unnao | 30545300 Mo |venenul aming | teoganag | T s of s s paid by 

Conpary bet dis 0o Debrsight 
Land Mo, 1416 regisragiar was dnne in the 
& 1415 Hractad npme of dhracie Hivweser the 
Harthar Linnan 8, 40800 Mo eyl Amini | 090002000 | proces of mgniering the s 

il Pk e 
Land N 1413 5 uekarady 30 th tiska of 
& 1414 Iarmcinr firaktation af accsints 
Banther Unnaa | 205.3z0.00 Mo | el amin | 0100300 

Land Mo 1264 
51368 Diréctor 
Barher Unnao | £185000 no | peneulamin| toosanod 

Land Mo 1186 Birecinr 
Barther unnan | 10252000 Mo | pveqeutamin | 1a093004 

Eair Waluw of bopeimapel Propssty 
The Company do not kaye any Inyestment property. 

guabiaticn of Pra Plant & Equlpimest and |k ke AL 

The Comparny bas rot revalued ary of its Property, Plant & Equipmes t and Intangible fsdet, during the year 

Datails of Benaml Eroperty haid 
The tompany da Aol Bave sny Beneml Praperty, where any procesdirg bas been initisted or pendicg agsest the company 9o halding any beneeni prapery onder 

the Benami Trarssctions |Probebstion] Act, 1988 [45 of 1988} and the rules made theeunder, 
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[&) Bearrowings fr Franind insdi n [ I e 
Tha Coen pany has 3 Woeking Capital limit of Rs 10,180 Lacs from Consartiumn af SBI comprising of Fund-based limits of Rs. 8,350 Lacs ard non-fund.based limits of B 

LAA0 Lacs. For the spad focility, the Compary has submitted Stock and debricrs statement to the bank on mordhly besis 2= alse the Quartedy Informetion Statements 

Tha ditference batwseen valun & per baoks of accaunts and &5 per quartarly ssatements submitted with lenders are as urder: 

LA= In Lacs| 

‘Value as per Walue as per quarterky Difference Reason for Difference 

Dharter ending Booiks of ACEnuris EEatersits subimitied 

with lenders 

I 30, 3033 11.590.00 11, 74533 {155,613} Thee ddferonces are there, 
September 30, 2023 1117292 11 TEr.aT (014,35} hecauss the stetemenls 

[ bar 31, F3 12334 95 11166 B33 [filed weth the lenders are 
hdarch 30, 2004 1351164 14,1175 {605 BR} hased on Fnsncisl 

June 30, 3003 251257 B G561 {113.0a}| statemerds prepared on 

September 30, 2022 1318479 1185130 323,50 | provisaons basis 
Oecember 31, XEE 1715106 12 AT4.47 {322.71] 

March 11, 2003 1179508 1111243 175.61 

1} wilful Defaulier 
The Coenpany b nal Been declansd s o wilful defaulter by any lends who hos powers 1 declare o company 45 o will 'l delaulte al ary tme during the Francial 

wear oF after the end of reporting pericd but before the date when the financial statements are approved. 

Ir} Befationship with Struck off Companies 
The (eempany hirs na Iransacticns with comparss ciruck ofl undes tection 148 of 1he Companies S, D13 or dection S50 of Corrpanies Ay, 1956 

Ihl Registration of charges or satisfaction thereof with Registrar of Companies 
There is o charges ar setisfacton therecf yet 1o be regisbered with Regntrar af Compames bayond the statutory pencd a5 on the date of Balance Sheet sxcept the 

faliowing: 

Deseription of Charge Rs.in lacs Reason 

Chasga in Favour of SBI A0.00 The Comipany & folbowing up with selavant barkars for the purpess of filing of satisfaction of changs 

Charge in Favour of GO0 bank o respect 2000 

iof wahichs loan 

Charge in Favour of 5B 5.00 

Charpe in Favour of 58 AQLO 

Iy Compliange with nomber af e of gepanisg 
There i no non-compliarce of provisions reganding the number of layers presoibed wder clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Compandes {Restriction on 

meamber af Lagers) Rubes, J017 

1ih The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature loans eiber repavabie on demand or wathout specitying any terres or period of repayment. 

[k} The Company has not recedved any funds from any personis] or entity[ies), mcloding foeeign entities (Funding Party] weth the understanding {whether recorded in 

writing or atreawisa) that the Campany shall) 

I, Girectly ar mcdisectly b= ar rreest in other persons ar enbties idenbfied o sy manres whatsoeves by ar on behall of the Funding Party [USimate beneficanes), 

o 

Il. Provide any guarantee, seowrity or the kke to or on benhal of the Ulemate Bereidares 

Il} Undesloged income 
The Carmpany doed nit heve any transactions which is nod recoeded inthe beoks of actourits bid has been surrendered or disclosed 23 mcomse during the year in the 

tan assessments under the incomss Tax At, 1961 | such &=, search or sunay of any ather ralovant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1351). 

Im| Dby of Crvoto Currency or Yirtual Currency 
The Company has fat Sraded o iastad in Crypto currency ar Viraa! Currancy during the year, 

|l Compliance witha i Scha af Arrangemenis 

During thee year, o Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Suthority in tesmns of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2003, 

le) Fatios 
Earticulars 

Wear ended March 3L, 3024 | Year snced March 33, 2023 Variares and Raason 

Numerator Ratia Sumeratar Ratic Warisrce Bessan 

Denominator Denomenator 
B5. In Lacs Rz I Lt 

(] Current Batic {in temesf 1&?-}\'_3_3{! _13:,81}?12 

Current assets ) Current liabil 11 EEa AT 112 1175212 117 | 21.I14% N.&, 
(o] Debt-Equny Rato {in tines) TEISM 621642 

Tiatal Chakst / Shiehaldars By 10,137 41 o S5TETE a71) B7%% KA 
[} Dubt Service Coverage Balio fin temesp | ;I,E_J'I }'S _!,5__3_{5_-‘;!5 

Earnings avallable for Debt service ' Debt service 1432 &6 a7 1,284 36 13| 5.0 fi-A. 
|(d} Raturm on Equitty Ratic [ir %) S0 T3 E05.E9 

[Mer Profits after taes — 
Freference Duidend (f any]) / SELIE &0 539757 BLI%| -8.00% KA 

(] Inventary turnaver ratia lin tirns} TLER.T1 1245500 

fiyerage Inventary 5 75619 154 5,214.53 361 9.08% A, 
() Trade Hecewables tumaver ratio lin temes) I3 5871 12,452.10 

Mat Cradit Sales! Avarags 
Accounts Receivabls 555317 A0 5,332.37 43| 487 L) 

| (] Trae payabbes hatresr titio lin tines) 14,456 62 14, 750 3 

Met Credit Purchases! Averape 

Trade Payabios 343453 4.1 F,444.00 409 -1LESN M.A 
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{h) Met capital Turncugr ragia [ Kimas) 22.683.71 JrAE 

Mt Sy’ Warking Capital 187888 108 101728 11.13) 847w HA 
i} Met prafit ratio [in %) 54072 (LY 

Mt Profi Met Sales 22,689.71 2.50% 72,453.10 e s i Brtas o 

i Returrs o cagital employved [ROCE) (L 1,269.85 1,110:88 
Earning befare interest and tomesy 

Capital Emplayed 11,737.08 10.82%| 1000168 1R19H]  BIER Hi 
{k] Meturn an investment [n % 3.0 504 

" coime generated from insested 

Tinghy/ Aserape invested Tunds in 

treasury Investments - 321.31 L9a% 30546 L%) - -S1LAES L 

ol Wreestment in naw whaly owned subsidaries has resilted in vanance n o, 

51 Figures of the previous year hise been ragrougadngarfanged whersuer rguired in orier 1o make tham comparibl with thove ol cunfm peee. Figunes haug haan 
rounded off to the nearest napees in kacs 

Az i cur dttached report of even date Fior and ce behal of the Board 

Far Eagoor Tamdon B Co 

Chartered Accourtants 
Faern Rigkstrathon o, 009520 

Mghd. Imran lfikhar_ul.lrrm 

Divectar {Finance| & CFO Maraging DHractar 
Dheyank Migam DN (0037627 (OO0 AT 

Partrs 
M. No. 438453 
Place: Kanpuar 

Clertee: 30-08- 2000 B, K. Awasthi 

) Compasy Sacretary 
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. ; : Branch 
Chartered Accountants % *24/57, First Floor, Birhana Road. 

. Kanpui — 208001 
D= 104, 13" Floor, Himalava Housa, 

23 Aesturaa Gendh Maig, 

MNew Dehi - 110 D01 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To 

The Members of Super Tannery Limited 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries 

{Holding Company and iis subsidiaries tegether referrad to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the consolldated balance sheet as 
atMarch 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes 

in eqguity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, Including & 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other 
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as wera audited by the other auditors, as referred o below in other matters 
paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Ac1™) in the manner so 
required and give a trua and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of 
the Group as al March 31, 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated 
cash flows for the yaar then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 
We corducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)of the Act. Qur responsibilities under 
those 5As are furthar described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stataments saction of our report. We 
are independent of the Group and its assoclate companies in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, and wa have fulfilled our other athical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We belisve that the audit evidence wa 

have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mosi significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
staternents of the cument perod. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whaole, 
and in forming our opinion theraon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report, 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon 
Tha Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the 
information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors! report thereon, 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial stataments doas not cover the other information and we do not exprass any form of assurance 
conclusion therson. 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility t= to read the other infarmation and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otharwise appears to be materally misstated, If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit reports of othar 
auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report In this regard. 

Respansibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentalion of thase consalidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other 
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash Nlows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for sefeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irmegularities; the 
salection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that ara reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant lo the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statemants that give a lrue and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforasaid, 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 

are responsible for assassing the ability of each company o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatad to going 
concern and using the going concem basis of accounfing unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
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has no realistic altarnative butto do so. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each 
company, 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repor that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists, 

Misstatemeants can arise from fraud or error and are considersd material if, indlvidually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected 1o 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judament and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also; 
+  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatemeant of the consolidated financlal siatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinian. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve 
coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(f) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company - and 
such companies Incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies have adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements in place and the operating effectivaness of such confrols. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and Ihe reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
mada by managament. 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial 
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whathar a material uncertainty axists related to events or condiions that may cast 
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, wearerequired to draw 
attention in our auditor's report o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up lo the date of our auditor's report, 
Howeaver, future evants or conditions may cause the Group {Company and its subsidianes) as well as iis associates to cease to continue as a 
going congern., 
Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemenis, including the disclosures, and wheathar 
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
Obtain sufficiant appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business aclivities within the Group to 
exXpress an opinion on the consclidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independeant auditors. 
Faor the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and parformance of the audits carried out by them, We remain solaly responsible for our 
audit opinion, Our responsibilities inthis regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled 'Other Matters' in this audit report. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reporis of the other auditors referred to in sub- 

paragraph 
(a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consofidated  financial 

slatemants. 
We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such ather enfities included in the consolidated 
financial statermants of which we are the indepandent auditors regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit, 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statemant thal we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independance, and where applicable, relatad safequards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 

audit ofthe consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matiers, 
We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extramely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the financial information of a subsidiary included in the consclidated financial results, which reflect, before consolidation 
elimination total assets ,of Rs. 107.72 Lacs as at March 31, 2024, and total revenue of Rs. 0,90 Lacs and Rs. 3.6 Lacs, total net profit after 
tax of Rs. 0.10 Lacs and Rs. 1,15 Lacs, total comprehensive income of Rs. 0,10 Lacs and Rs. 1.15 Lacs for the quarter ended March 31, 
2024 and for the year endad March 31, 2024 respectively, and net cash inflow of Rs. 3,85 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024 as 
considered in the statement. These financial statemeants have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by 
the Holding Company’s management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 5o far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesald subsidiaries is based solely on the audit repors of other auditors. 

(b) We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of three subsidiaries, whose Financial Statements before consolidation 

elimination reflect iotal assets of Rs, 566.48 Lacs as al March 31, 2024, total revenue of Rs, 93.41 Lacs and Rs.493.68 Lacs, total net 
profit after tax of Rs.1.24 Lacs and Rs. (-)14.84 Lacs, total comprehensive income of Rs. 1.24 Lacs and Rs. (-} 14.84 Lacs for the quarter 

endad March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2024 respeclively, and net cash outflow{net) of Rs. 18.44 Lacs for the year 
endad March 31, 2024, as considered in the statement. These unaudited financial statemants have bean furnished to us by the Holding 
Company's Managament and our opinion on the consolidated financial staterments, in so far as il relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-saction (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates {o the 
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aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and 
axplanations given to us by the Hoiding Company's Management, these financial statements are not material 1o the Group, 

Cur opinion on the consolidated financlal statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiraments balow, is not mod|fied 
in respect of the above matters with respect o our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial 
statermnents/financial information certified by the Holding Company's Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As requirad by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considaration of reports of the other audilors on separate financial 
statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, {o the extent 
applicable, that. 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit of the aforesald consolidated financial statements. 
b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

slatements have bean kepl so farasil appears from our examination of those books and the repors of the other auditors, 
¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

consolidatad statemant of changes In equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Repor are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

d) Inouropinion, the aforesald consclidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
e} On the basis of the writfen representations received from the directors of the Holding Company &8s of March 37, 2024 taken on 

record by the Board of Direclors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from 
being appoinied as a director interms of Section 1642} of the Act. 

i With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Haolding Company and its 
subsidiary companies Incorporated in India and the operating effectivensss of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexura A", 

q) As required by Section 197(18) of the Adl, based on our audit and on consideration of the repart of the statutory auditors of such 
subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India not audited by us, the remunerafion paid during the cumrent year by holding 

company, iis subsidiarles / associates incorporated In India is In accordance with the provisions of and limits lald down under 
Section 197 of the Act. 

h} With respect lo the clher mallers to be Included In the Auditor's Repor in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audlt and 
Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous and basedon th e 
consideration of the reports of Ihe other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiarles, as noted In the "Other 
Matters' paragraph: 
i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litkigations as at March 31, 2024 on the consolidated 

financial position of the Group. Refer Nole 32 to the consolidated financial statements. 
ii. The Group companies incorporated in India did not have any materal foresesable losses on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts. 

iil. There has been no delay In transferring amounts o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the yvear ended March 31, 2024. 

iv. {a} TheManagements of the Halding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated | n 
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented fo us and the other auditors of such 

subsidiaries and associate companies respectively thal, to the best of their knowledge and beliel, no funds (which are material 
alther individually or in the aggregate) hawve been advanced or loaned or investad {either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate companies to orin any other 
personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whather recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirecthy, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by oron bahaif of the Company or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controllad antities and associate companies 
{"Utimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.; 

{b) The Managements of Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in 
India whosa financial statements have been audited under tha Act have represented fo us and the other auditors of such 

subsidianies and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
aither individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidianes from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company or any of such subsidiarias, jointly controfled entities and associate companies shall, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficlaries™) or provide any guarantee, security orthe like on bahalf of the Uliimate Beneficlares, 

(c) Based ontheauditprocedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate In the circumstances, performed by us and 
those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in India whose 
financial siatements have heen audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or ather auditor's notice that has caused us or the 
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above 
contain any material misstatemeant, 

v, {a} The final dividend proposad In the previous year, declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year is In accordance 
with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. No dividend is paid by its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in India. 

(b) As stated in Note 12 (H) to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the holding company have 
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject o the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The 
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amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Ssction 123 of theAct, as applicabla. 

vi. Based on our examination which included tesl chacks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining Its books of 
accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trall (edit log) facility and the 
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the software. Further, during the course of our audit 
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature baing tampeared with 
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023 reporting under Rule 11(g) of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable forthe financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Mo. 000952C 

Divyank Nigam 
Place: Kanpur ::"armar ) 
Date: 30.05.2024 M, No. 438443 

UDIN:24438443BKAVIYB107 
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report 

{Refarred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirement section' of our report of even date on the consolidated 
financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the Holding Company) for the financial yearended March 31, 2024} 

Report on the Intermal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act") 

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financlal statements of Super Tannery Limitad (“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year 
anded March 31, 2024, we have audited the intemnal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company 

and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporatad in India which ara its subsidiary companies have, in all matenal respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with referance to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controds were oparating 

effectively as al March 31, 20224, based on the intermal financial controts with reference o consolidated financial statements criteria established by 
such companies considering the essential components of such internal conirols stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporatad In Indla, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with referance to consolidated financial statements bazad on the criteria 
gstablished by the respective companies considering the essential components of intermal controd stated in the Guidance Mote. These 
respongibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderdy and efficient conduct of its business, including adherencs to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hersinafter referred to a5 “the Act”), 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Cwur responsibility is fo express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
Wa conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Mote require that we comply with athical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial stalements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effactivaly in all material respects. 

Cur audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intermal financial conlrols with referanca to 
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the 
nigk that & material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effecliveness of the intermal controls based on the 
assessed nsk. The proceduras selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malenal misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud orermor. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies 

incorporated in India in terms of their reports referred 1o In the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Fimm:lql Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to conzolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemeants for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepied accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes 
those policies and proceduras thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded &s necessary to permiit 
preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
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company are baing made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
matarial effect on tha financial stataments. 

Inherant Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements 

Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal financial conirols with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibilly of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, materal misstatements due to ermor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evatuation of the internal financial contraks with reference to consalidated financial statements to future perods are subjact to 
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadeguate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the dagree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesald report under Section 143(2)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operaling effectiveness of the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to subsidianes companies incorporated in India, is based on the comesponding 
reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinian s not modified in respect of this matter. 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Flrm Registration Mo. 000852C 

(Divyank Nigam) 
Place: Kanpur Partner 
Date: 30.05.2024 M. Mo, 438443 

UDIN: 2443844 3BKAVIYE107 
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Cansolidated Balance Sheet as ot March 31, 2024 

Particulars Note As gt March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Mo, R in Lacs Rs. in Lacy Rs. in Lacs R, in Lacs 
ASSETS 

Noo-current assets 

{8] Property, Plant and Equipment 2{a) 7,760.35 7,278.94 
[b} Capital work-in-progress (e} 1.329.50 1,125 44 

[c}  Goodwill 2(b} 43.70 43.70 
[d) Diher Intangibde asuets 2 (e} B2 6.54 

(e}  Financial Assets 

I} Investrments 3 48,14 46.11 
(i} Loens L] 33g02 386.16 33802 38413 

{iii} Other Financial Assats 5 44,06 440 

Current Assets 

fa} Inventories ] 5,663.40 6,191.67 

(bl Financial Assets 

[iy Trade receivables 7 5,905.21 471213 
(i) Cash and cash eguivalents B 304.90 421.70 

Bank Balances other than (i} 
(i} above g 703.13 447 63 
{rv) Other Fimancial Assets 10 G81.93 7.5596.17 #1178 5,992.24 

(€] Cwrrent Tax Assets (Net) . . 
[d} Other current assets 11 1.B42.02 1,38%.10 

TOTAL ASSETS 2 674.58 ug.n 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
[a] Equity Share Capital 12 1,079.73 1,07%.73 

{b} Other Equity 13 8,643.30 £,100.25 
Egpusity antributable to the owners of the company 8,723.03 9,179.98 

Mon Controfling Interest 54.52 66,56 
TOTAL EQUITY 8,777.55 9,246.54 

LIABILITIES 
Nown current liabilithes 

{a] Financial liabikties 

[i} Borowings 14 Bd.BO 4483 

[b)  Deferred tax liabilites {net] 15 B12.58 75264 

(e} Other non-current labdlithes 1 Ti4.27 526,55 

Current Habilites 

[a] Financial abiities 
il Bomrowings 17 775124 6, 77159 

{i} Trade payables 18 

{a) Total Outstanding Dues to micrs and dmall enterpdises 608.48 TL3E 

{b] Total Outstanding Due to parties other than microe and small enterprises 3,038,068 345348 

{iil) Qthar financial liabilities 19 955,49 12,353.27 73617 11,062,652 
[b) Other currant Habilites friil TO9.4T 505.48 

[c}  Provisions i 22264 22111 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LLABILITIES 674,58 1 77 

Significant Accounting Policias 1 

Sep accomganying notes to the condalidated financial staterments 

Az per our attached report of even date For and an behalf of the Board 

For Kapoor Tandon & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. DD0S5IC 

Mahd. Imran Iftikharl Amin 
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Mrector 

DIN:DMETAIT DIMNOD0GET424 
Diwyank Nigam 

Partner 

W Mo, 438443 

. ¥ Awasth 

Place: Kanpur Company Sacretary 

Date: 30.05.2024 
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars Mate Mo, 2023-24 2022-23 

Rs. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs. Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

INCOME: 

Revenus from Operations 

[a) Sales [ income from operations s 21,BD0.98 71,784,10 

{b} Othar Operating Revanue 22k} Lo7e.29 Ba9.81 

Total Reverjue from operaticns 1208027 1167391 

Other income 3 21859 23113 

Total Income %.lfi am.u 

EXPENSE: 

Cost of materials consumed 24 13,671.35 11,548.19 

Purchase of stock-In-trade 15 51118 196767 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
wark-in-progress and stock-in-trade 6 291,50 75346 

Employee Benefits Expenses ki) 1,162.80 1,048,049 

Finance costs 18 463.11 Ad6.60 

Depreciation and Amortzation Expenses 680,34 B67.49 

Other Expenses 19 5,079.21 4,647.10 

Total Expensas 22,255.48 22,118.60 

Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 839,37 THE A4 

Exceptional ems . . 

Profit before Tay B839.37 TBE. 44 

Tan expense; 

1. Currant Tax 194.00 180.00 

2, Deferred Tax 5535 34.40 

3, Tax adjustment refating to earlier years 20,04 [61.37) 

26629 153,09 

Prafit for the period 573.08 633,41 

Profit/[Loss) transfer to Minority Interast 1204 [1.5%8) 

585.12 631.43 

Other comprehensive |ncome 

[if leerns that will not be reclassified to prodit or loss 

Re-measurements of the defined benafit plans 16,51 14.17 

1} Income tax refated to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total comprehensive Ineoma for the period 

Earnings per equity share an 

{Face Value per Share Rs. 1/+) 

1. Basic 

2. Diluted 

Significant Accounting Polickes 1 

Sen accompanying notes to the consolidated financial staternents 

As per our attached report of even date 

Far Kapoor Tendon & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Rogistration No. DOD952C 

Devyank Nigam 

Partner 

M. No. 438443 

Mace! Kanpur 

Date: 30,05.2024 

4.59) 1ns (3.68) 1049 

597.04 

0.53 

0.53 

For and on behal of the Board 

IMohd. Imran 

Director [Finance] & CFO 

DN 0D0ETET 

R. E. Awasthi 

Company Secretary 

Iitikhaml Amin 

Managing Director 

DAMN:00037424 
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Consolidated Statement of Wh'l Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 

A, Equity Share Capital 

Particulars R, i Laca 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 1.079.73 

Changes in Eguity Share Capital due to prior period errors - 

Restated balance as at Apell 01, 2032 1079, 73 

Changes in equity durlng the year = 

Balance s at March 31, 2023 1079.73 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - 

Restated balance as at Apeil 01, 2023 L079.73 

Changes in equity during the year - 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,079.73 

B. Oiher Equity A3, in Lacs 

Particulars Reserve B Surphus Taital 

Caplral Securities General Retained Orher 

Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Equity 

Balance 25 at April 01, 2002 19.59 iT1s 450822 .703.33 751232 

Profit for the year - - - 631,43 (3143 

Diividerd Paid [53.99) [53.99) 

Dher Comprehensive Income - - - 160.49 10,449 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.59 270.18 4,455.23 3,34535 B, 100,25 

Profit Tor the year - - - 585,12 G512 

Dihviderd Paid |53.94) [53.99) 

Dther Camprebendive Income - - - 1182 11.82 

Balance a5 at March &M 29.59 270,18 4.-10154 3&.25 w.au 

Significant Accounting Pollches 1 

See acopmpanying notes to the consolidated financial staternents 

As per gur attached report of even date For and an behalf of the Board 

Far Kapoor Tandon & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No, 0009520 

Mohd. Imran [Aikharul Amin 

Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Directar 

Dlvyank Nigam DiN-D003TE27 DIN-D003 7424 

Partmes 

M, No, £3B443 

Place: Kanpur AL K. Awasthl 

Date: 30,05.2024 Company Secretary 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Macch 31, 2024 

Particulars MNaote 1023-24 W02z 

Ma. Rs. in Lacs Rs. im Lacs 

A CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES 

Mt Profit before tax 839.37 78644 

Adjustments for : 

Depraciation/ Amostisation GEQ34 B67.49 

{Profit)/Lass on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 3.06 {33.32) 

Interast income {28.86) 25.29] 

Finance Cost 41284 352.06 

axpacted credit loss 1015 17.50 

Deferral of income on governmeant grant 114583} (100.42) 

Remeasurarment of net defined banefit plans 16.50 17 

Share of profit fram firm (3.03} [5-54] 
Derivatives of MTM Provision 1648 1477 

Operating profit before working capital changes 1.811.02 1,657.92 

Adjustment for (Increase)/decrease in operating assets 

{Increasel Decrease intrade receiables 11,193.22) 236.54 

{Increasel’ Decreass in Inventorles 52B.27 575.27 

(increasel Decrease in other non current loand [ assets 0,92 0.13 
{ncreaself Decrease inother non current finandal assets (004} [6.51] 
{increaself Dacrease in other current financial assets 127115} 333.55 

{increasel/ Decrease in other current assets {531.97) {165.44) 

Increase/ [Decreasal in non current Habilitles 11264 - 

Increase/ (Decrease] in trade paryables 9167 (129.54) 
Increase [Decrease] in other financial Rabilities 219,32 (114.21) 

Increase/ (Docrease) in other current Rabilities 103.58 {235.00] 

Increase/ [Decreasa] in Provisions 153 23.14 

Cash genarated from operations 872.97 2,175.85 

Income taxes refunded / (paid}, net {152,497} (123.01] 

Net cash generated from operating activities 720,00 2,052.84 

B,  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property Plant & Equipments {1,166.65) (BE7.05) 

Purchase af other intangitde assets [4,05] - 

Procesds from sabe of PPE 5.85 130,96 

Adjustment on consolidation GBS . 

Interest received 2886 2579 

GOther bank balances (Margin Money & others) {260.50} Ba.B3 

Net cash {used in) / generated from investing activities (1,389.59) [645.07) 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of long-term loans [Net) 35,97 (B8 

Proceeds/{repayment] from/of working capital boans 979.65 {923.40] 

Flnance costs pald (412,84} (352.08) 

Dividend Paid [53.99} [53.99) 

Nat cash used in financing activities 550.79 (1,338.35) 

INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUINALENTS {116.80) E42 

Cash and cash eguivalents at the begsning of the year 421.70 352.28 

Cash and cash equivalents a1 the end of the year 304,90 421,70 

[refer Note Mo, B for break-ug) 

Significant Accounting Policies 1 

See accompanying notes to the consalidated financial statements 
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Super Tannery Limited 
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31. 2024 

Note 1: 

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the company/parent 
company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") for the year ended March 31, 2024. Group is primarily 
engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Leather and Leather Goods. 
The Company is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur — 

208010 (UP). The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
The financial statements were approved forissue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30,2024, 

B. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Statement of compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance 
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except 
where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. 

2.  Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 

following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount; 
i} Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments), 
ii} Defined benefit plans - plan assets 
Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation tachnigue. 

3. Consolidation procedure 
(i) Theconsolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 

subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Parent 
Company is treated as subsidiary. The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitute the 
Group. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investes, is 
exposed to variable retumns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to 
affectits returns. 

(i) Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, abtains control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. 

Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the vear are included in the 
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, gains 

control until the date when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary. 
(i} The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Parent 

Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and except unrealised profits/losses 
on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have 
been harmonized, to the extent possible, to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the 
Parent Company. The consolidated financial staterments have been presented to the extent possible, in 
the same manner as Parent Company's standalone financial statements. 

{iv) MNon-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of 
subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company. 

(v) Incase of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the 
year. All assets (except fixed assets and share capital} and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing 
at the end of the year. Exchange differences arlsing on consolidation is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Investments in 100% foreign subsidiaries have been eliminated with the corresponding 
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Share Capital and Share Premium, if any, of the subsidiary company. 
(vi) Incase of associates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than 20% 

of equity (i.e. where the Group has significant influence), investments are accounted for using equity 
method except where the associate operates under severe long-term restrictions that significantly impair 
its ability to transfer funds to the parent Company. 

(vii) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary/associates, over the net assets of the 
subsidiary/associates is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill or capital 
reserve, asthe case may be. 

{viii) Aninvestmentin associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's 
share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of associate. 

(ix) Asfaras possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar circurmnstances and are presented in the same manner as 
the Company's separate financial statements. 

4.  Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification 
The Company presents assels and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. 
An asset is classified as current when it is: 
a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle, 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
¢) -expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
Aliability is classified as current when: 

a) itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle, 
b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer settliement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realisation in cash or cash equivalent is 12 months. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

5. Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. Figures have 
been rounded off to the nearest rupeesin lacs. 

6. Critical estimate and Judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assels and liabilities atthedate of  the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Tha areas involving critical estimates or jJudgements are: 
Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation) 
Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to 
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of 
future benefit costs over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and 
the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions 
regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can 
have a significantimpact on the defined benefit obligations, 
Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting 
date, based on the expected ufility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and 
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment. 
Contingencies 
Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty 
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inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the 
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties 
and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, 
the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company 
consults with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a 
liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the 
matter is disclosed. 
Waluation of deferred tax assets 
Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered 
temporary in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of 
future recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable 
income in the future, planned transactions or planned optimising measures. Economic conditions may 
change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability. 
Fair value measurements 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation 
techniques, including market multiples madel (Market Approach) and Capitalisation method (Income 
Approach)which involve various judgements and assumptions. 
impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets {other than goodwill} 
and Capital work-in-progress 
The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows 
after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth 
rates. and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are 
developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to 
calculate the present value. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods, 

7.  Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which 
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1 April 2016 measured as per the 
previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts 

and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and 
ready forintended use. 
Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income earned during the project 
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under 
Capital Work - in - Progress. 
Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these 
during more than a period of 12 months, 

8. Investment property 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 
Company, is classified as investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of 
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carryving value of property, plant and 
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1. 

equipment recognised at 1" April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase 
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its 
intended use, net charges on forelgn exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate 
variations attributable to the assets. 
An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property 
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the 
assetis derecognised. 

Depreciation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value, Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight 
line method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule || of the Act. However, in 
case of foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) the depreciation (including on Investment property) or 
amortisation is accounted for in accordance with the relevant statute / applicable accounting standard of the 
country. Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised. 

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as 
owned assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease. 
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except that, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully 
depreciated in the year of purchase. 
The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, 
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 
use,net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations 
atributable to the intangible assets, 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Staterment of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognised. 
Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years. 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on 
April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of 
transition date. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of 
each reporiing pericd and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such 
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 

unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount. 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, 
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously 
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recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had noimpairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

Leases 
Company asalessee 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified assets, the Company assesses whether: {i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (i) the 
Company as substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 
{iii} the Company has the rightto direct the use of the assat. 
As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
assetorthe site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated 
useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In 
addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. 
The lease: liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the 
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or 
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in- 
substance fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise an extension option; 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease 
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date. 
Company as aLessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 
are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is 
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments 

received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease. 

Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for 
various categories of inventory are as follows: 

(a) Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of 
purchase {Met of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Costis determined on FIFO basis. 

(b) Stockin process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads. 
(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - At estimated realisable value. 
(d) Intergroup goods transfer —transfer price 
() Import Entittement/Licences —At estimated realisable/Utilisation value 
Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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Foreign Currencies 
a) Functional and presentation currency 

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statements are 
presented in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

b) Transaction and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on 
the date of the transaction. 

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are 
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest 
cost, as the case may be, except those relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items. 
Investment in overseas Wholly Owned Subsidiares are carried in Balance Sheet at the rates prevailing on the 
dates of transaction. 

FairValue measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
fl'IEI' presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

Inthe principal market for the assatnrliabllity or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the 
Company for the asset or liability. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabllities 
Level 2 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measuremant is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period, 

Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

FPurchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 

dale that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. 
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of 
the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assels as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss. 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the 
amortised costif both the following conditions are met: 

':l'he asset s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
ows, and 
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Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of 
principal and interest (SPPI)on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
profitorioss. 

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 
A'debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met; 

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fairvalue. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate 
companies, Any debtinstrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized costor as 
FVTOCI, is classifiedasat FVTPL. 

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and 
losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised In the Statement of Profitand Loss. 
Equity investments 
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 102 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company decides to classify the same 
either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made oninitial recognition and is irrevocable. 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
inthe Profitor loss. 
De-recognition 
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
|:J|ni'r1i=1r|!j-,nr deremgnrsfed (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' 
arrangement; and either; 
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 

has transferred control of the asset. 
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at 
FVOCI) and equity instruments (measured al FVTPL) are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. 
Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are 
reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losseés on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that 
are recognised and accumulated in OCl are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss 
on thefollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. 
b} Financial assets measured atfair value through other comprehensiva income. 
In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased 
significantly, an amount equal io 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss 
allowance. 
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Financial Liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below; 

Financial Liabllities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the 
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, 
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are 
nat subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 
Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as Ipans and borrowings are initially 
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabllities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
Derecognition 
Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity. price risk and exposure on 
account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are 

initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivalive confract is entered into and are subsequently 
measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried 

asfinancial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that itis probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. Inthis case, the fee is deferred until 
the drawdown occurs, 
The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has 
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses). 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a 
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes 
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender 
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of tha financial statement for issue, not to demand 
payment as a consequence of the breach. 

100



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

21, 

22, 

23. 

24. 

25. 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. 
Bormrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing 
costs. 
Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement 
ofactivities relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such 
assetis added to the cost of the assets. 
Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying 
asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
Allother borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settleon a netbasis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right 
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the 
event of default, nsolvency orbankrupicy of the company, or the counterparty. 

Claims 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts 
and legal aspects of the matterinvolved. 

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments 
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it 

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent 
asset, butitis recognised as an asset. 

Government Grant 
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. 
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous 
period(s). Such a grantis recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable, 
Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods inwhich the 
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis. 
Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as 
they become receivable. 
In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in 
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Revenue Recognition 
Sale of Goods and services 
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. 
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27. 

28. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when (a) control is transferred to the 
customer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in case of 
export sales, 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and 
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers. 

Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & 
Services Tax (GST). 
Interest Income 
Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal 
outstanding. 
Dividend Income 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
astablished. 

Export Incentives 
Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established. 
Insurance Claim 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent 
that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 
OtherIncome 
Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain ans in such 
casesitis accounted for on receipt basis. 

Employee benefits 

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly 
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government. 
Defined Contribution Scheme 
In case of provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no 

abligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. 
In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such 
trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the 
investment and the interest payable to members atthe rate declared by the Government of India. 
The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved 
Trust, Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees’ State Insurance 
Corporation are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense when employees have 
rendered services entitling them to contributions. 
Defined Benefit Scheme 
Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefitis determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using 
the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and return on plan assets), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they ocour. Itis included in retained eamings in the statement of 
changes inequity andin the balance sheet. 
Leave encashment. Accrued Leaves are encashed annually at the end of the calendar year and not 
accumulated. Provision for the same is done on the basis of leaves accrued as at the end of the reporting 
period. 

Research and Development Expenditure 
Expanditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature 
is capitalized as fixed assets. 

Taxes onincome 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions 
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws 
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance 
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using 
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the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and 
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses 
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax 
assels and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities 
are off set, and presented as net. 
Currentand deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not 
in the Statement of Profitand Loss. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT Is recognised as an deferred tax asset in the 
Balance Sheet when itis probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 

30. Dividend Distribution 
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are 
approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders. 

31. CashFlow Statement 
Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and 
cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not 
available for general use on the date of balance sheet. 

32. Earnings pershare _ 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of 
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax {including the post-tax effect of 
extraordinary items, If any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of 
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of eguity 
shares which could have beenissued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the 
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be 
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potantial 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. 
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential ‘equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares 
are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. 

33. SegmentReporting 
Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the Company. 

34. Recentindian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 
Effective 1" April 2023, the Company has adopted the amendments vide Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 notifying amendments to existing Indian Accounting Standards. These 
amendments to the extent relevant to the Company's operations were relating to: Ind AS 1 "Presentation of 
Financial Statements” which replaces the requirement for the entities to disclose their "significant” accounting 
policies with a requirement to disclose their "material” accounting policies and further provides guidance on 

how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The 
amendments clarify that accounting policy information is expected to be material if, without it, the user of 
financial statements would be unable to understand other material information in the financial statements and 
also clarify that immaterial accounting policy information need not to be disclosed, however, ifit is disclosed, it 
should not obscure the material accounting policy information. Further, consequential amendments with 
respect to the concept of 'material accounting policies' have also been made in Ind AS 107 "Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures” and Ind AS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting”. The Company has modified and 
presented its "material accounting policies” in the financial statement for the year commencing from April 1, 
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2023 in compliance with the amendments made. 

Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” which introduces a definition of 

“accounting estimates” and provides guidance to help entities to distinguish changes in accounting policies 
from changes in accounting estimates. The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company. 

Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes" narrows the scope of the 'initial recognition exemption' so that it does not apply to 

transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on its initial recognition. The 
amendments apply to the transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period 

presented in the annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. In addition, at the beginning of the 
earliest reporting period presented deferred tax on all the temporary differences associated with Right-of- use 

asset and lease liabilities; decommissioning, restoration and similar liability and the corresponding amounts 
recognized as part of the cost of the related assets shall also require to be recognized as an adjustment to the 

opening balance of retained earmnings. The amendments do not have any material impact on the Company as it 
has already been following accounting policy of recognizing deferred tax on equal and offsetting temporary 

differences on initial recognition of lease transactions. 

There are other amendments in various standards, including Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption if Indian 
Accounting Standards™, Ind AS 102 “Share-based Payment”; Ind AS 103 "Business Combination”; Ind AS 109 

“Financial Instruments”; and Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Conltracts with Customers” which are not listed herein 

above since these are either not material or relevant to the Company. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is 
no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2024, 

{a) Property, plant and egquipment |Rs. In lacs) 

Electric 
Land Factory Plant & Offica Furniture & Capital 

Particulars Erechald buikding | Machinery Installation | Computer Equipment |  Fortures Vehicle Tatal wip 

& Fittings 

Gross carrying valua 

As at March 31, 2022 169.28 259916 6, 80946 221.01 51.23 7L.10 179.87 57064 | 10,671.75 B40.46 

Additions - SB.47 IRTAZ 1141 27 B.26 14.12 BE.GO 591.05 383.45 

indAs Adjustments - - 12139 - - - - - 127.39 

Adjustment/[Deletions) -17.01 {113.03} (1,23} (131.27] 198.47] 

As at March 31, 2023 152,27 | 2,657.63] 7.211.4 23142 54.00 78,36 193.99 63801 11,25892 | 1,125.44 

Additions 30.00 152.58 B23.05 S.01 894 611 1E.14 8051 96335 204,06 

|IndAs Adjustments - - 27617 - - - - - 27617 

adjustment/[Deletions) - - (B3.34} - - - - (76.66)  -160.00 
As at March 31, 2024 182,27 | 2.B50.2%| #.032.12 241.43 62.94 85.47 232.13 B51.B6 | 12,338.44 | 1,329.50 
Accumudated 

| Depreciation/Amortisation 

!A.'l at March 31, 2022 - FA8.44 2,355.67 10860 39.80 39.08 107.62 33920 3,338.41 

Il:lepreuamn for the year 4516 452.05 a.80 1.20 9.81 2221 T2.63 609,85 

IndAs Adjustments 57.14 5714 

Adjustment/[Deletions) (25.00} [0.43) [25.43] 

As at March 31, 2023 393600 2,839.86 115.40 41.00 A48.89 179.83 411.40| 3,979.98 
|Depreciation far the year 7L.29 453 I8 R 1.59 E71 19,57 454 60655 

[indss Adjustments - 7319 - - - - - 7319 

Adjustment/[ Deletions) - (10.98) - - - - [ 70.65) [B1 B3] 

As at March 31, 2024 464.89 |  3,354.35 123.09 421.59 57.60 145,40 J6.17| 4,578.08 

| Met Carrying amount 

A% at March 31, 2022 165.28 2,250.72 445379 112.41 11.43 32.02 T125 23144 733334 840,46 

A5 at March 31, 2023 15227 2.304.03 437138 117.02 13.00 30.47 .16 226.61 727894 | 112544 

As at March 31, 2024 1B2.27 2,385.33 4,677.77 11834 20.35 27.87 B2.73 26569 7,760.35 | 1,329.50 

|b) Goodwill - Gaodwill on Consolidation 

[Rs. In lacs) 

Particulars 

Carrying value 

As at March 31, 2023 43.70 
Addition during the year - 

As at March 31, 2024 43.70 
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[e] Other Intangible assets 

Particulars E“'“F """;' Website | Trademark | TOTAL 
[P bn lacs) | (Rs. In lacs) | (Rs. bn lacs) | (R4 bnlacs) 

Gross carrying value 

A at March 31, 2022 5.80 0.41 2.57 B2.78 

Additions 0.12 x - 0.12 

Adjustment| Deletions) - - - - 

Deletions - - 

As at March 31, 2023 5.92 0.41 .57 8.90 

Additions 3.27 3.27 

Adjustrment/| Deletions) . 
Disletians - 

As at March 31, 2024 9.19 0.41 2.57 12.17 

Accurnulated Depreciation - 

As at March 31, 2022 0.48 0.4%3 0.99 1.87 

Depreciation for the year 0.49 - - 0.49 

Adjustrnent| Deletions) - - 

As at March 31, 2023 0.97 0.48 093 1.36 
Depreciation for the year .59 .59 

Agfjustrment| Deletions) - 

As at March 31, 2024 1.56 0.40 0.99 2.95 

Net Carrylng amount 

As at March 31, 2022 5.32 0.01 158 6.91 

As at March 31, 2023 4.95 0.01 158 6.54 

As at March 31, 2024 7.63 001 1.58 9.22 

{d] Assets given as security for borrowings 

|:|'| &l the items of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been given to lenders as secarity for various borrowang facilities, 

{il] The managerment has carried out an exercise of identifying the assar that may have been impaired, during the year, in respect of each cash generating unit. On 

the basis of review carried out by the management, there was no impalrment loss on flked assets during the year. 

{e] Capltal-Work-in Progress {CWIP) 

[Rs. In lacs) 

|} Ageing schadule for Capital-work-in pre As 3t March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Amount in CWIF for & period of Toital Amgunt in CWIP for & period of Tatal 

Lessthanl | 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan 3 Lessthan 1 | 1-2 years 2- 3 years Mare than 3 
Ear WEArS Ear WAL 

|i] Projects in progress 204,07 353.45 EX6. 72 11526 1,339.50 383,45 B26.T2 4.9% 11428 1,135.44 

[ir] Projects terporarily suspended 

Total 204.07 383.45 X672 11526 1,325.50 3E3.45 EX6.72 4.99 114028 1,125.44 

[a) OWIP, whode completian b4 overdue o s exceeded 713 codt compared be fs arigsnal plan: MIL MIL 

(1] Intangible assets under development [Intangible CWIP) MIL NIL 
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Nates forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3 Financial Assets: Investments - Non Current 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

Equity Shares Unquoted 

A. OTHERS 

(i) SUPERHOAUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED 

5,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully padd 050 050 

(i AL-BARA FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED 
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ gach fully paid 100 200 

{iii] SVIT PROMENT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED 

8,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 1.08 117 
{Iw] INCUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES [INDIA) LIMITED 

25,200 Equity Shares of fts. 10/~ each fully pakd 247 247 

{v) KAMPUR UNMAD LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTOL 

75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10y~ each fully paid 7.50 7.50 

{vi] LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT 
10,000 Equity Shares of fs. 10/ each fully paid - 100 

{wii] JAJMALE TAMNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCRATION 

26,200 |NH| Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 262 1,62 

Total- A& 16.17 17.26 
E— E— 

Equity Shares Cuoted 
B. (] Superhouss Limited 

5,200 Equity Sharas of B 10/- sach fully paid 052 052 

Total < B 0.52 0.52 

Investment in Partnership Firm 

€ Bovini Frills WP 
15% in the capital of the LLP 075 0.75 

Share of Reserves and Surplus of the LLP 30.70 27.58 

Tokal - € 31.45 28.33 

Total (AsB4C) 48.14 46.11 

hggregate Book Value of Quoted wvestments 052 052 

Market Value of Quoted Investments i) 1235 

hgpregara Book Value of Unguoted Investments 16,17 17.26 

Rs. In Lacs 

Capital as on Capital as on 

Name of Partners Pmllflflflr!htln 31.03. 2024 31,03.2023 

1 Mr.Shahbhaz Khan S5% 275 75 

1 Super Tannery Limited 15% 075 7S 

3 Mr. liikharol Amin 15% 035 075 

4 Mr. Igbal Ahsan 15% 0.75 075 
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MNotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

4 Financial Assets; Loans - Non Current 

Particulars Ag ot Masch 31, 2024 Az ot March 31, 2023 

Rs. in Lacs A3, in Lacs 

Unsegured Conskdered Good 

Loans & Advances 33802 338002 

Total 338.02 338,02 
————i ——e e e 

5 Other Financlal Assets- Mon Current 

Particudars As ot March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs in Lacs Hs. in Lacs 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Security Deposits A4.06 44,01 

Total 44,06 a44.01 

& Inventories At cost or net realisabbe value whichever is lower) 

Parthculars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

sl Lacs Aa. In Lacs 

Raw Materials 1,.282.68 147178 

Waork in Progress 2,118.48 1,950.36 

Finished Goods B55.45 1,319.05 

Chemical, Companerits, Stores and spares 1,381.93 LaX62 

Waste & Scrap 24 86 20.B6 

Tatal 5&2.40 5191.&? 

{al Allthe lnventortes have baen hypothecatad as securlty for varous working facllitles from banks, 

T Financial Assets - Current: Trade Receivable 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

s, in Lacs As. in Lacs RAs. i Lacs RAs. in Lacs 

[a] Secured Considered Good = - 
[bF  Unsecured Considered Good 580521 4,722.13 

{c}  Unsecured which have significant increase in credit risk - - 

[d} Unsecwred credit impaired 13276 11261 

602797 483474 

Less: [rpairment loss allowance [ECL) 12276 112.61 

Total &905.11 472213 

[a] Adl the Trade Recelvables have been hypothecated as security for varlous working facilities frem banks, 

Trache Receivable ageing Schedule; Bs. In Lacs 

Outstanding from due date/date of transaction Total 

Particulars Not Due Less than & months 1 year - 2 year - More than 

& months - 1 year 2 year 3 year 3 years 

As at March 31, 2024 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
i} Considered Good 1,953.55 2,878.60 73097 149.15 15399 5,905.21 

(i} Which have significant 

ncrease in credi risk - 

(i} Credit impained 60,71 2050 1118 %37 12276 

Disputed Trade Recalvables 

|} Considered Gaod 

{ii} Which hawe significant 

increase in credit risk 

{jii}. Credit impaired - 

Total 1,953.55 1,939.71 751.42 16133 - 11138 5.027.57 
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As at March 31, 2023 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

{l] Considered Good 419.42 377612 S0T.49 .56 - 19.54 A4,73213 

{Il) Which have significant 

Increase In credit risk 

[ifi) Credit impaired - 106,14 1,08 0.51 468 112.61 

Dizgputed Trade Receivables 

{i} Considered Good 

i) Which hawe significant 

increase in credit risk 

{iil} Cradit impairad 

Total 419.42 3,B82.26 503.57 5.07 - 24.42 4,834.74 

8 Financial Assets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars As st March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023 

Rz, in Lacs Rs. im Lacs 

Balances with banks 

o CUTEnt accounts 221.63 39262 

oy EEFC accounts B5.04 1635 

on fiked depesit 5.54 513 

Cheques and Draft on Hand/Remittance m Transit 4.73 - 

Cash on hand ¥.96 1.50 

Total 304,50 41170 

Notes forming part of the Consolldated Finantlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

9 Financial Assets - Current; Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023 

Rs. im Lacs R, in Lacs 

Margln money deposits 69148 434,99 

[restricted, held as lien against bank guearantees/LCs) 
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend 11.65 7.64 

Tokal 703.13 441.63 

10 Other Current Financial Assets 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. Im Lacs Rs. in Lacs. 

Unsecurad considered good 

Export Incentive Recevable 36341 136,77 

Balance with Govt/Revenue authority 315,52 175.01 

Total 682.93 411.78 

11 Other Current Assets 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Re. In Lacs Rs, in Lacs 

Unsecired coensidered good 

Advances to Trade Creditors 1,437.46 1,189.23 

Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be recaived 349,89 152,75 

Prepaid expenses 55.67 4512 

Taital 1,842.02 1,387.10 
* e e 
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12 Equity Share Capital 
Particulars 3 3t March 31, 2024 A at March 31, 2023 

No. of Mo, of 

Shares Rs. in Lacs- Shares As. im Lacs 

Authorised 

Equlty Shares of Rs. 1/-=ach 110,000, 000 1,200.00 110,000,000 1,100.00 

Issaed 

Equity Shares of Rs, 1/-each 107,973,360 1.073.73 107,973,360 1,079.73 

Subscribed and fully paid-up 

Equity Shares of Ks. 1/-aach 107,973,360 10773 107,973,360 107973 

Tatal 1079.73 1,0M%.73 

{4} Reconiliation of the number of equity shares and share capital 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As gt March 31, 2023 

Mo, of Mo of 

Shares Rs. in Lacs Sharas Rs, in Lacs 

Subscritied and fully poid-up equity shares 
Qutstanding at the begmning of the year 17,973,360 107973 107,973,360 1,079.73 

Shares issued during the year - - - - 

Outstanding at the end of the year 107,973,360 1,079.73 107,973,360 1,079.73 

18] Detadl of Shares held by the promoters: 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 Changes during the year 

5. Mame of the Promoter No. of % of Shares Mo, of % of Shares Changes during the year 

HNo. Shares heid Shares held Mo of shares % 

1 VEQLMARUL AMIN 17,883,500 16.56% 17,883,500 16.56% - 0.00% 

2 10BAL AHSAN 9,143,502 BATH 9,142,502 8.4T% - 0.00% 

3 IFTIKHARLL AMIN 9,080,432 Bal% 9,080,432 8.41% - 0.00% 

A MUBASHIRUL AMIN 4,580,000 4.25% 4,550,000 4.25% - 0.00% 

5 UMGAIRLUL AMIN 4,550,000 4.25% 4,590,000 4.25% - 0.00% 

6 TANVEERLIL AMIN 4,500,000 1.17% 4,500,000 417 - 0.00% 

7 FARHA FATING 4,116,289 1.81% 4,500,000 4.17% [383,711) -0.36% 

B SOPHIA AMIN 3,458,400 3.10% 3,458,400 3.20% - 0.00% 

5 1SMAT IORAL 3,082,800 2.56% 3,082.800 1A% - 0.00% 

10 RUNANA AMIN 2,633 40 L.44% 2,633,400 Ladk - 0.00% 

TOTAL 63,077,723 58.42% 63,461,434 58.76% [383,711) -0.36% 

As at March 31,2023 Az at March 31,2022 Changes during the year 

5. Mame of the Promater No, of % of Shares Ko, of % of Shares Changes during the year 

Mo, Shares Teakd Shares held Mo of shares H 

1 VEQLARUL ANIN 17 883,900 16.56% 17,883,900 16.56% - 0.00% 

2 10BAL AHSAN 9,142,502 BATR 9,142,502 BATH * 0.00% 

3 IFTIKARLIL AMIN 9,080,432 EAl% 9,080,432 241% - 0.00% 

4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 4,590,000 4.25% 4,550,000 £25% - 0.00% 

5 UMAIRUL AMIN 4,590, 00 4.35% 4,550,000 A.25% - [0 

B TANVEERUL ANIN 4,500,000 4.17% 4,500,000 4.1 - 0.00% 

T FARHA FATEMA 4,454,912 A.14% 4,500,000 417% 135,088) -0.03% 

B SOPHIA AMIN 3,458,400 3.20% 3,458,400 320 - 0.0 

9 ISMAT HIBAL 3,082,800 1.B6% 3,082,800 2.86% - 0.00% 

10 RUMANA AMIN 2,633,400 244% 2,633.400 1.44% - 0.00% 

TOTAL 63,426,346 58.74% 53,461,434 5B.70% {35.088) 0.03% 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

{B] Terms and rights attached to equity shares 

The company has only one dass of equity shares baving a par value of 5. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entithed to one vote per share, The company declares 

and pays dividends in Indian Rupess. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting. 

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the nember of equity shares held by the shareholders, 
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|C] Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the company 

Partioulars As at March 31, 2024 A at March 31, 2023 

Mo, of No, of 

Shares % Shares * 

{a}  Mr.Vegarul Amin 17,683,800 16.56% 17,883,900 16.56% 

{b] Mr. Igbal Ahsan 0,142,502 BATR 9,142,502 BATH 

(e} Mr. iftikbarul Amin 5,080,432 B41% 9,080,432 B.A41% 

107324 03223 

{Mo. of Shares) {No. of Shares) 

(D) Equety-Shares aliotted as fully paid pursisant to contract(s) without payment being recaived in cash 

during the immediately preceding five years L MR 

{E} Eqquity Shares allotted as fully paid up Bones Shared during the immediately preceding fve years NIL NIL 

{F}  Equity shares buy-back in immediately preceding five years NIL NIL 

(G] Shares hald by holdingfultimate holding company and/for thelr subsidlarles/ assoclates . HIL NIL 

{H] The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final dividend of Re. 005 per equity share {5%) face value of Re.1 each for the year ended March 31, 2024, 

subrect to the aserovad of Sharsholders, 

13 Other egquity 

Particudars As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023 

As. In Lacs Rs, in Lacs 

Capital Resera 29.58 .59 

Securities Premivm 270,18 27018 

General Reserve 440124 4,455.23 

Retained Earnings 354229 3,345.25 

Total fi.&l} B,100.25 

&) Capital Reserve 
It represent the gain of capital nature which mainly Include the excess of value of net assets acquired over consideration paid by the company for business combination in 

earfier years. 

B} Securities Pramium 
Securities premium is used to recard the premium on issue of shares. This resene is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

€] General Reserve 

The Company has transferréd a portion of the net peofit of the Company before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant o the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 

1956, Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013, 

{0) Retalned Earnings 

Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, bess any transfers to general reserve, dividends paid or other distributions out of reserves to 

shareholders; 

MNotes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

14 Financial Lizbilities - Non-current: Borrowings 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 #s at March 31, 2023 

Rs, in Lacs Rs.in Lacs 

Secured 

Term laans from banks - INR 

Vishicle Term loans from banks - INR B4.B0 44 B3 

Tetal B4.80 

Armount of default as on the Balanoe Sheet dati: 

(@) Repayment of loan NIL NIL 

6] Interest on Loan NIL NIL 

Repayment terms: 

[a) The classification of loans between current labilited and non -current lisbilities continues based an repayment schedule under respective agresmants as ne loans have 

been recalied due to non compliance of conditions under any of the loan agreements, 

&) Scheduled repayments: Contradtual repayments in case of loans from banks {including Current maturities disclosed under other Current financial liabilties: 
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Particulars Asat March 31, 2024 Ag at March 31, 2023 

R in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

Upto three years 95,34 59,79 
Between three to flve years 10:65 958 

Ouer five years - - 

Reder note 39{0) (M) & (111} on ntesest rate risk and Liquidity Risk respectively, 

Sepurity details:- 

Term Loan other than Wehicle Eoans 
Aforesaid Term Loans are secured by hypothecation/morigage of company’s moveable and im-moveable properties. Further secured by the personal guarantee of 

pramoter Directors of the company and Aarifi tanners Ltd, which is the subsidiary of the company 

{e] Secured by hypathecation of vehicle financed and are repayable In 36 to 80 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIS) 

15 Deferved tax liabilities (Net) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

e I Lacs R In Lacs 

Taw effect of itarms constifuting daferred tow bty 

On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 1,084.04 E60.83 

Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabdlity 1,084.04 EG0.H3 

Tox effect of iterms constituting deferred tox assets 

Expenses allowable on payment basis and other items 271,46 108.19 

Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 27146 10H.19 

Net Deferred Tax Liakillty 812,58 75264 

16 Other Non-current Liabilities 

Particulars #s at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Rs. In Lacs Rz i Lacs 

Defarred Revenue 

Gawl Grant under IDLS 15227 04 82 

EPCG Obligations 562.00 43173 

Total 14,27 526.55 

{a) Government Grani under IPA5, the deferred grant income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis ovar the useful Hife of assat on which sich 

grant is received subject to compliance of other terms & conditions of the scheme, 

{b] Under EPCG scheme, the Company |s committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on impart of capital goods over & specified period of time apart from 

maintaining average export growth. In case such commitments are nat met, the Company would be required to pay the duty saved along with interest to the regulatory 

authorities, The defarred grant income-is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss ona systematic basis over the periods in which the related performance obligations 

are fulfilled, 

Motes forming part of the Consolldated Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024 

17 Financial Liabilities - Current: Borrowings 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

RAs. i Lacs Rs. in Lacs Re i Lacs s In Lacs 

Seoured 

Working Capltal Loan From Banks 

Rupes Loans 

[a) ‘Cash Credit 432.08 41950 

(b} Packing Credit 4.368.48 45211 

{c) Advance against bills sent an collection 2.300.40 7.100.96 1,671.52 661261 

Other Short term Barrowings 

Fareign Currency loan 

[i} . Stand by line of Credit{S8LC) - 629,09 134,44 

Current matwrities of long term bosrowings 21.19 2454 

Total 775104 6,771.59 

Arpount of default as on the Balance Sheet date! 

[a) Repayment of loan MEL HiL 

|b} Interest on Loan NIL WL 
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[A) Security 

Working Capital Leans are primarily secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Assets and Actionable Claims [viz, Inventories, trade receivable [ book 

debts, outstanding monies, receivable chaims, bills and materials in transit), 

Thase are further collaterally secured by extension of charge over moveable and immoveable properties of the company, 

Further secured by personal guarantee of promoter directorls) of the company and Aarifi tanners ltd. which is the subsidiary of the company, 

[B} Stand by Line of Credit{58LC} are primarily secured by hypothecation of Plant and machinery and raw material and are further secured by personal guarantee  of 

pramoter dirgéctor(s) of the company and Aarifi tanners fd. which is the subsidiary of the company. 

IC} Rate of interest 

‘Working capltal credit facllities carry interest rates ranging from 7.20% to B.A5%. 

18 Financial Liahilities - Current: Trade Payable 

Particulars. As at March 31, 2024 A5 at March 31, 2023 

Rs. In Lacs s In Lacs 

{2} Total Gutstanding Dues to-micro and small enterprises (refer note bebow) GOE. 48 71.38 

{b) Total Qutstanding Due to parties ather than micre and small emterprises 3,038,068 3,483 48 

Total 3.646.54 3,554.86 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule: 

Particulars. Mot Due Dutstan frovm due date/date of transaction Taotal 

Less than 1-2 years 2-3years Wbore thian 

-1 year 3 years 

As at March 31, 2024 

Undiputed Dues 

(i} MSME (Micro and Small Entities) BOS 48 - - - 60848 

iy Othars 1,556.32 138239 6817 15.65 1553 3,038.08 

Disputed Dues 

[ih  MSME [Micro and Smadl Entithes) - 

[il) Others . 

Total 2,164.80 138239 68.17 15.65 15.53 3,646,54 

As at March 31, 2023 

Undisputed Dues 

i} MSME (Micro and Small Entlties) 22.44 4854 TL38 

{ily Othars 937.61 1,506.22 495 o8 3.5 3,483.48 

Diputed Dies 

(i} MSME [Micraand Small Entities) - 

fiij Others - 

Tatal 960,05 2,555.16 4.95 0.18 34.52 3,554.86 

Nota; The company has requested confirmation from Suppliers regarding their registration {filfing of Memorandum| ender the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 (the MSMED Act). According to the information availabbe with the company, the following disclosures has been made in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises: 

Particulars A at March, 2024 Az at March, 2073 

fis. in Lacs Ris. in Lacs 

{a] Principal amount and Interest dise thereon remaining unpald 1o any supplier at the end of the year 

Principal Aot B0B.A8 T3k 

Interest due on abave 110 
(b}  Amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment i ik 

miade to the supplier beyond the sppointed day during the year 

[c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment {which have been pald but beyond the 

appointed day during the year) but withaut adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act HIL ML 

{d} the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 564 5,54 

fe} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, untit such date when the Interest 

dues above are actually pald to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditere under HIL NIL 

section 23 of the MSMED Act 

19 Financial Liabilities - Current: Other Financlal Liabilities 

Particulars As at March 21, 2024 A5 at March 31, 2023 
RL. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs 

[a] Book overdraft from banks 21.23 3E.40 

[b} Undaimed Dividend* 11,65 T.64 
el Orther Liabilities 91161 690.13 

Tatal 955.49 736.17 

* Represents dividend amounts either not claimed of kept kn abeyance In accordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013 
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20 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars #Ais at March 31, 2024 Az at March 31, 2023 

Rs. In Lacs Rs.-n Lacs 

{al Advance from customers 1E2.57 192.06 

(b} Advance against sale of fixed assets 460.10 7310 

fch  M-to-# valuation on forward cover 6520 40.32 

Total T09.47 605.48 

21 Current Liabilities: Provisions 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Az at March 31, 2023 

As. in Lacs Rs. i Lacs 

Provisson for Gratuity 214.E1 114,21 

Provision for current tax 783 6.90 
Total 112.64 12111 

22 Revenus from operations 

Parficulars 202324 022-13 

Rs. i Lacs As. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. i Lacs 

{2} %aies / Income from operations 

{i) Sales {Expart & Overseas) 18,452.42 17,654 38 

[ily Exchange Fluctuation on Sales (Export} 158.81 368,18 

{Fii} Sales {Indigenous) 3.149.75 3,760.53 
[refer Mote [c} bebow for break-up) 21,800.58 21,784.10 

(b) ©ther operating revenue 

Export Incentives {refer Note [d) below for break-up) 1,079.29 88981 

Revenue from operations (gross) Em 22,673.91 

Particulars 0233 2072223 
A, in Lacs A= In Lacs 

€] Breakup of Sales 

Finished Leather B416.54 11,856 78 
Leather 5hoe and companents 12, 384,04 9,927.34 

Othars 

Total 21,500.548 21,754.10 

{d] Detaits of other pperating revense 

Export Incentives 

Duty Draw Back [ ROSL B 2T Ga0.08 

licences/Entitlements 23302 24573 

Totad 1,074.29 BEGEL 

23 Othir Income 

Farticulars 02324 20223 
A=, in Lacs R in Lacs 

Irterest income 

- from Freed Deposit with Banks 2601 1936 

- received fram Incomi Tax [ 563 

Profit on Sale of Froperty, Plant & Equipments. 0.21 3348 

Deferred revenis on EPCG & IDES Subsidy 14583 100,42 

Exchange Fluctuation - 20,52 

Mizeellaneous Incarms 4341 4519 

Share of profit from the firm 313 623 

Tatal 218.59 23113 
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24 Cost of material ¢ d 
Particudars 2023-24 022-23 

Rs. in Lacs RS, in Lacs Rs. in Lacy Rs. in Lacs 

Raw Material consumed 
fal’ Raw Hide for sole 87.87 4041 

{b]  Raw Hide for chrame 3,337.48 2,943.E7 
fc]  Wet Biwe Leather Chromea 43,06 27126 

{d]  Upper for safety shoes 1,639.87 BOL1.E8 
{e) Finish keather for shoe upper and shoes 250493 2,010,749 

il Others 285.63 507.46 
Haw Material consumed 7888 84 E.581.62 
Chemicals consumed 3,163.72 :4,102.63 
Stores & Spares consumed 2,618.79 L,B63.89 

Total E‘H..!E ESI-‘I.I.E 

25 Purchase of stockin trade 

Particudars 02334 2022-23 
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lescs 

fa) Finshed Leather [including Split) 50966 L596. 75 

{b] Shoe Uppar 301.52 37091 

Total 911.18 E’Ifi 

26 Increase/dacrease in Inventories 

Particufars 2023-24 2022-23 
R, im Lacs Rs. In Lacs As. i Lags R, in Lacs 

Imventories ab the cammencemant ol the year 

Finlshed Gopds 1.319.05. 1LE72.15 

Work in process 1,950.38 2,293.09 
Scrap 20.86 1i8.51 

TOTAL A’ 3,290.29 4,083.75 

Imventorios at the end of the year 

Finished Goods B55.45 1,319.05 

Work in process 2118.48 1,950.38 
Scrap 24.86 2086 

TOTAL B 299879 3,290.29 

Decrease/{increase) In Stocks (A-8) 29150 793.46 

I7 Employes benefit expense 

Particulars 2023-24 202223 
Re jh Laes Re. in Lacs 

Salary, Wages and Bonus aro.2 700,43 
Directors Remuneration B5.58 61598 

Contribution to Provident and other funds BE.12 7R.ED 
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 5792 57.32 

‘Waorkmen and Staff Walfare sxpanses 73.50 59.56 

Total i 16280 ym 

ZB Finance cost 

Farticulars 202324 2022-23 
R ir Lacs Re.in Lacs 

Interest on 

- Tarm Loan B.63 - 

- Others 40621 35206 
412.B 35206 

Bank Charges £ b T9.82 
Foreign Bank Charges 1316 14.72 

Total 463.11 446,60 
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Hotes forming part of the Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

19 Other expentes 

Particulars 2023-24 032-23 

As. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs. Rs.in Lacs 

Manufacturing Expenses 

Job Wark Charges 1,550.42 128464 
Power and Fosl 645,62 07.17 

Effluent Treatment Expenses 65.85 119.31 

Repairs and Maintenance 

= Buibding 173,67 119,65 

- Machinery 145.34 142,51 
2,584.90 337328 

Sefling and Distribution Expenses 

Freight, Handling and Cther Sales and Distribution Expanses 110430 1,254.37 

Commission gn Sale 249,48 104,08 
Adwertisarment and Pubficity 1531 4.05 

Expected Credit Loss. 10,15 17,50 

Bad Debis - Provisson/write off 107.68 2793 

1,486.92 1,407.53 

Establishment Expenses 

Rent 31.59 27.48 

Rates and Taxes 65,80 5573 

Insurance 50.77 4280 

EL.G.C Premium T4.66 0,43 

Communication cost 36,57 36,22 

Travelling and Conveyance 276,69 189,72 

Repairs and Maintenancea - Others a7.90 58,57 

Printing and Stationeny 1278 11.66 

Legal dand Professional Charges B1,02 &0.60 

Auditor's Remuneration {refer Note {a) below} 379 3.55 

Miscellaneous Expanses 195832 206.29 

Research-B Devalopment Expenses 272 540 

Eachange Difference 5574 §4.16 

Charity and Donation 10.73 10,81 

Loss om Sale of Property, Flant & Eguipments 36 0.16 

Bemunition In value of Investment 0.09 0.29 

Corporate Soclal Responsibility Expenses 13,45 12.02 

100739 86585 

Total 5079.21 464710 

{a] Auditor's remuneration comprises: 

As auditor 3.54 3.54 

Total 3.54 3.54 

MNotes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 202324 2021-23 

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. i Lacs 

30 Earning per shase {EPS) 

{a} Profit for the year (Rs, In Lacs} 57308 63341 

(b} Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposs of 

of calculation of Basc and Dikuted EPS 107,973,360 107,973,360 

{c} Mominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 100 100 

(d} EPS- Basic and diluted |Rupses per shars) 053 05 

31 Capital and other commitmints 
i. Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account (net of adwances] 297.00 180.71 

Il Othier Commitments NIL NIL 
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12 Contingent lizhilities 
(i Contingent Liabilitkes in respect of: 

{2} Lemter of Credit opened and outstending 22783 GES.IL 

{b) Claima againgt the company not scknowledged a4 debt NIL NIL 

33 Disclosure purssant to ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits™: 

{a] Defined Contribution Plan 
The employess of the Company are members of a state-manaped retirement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Pension and Employes State insurance (ES) 

aperated by the Governement of India, The Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payrall costs La the retirement benefit and £5) schemes, 

The only oblgation of the company with respect to such retirement and other benefit plan s to make the specified contributions. 

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Income Statement during the year under ‘Contribution Lo stalf provident and other funds’ |refer note 27) 

Rs. in Lacs 

[Particulars 2023-24 H022-13 
Emphoyer's contribution to PF and FPF BE.10 6248 

Employer's contribution to ESIC 1g.02 16.32 

[Tata &6.12 78.80 ] 

{b) Defined Benefit Plan 
The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a-defined benefit plan, is managed by the trust maintained with LIC. The present value of obligation is determined based 

on actuarial valuation useng Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and 

measures each unit separately 1o bulld up the final obligaton. 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars Gratulty {Funded| Gratuity [Funded) 

March 31, 2034 Mearch 31, 2023 

14} Movements in present value of defined benefit obdigation 

Obligathons as at beginning of the year 3a029 325,43 

Current Serice cost 39.52 36,67 

Interest cost 1433 311 

Current senvice contribution- employes . . 

Past Sarvice Cost 

Plan amandment - - 
Remeasurement [or Actuarial {gain)/Losc) arising fram ’ & 

- change In demographic assumption . 

- change in financial assumpticn 1.B6 {L18) 

- experience variance [12.32) [13.57) 
= others . . 

Benafits paid {19.61} (30:18) 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the yaar 369,07 340.29 

{B]  Movements in the falr value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 126.08 134,36 

Inyestment incoma 501 9.54 

Retwrn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net Interest expense o5 {0.57) 

Actual contributions by the employer 317 1281 

Employee contribution - % 

Benefits paid {12.61) [30.16) 
Fair walue of plan assets as at end of the year 154.26 126,08 

{€)  Amount recognized inthe balance sheet 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 38807 340.29 

Fair value of plan essets as st end of the year 154.26 126.08 

Funded status {Surplud/[deficitl} {214.81) {214.21) 
Effect of balance sheet assat Rimit . . 

Unrecognised past senvice cost - - 

Met asset/fliability} recognised in balance sheet (214.81) [214.21) 

Mt assetf{hiability) recognised in balance sheet at beginning of the year [#14.21) {181.07) 

Expanse recognised in Staterment of Profit and Loss 54.84 50.23 

Expense recognised in Other Compeehensive Income {16.51) (14.18) 
Artual contributions by the employer EXvE] 1291 
et acopiitine el A i : 

Met asset/{iability) recognised in balance sheet at end of the year (214.81) [214.21) 
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(O} Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and bess 

Current service cost ‘39,52 3667 

Enterest cost 15.32 1356 

Loss/f{gain) on settlement - - 

Past sarvice cost - - 

Total 54.84 50.23 

(E} Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 

Actuarial [gain) / loss due to 

- change in demograghic assumpion - 

- change kn financial assurmption 388 1118} 

- ENperkence Variance [19.32) [1357) 

- othiers - - 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net Interest expense [1.05) 0.57 

Remeasuremant jor actuarial (gain)/loss) arising due to asset ceiling - - 

Total {16.51) {14.18) 

[Fl Category of plan assets 
Funds managed by Inswrer 100% 100% 

[G) Sensitivity analysis 

D0 on base assumptions 369.07 340,29 

A. Dizcount Rate 

1. Effect due to 1.00% increase In discownt rate -6.51% 34503 -6.36% 31865 

2. Effect due to 1.00% decrease in discount rate 7.70% 397.50 T.50% 36581 

B, Salary Escalation Rate 

1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in salary escalation rate 6.97% 304,63 6,75% 363,35 

2. Effect due to 1.00% decrease in salary escalation rate «6.04% 346,78 «5.80% 320.26 

€. Withdrawal Rate 

1 Effect due to 50% increase in withdrawal rate -0.27% 36B.06 -0.15% 334,79 

1 Effect due to 50% decrease in withdrawal rate 0.30% 3017 0.15% 0TI 

0. Mortality Rate 

L. Effact due to 10% increase in mortality rate 0.03% 368.95 003% 023 

2. Effect due to 10% decrease in mortality rate 0.0d% 368,20 0.07% 340,35 

[H) Risk Exposure - Assat Volatility 

The plan liabilities are ealeulated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan asets underperfarm this yield, this will craate a deficit. Most of the plan 

assat imiestments s in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities 

These are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk derivatives to minimize risk to-an acceptable kavel. A portion of the funds are invested in 

equity securities and in alternative investrments % which have low cormelation with equity securitles. 

The equity securities are expected 1o earn a return in excess of the discount rate and conftribute to the plan defict, 

(] Actuarial assumptions 

Actuarial veluation as at the year-end was done in respect of the aforesald dafined benefit plans based on the following assumptions: 

I} General assumgtions 

= Discount rate (per anoum) 7.0 T-15% 

= Withdrawal rate 200 2000 

- Rate of increase in compensation B50% B.50% 

My Morality rates considered are as per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) Ultirmate. 

i) Leave encashment; Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year is encashed and balance leaves earned thereafter to the extent not availed by the employees are 

provided in the accounts. 

W) The discount rate should be based upan the market yebds available on Government bonds at the sccounting date with a térm that matches that of the labilities. 

¥} The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market expectation; at the beginning of the year, for returns over entire life of the related obligation. 

wi} The assumpticn of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, sensority, promotion, supply and demand and other relevant 

factors. 

wil) Liakility on account of long term sbsences has been actuarially valued as per Projected Unit Credit Method. 

viii} Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basis. 

{1} Defined benafit liabllity and employer contributions: 

i} Expacted contributions to post-empleyment benefit plans in next year Rs.256,53 lncs R 29967 laca 

i) The weighted sversge duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is a3 follows: 

17



Rs. in Lacs 

Pariod 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

1 Year 129,85 119.73 

2105 Years ‘BLSE 76.74 

6t 10 Years 110.22 109,55 

More Than 10 Years 421,95 3832.50 

Total T43.60 GEE.52 

34 Dischosure pursuant to ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” 

The company is operating rabndy In single segment Le.. Leather and leather products; hence no disclosure is required In terms of Ind A5 108. 

35 Expenditure on Research and Development 

Rs. In Lacs 

Farticulars 2023-24 20E2-23 

Rewenue Expenditura 2172 5.40 

Tatal in 5.40 | 

36 Dischosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases": 

[a} ‘Where the company i Lessor 

The company has nob entered into-any Lease armangements, 

(b} Where the company ks Lessea 

The company has rot entered into any Lease arrangements. 

37 Financial Instruments 

(I} Capital Management 
The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meating of long-term and short-term goals of the Company. 

The Company deterrnines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans, The 

funding requirements are met through eguity and athér long-termshort-term borrowings. The Company's pollcy 15 almed at combination of shorr-term and bong-term 

barrowings. 
The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. 

The capital structure of the company consists of debt, which includes the barrowings including temperary overdrawn balance | cash and cash equivalents including short 

term bank deposits, aquity comprising issued capital, reserves and non-controlling interests. The gearing ratio for the year is as under: 

[Rs. In Lakhs) 

|Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Debt T.EI6.04 6,816,432 

Lass: Cash and cash equivalent 

304,90 42170 

Met debt (A) 7.531.14 6,354.72 

Total equity (8] %,723.09 917598 

Debt Equity Raths (A/B) 077 0.70 

{ii} Categories of financial instrumants 

Calculation of Fair Values 

The fair values of the financial assets and labilities are defined as the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to transfer 3 lkability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fellowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of financlal Instruments: 

a) The fair values-of investment i quoted mvestment in eguity shares is based on the current bid price of respective investment as at the Balance Sheet date. 

b] Thee falr value of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be sgnificantly different from 

thesr carrying amounts as there is no significant change In the under-lying credit risk of the Companmy {since the date of inception of the loans). 

¢} The falr value of loans from Banks and ‘cther financial Indebtedness as well as other non current financlal llzbilities |5 estimatad by discounting future cash flows using 

rates-currehily available for debt or similar terms and remaining maturities. 

d] Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trede payables, and other financial habilities have Tabr values that approximate to thelr carrylng 

amounts dus 1o thelr short-term nature. 
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{Ra: In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023 

Carrylrg vahie Falr value Carmying value Fair wahie 

Financial Assets 

Financlal assets measured at fair value 

Imvestments measured at 

i. Fair value through other comprehensive income 16,17 17.326 

ii, Fair value through profit and boss 0.52 0.52 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

Trade Receiables 590521 4.722.13 

Cash and cash equivalents 304.90 A21TD 

Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents. 703,13 A4 B3 

Cther financial assets 68293 41178 

Total 7,596.17 1669 5.008.24 17.78 

Financial Lighilities 

Financial liabifities measured at amortized cost 

Borrawings T.857.23 + 6, BA0. 56 - 

Trade payables 3,038.06 = 348348 = 

Other financial labilities 93430 T1LE3 

Total 11,829.59 1103607 

{iil} Income, expenses, gains or losses on financial Instruments Rs. In Lacs 

Partioulass Faoar the year ended Far the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

Allowances for doubtful receivables [10.15] [17.50] 

Financial assets measured at fair value through Profitand Loss m.flill 10.29] 

Financlal assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income - - 

Falr value measurements recognized in the balance sheet: 

The fellowing taldle provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on 

tha degres to which the fair value i obsarvable. 
Level 1 fair value measuraments are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

-Level 2 failr valve measurements are these decived from inputs other than quoted prices inchided within Level 1 that are observabibe for the asset or liability, either 

directly {i.e. a5 prices] or indiractly :i.e. derived from prices). 

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that indlude nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data 

{unobservable inputs). 

{iw) Financial risk management objectives: 

The Company's principal financial liabitities comprise of Tnan from banks and financial stitutions, and trade payables. The main porpose of these finsncial liabilties i 

to radge finance for the Company’s operations. The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivabiles, cash and short term deposits, which arbse directly 

from its operaticns. 
The main risks arising from Company’s financial instrurnents are foreign currency risk, credit risk, market risk, interess rate risk and liquadity risk. The Board of Directors 

rewiew and agree policies for managing each of these risks, 

{a Cradit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to & fingncial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises 

principally from the Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the 

fimancial instruments covered below is restricted ta their respective carrying amaunt. 

Trade and Other receivables 

Customer credit |s managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policies, procedures and contral relating to custormer credit risk manzgement. 

Trade recelvables are nan-Interest bearing and are generally on 90 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on intemnal rating criteria, 

Cutstanding customer recefvables are regularly menitored, 

Thie Coempamy measures the axpected credit loss of wrade recelvables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment n which the entity 

operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. 

Expectad credit boss assessment for custormers: 

The company i making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss [ECL) model, The reconciliation of ECL is as follows; 

(R5. In Lakhs] 

Particulars. H023-24 2032-23 

Impalrment loss as per ECL recognlsed/[reversed) 10.15 17.50 

Additional Provision / write off 107.68 3793 
Amount debited to Prafit and Loss 117.83 45.43 

Other financial assets 

The Cormpany malntalns exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and dertvative contracts. 

The Campany held cash and cash equivalents of Rs, 30490 Lacs at March 31, 2024 {March 31, 2003: Rs. 421,70 Lacs). Cash and cash équivalents are held with reputablbe 

and credit-worthy banks. 
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Individual risk lmits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposores are 

actively monitored by the Management of the Company. 

Other than rade and other recefvables, the Company has no other financial sssets that are past due but not impaired 

{Ex) Macket risk: 
arket Risk is the risk that the fair vahe o futura cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 

types.of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. 

1) Foseign currency risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on-account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company is indian Rupee. Company's 

exposure is maindy denominated in USD, GBP and Euro, The exchange rates have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in 

the future. The Company has put in place 8 Financial Risk Management Policy to Identify the most effective and efficient ways of managing the ourrency risks. The 

Company uses dervative Instruments {malnky foreign exchange forward contracts) to mitigate the risk of changes in forelgn currency exchange rate. 

The Company do not use dertvative financial Instrumeants for trading or speculative purposss. 

(11} Irterest rate risk: 

Interast rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the 

Company's cash flows as well as costs, The Company also uses a mix of knterest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the lguidity and fund requirements for its 

day to day operations like short-term loans. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis: 
As at March 21, 2024 interest bearing financial Nability {secured loan from banks) stood at Rs. 7836.04 Lacs, was subject to varable interest rates, Increasefdecrease of 

50 basis paints n interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decrease/increase in profit before tay of Rs. 39.18 Lacs. 

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate. This caloration also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and 

has been calculated based on risk exposures cutstanding as at that date. - The period end balances are not necassarily representative of the average debt outstanding 

during the perhod. 

This analyses assumes that all other wariables, in particular forelgn currency rates, remaln constant. 

Fair value of financial instruments: _ 

All financial assets are inltially recognized at fair value of consideration paid. Subsequently, financial assets are carrbed at fair value or smortized cost less impalrment. 

Where non — derivative financial assets are carvied a1 fair value, gaing and losses on re- measurement are recognized directly in equity unless the financial assets have 

baen designated as being held at fair value through profit or loss, in which case the gaing and losses are recognized directly in the consclidated statement of profit and 

lass, Finandial assets are designated as being held at fair value through profit or lass when it is necessary to reduce measurement inconsistency for related assets and 

lkabilitias: All financial Mabllities other than derivatives are Initially recognized at fair value of consideration received net of transaction costs as appropriate (Initial cost) 

and subsequently carrled at amortized cost 

(1) Liquisiclity riske: 
The Company follows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficlent Bguidity at all times through a strategy of profitable grawth, efficient liquidity. at all times through a 

strategy of profitable growth, efficient working capital management as well as prudent capital expenditure. The Company has a overdraft facility with banks to suppart 

any temporary funding requirements. 

The Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that i generated from operations is sufficient to meet 

requirements. Accordingly, liquadity risk is perceived to be low, 

Liquidity table;. 
Liguidity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financial Babdlities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay is discosed at Note ne, 

LEN 

(V) Other price risk: 
The Company is not expased to any significant equity price risks arising from equity investmants, as on 3138 March 2024, Equity investments are hedd for strategic rather 

than trading purposes, The Company does not actively trade thess investments 

Vi) Equity price sensitivity analysis: 

There s no exposure to equity price risks as at the reporting date or as at the previous reporting date. 

38 Disclosure pursuant ta Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingsnt Usbilties and Contingent asssts™; 
The company has recognised contingent liabilities as disclosed in Mote 32 above and as such no provision is required to be made, No provision was outstanding as at the 

beginning and at the end of the year, 

39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 105 “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”: 

There are na such asset held for sake and discontinued operations a5 on March 31, 2024, 
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40 Disclosure of related parties/related party transactions/balances pursuant to lnd AS 24 "Related Party Désclosures” 

(a) Mame of Relavad Parties and nature of relationship 

I Jaint Ventures 

ii. Associstes with wham transactions were carried out during the year 

il My Mlana s P 
a} M. 

u} Hr, 
cf Mr, 

d} mir. 

e} Mr, 

T} Mr. 

el [KMP] & Relati 

Iftkharul Amin —tansging Director 

lighial AFan - Dirgctar 
Wequandl Amin- Mom Executive and Mon Independent Daectar 

Irmran Skddigal — Wheds time Direcior 

Arshac Khar — Whole time Director 
Padd imcan = Wala Teme Cirectar 

Wil 

Wil 

Eb Mr. B K. dwasthi - Compary Secretany 
hj MAF. Y5 Katiyas - Mon Eaacutive s inde pendent Diector 
i} Mir, Mubhashinal Amin [Son of Mr. igbal Ahsan) 

ik Mdr, Tarseesral Amin (Son of B Heikharul Amin| 

kj Br. Keibd Sayeed [Brather of Mr, imean Siddigu) 
Ip v Lsnairul Amie (S ol M, lgbal AFsang 

ey Mr, Ahenad Farag A |Scnoal e, kel Aming 

. Ovhers: Enterpriss aver which KMP or relatives of KMP are able 1o exercise significant influence: 

a} Amen Tannery Lid 

i} Armen Colonizers & Devlopsers Lid 
c} Banthar Industrial Poliution Comirol Company 

(8] (i) Discloswre of related party transactions during the year [in ordinary course of buss 

di Industrial Infrastructure Sarvices |11 Ltd 

) Bavini Fells LLP 

atarm lenghth price) Summany: 

Transactions Associntes 

As at [ for the year ended 

Other related parties 

As at | for the year ended 

KMP and Relatives 

As at [ for the yeor ended 

¥1.3.24 31.3.23 1.3.24 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.23 

Purchases of materials [ finished goods 281,24 5580 

Sale of materials / finished goods - - 134.66 158,79 - - 
Services (Job work] 0.09 024 - 

Donation 13,51 1170 - = 

Rent received - 0.7z .72 - - 

Remuneration/sitting fee . . 121.51 121,19 
Receivables (Met) - 11307 128.65 - 011 

Payables [Trade payable & other liabilities) 113,83 1033 20,94 E(e R £ 

Loans and Advances - - - 028 - - 

Investments refer Mote Ma, 3 

{ii) Detail of related party transactions during the year {in ordinary course of busi at arm kenghth price} 

Mame of related party B Transactions Assoclates Other related parties KMP and Relatives 
As at f for the year ended As ot/ for the year ended A at f for the year ended 

31.3.24 31.3.23 31324 31333 31.3.24 31.3.23 

Burchases of materials [ finished goods 
Aminm Tannery Lid 208.8R B3 - - 

Bavini Frills LL® 12.38 29.48 - - 

2H81.24 55.80 

Sale of materials [ finished geods 

Aumin Tannery Lid - 110.38 108.73 - - 

Bowvini Frills L8 24.28 .06 

- - 134.66 158.79 - - 

Services (Job Work) 

Asmiin Tannery Lid 0,09 .24 - - 

Industrial Infrastruciures Serdoes [Indsa) - - - 

0,05% 124 - = 

Donation 
Amin Wekfare Trust 13,51 11.70 . 

13.51 1170 - - 

Rent received 

Bowin Frills LLP - - 0.72 ;73 - - 

0.72 073 

Nama of relatad party & Transactions Assoclatas Other ralated partios KNP and Relatives 

31.3.24 31,323 31.3.24 31.3.23 313,24 31.3.23 

Commession paid 

MAr, Iftikharul Amin 2.00 - 

BAr. Igbal Ahsan 200 

Remuneration/sitting fee 

MAr. iftikharal Amin - - - - 4.0 24.00 

PAr. igbal Ahsan 24,00 24.00 

MAr. Imran Siddégue - - - - T.08 ¥.08 

MAr. Arshad Khan 4.33 4.18 

B, 8ahd Imean = - 3,54 3,89 

mAr. Mubashirul femin B = - 1835 1E.34 

pAr. shimad Faraz Amin B 5,84 

M, Tanveerul Amin = = = = 15.54 15.54 

fir. Khalid Sayeod 178 1.76 

MAr. Urmairul Amin - 13:55 13.54 

M B Awasthi 183 2B 

- - 17151 121249 
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[C) Qutstanding balances with related parties: 

i}y Receivables {Net} 

Amin Tannery Lid 

K. Mohd Imran 

Borvind Frilis LLP 

[ii) - Payables {Trade 

Bovwinl Frilts LLP 

Amin Tannesy Lbd 

Armin Welfara Trust 
e, Ieikharul Amin 

Wir. lqbai Alsan 

K, Imran Siddique 

Wér.firshad Ehan 

. Mubashirs Amin 

Wér.fhrnad Faraz Amin 

K. Tarmvesrul Amin 

e Khalid Sayeed 

e, Umnairul Armin 

Wir. R Aweasthi 

[iii] Loands and Advancas 

Ambn Walfare Trist 

able & other Habilities 

= = BE.16 85.65 3 = 

- - o1l 

= - 2301 43.00 3 = 

= = 113.07 128.65 = 011 

G.03 3 

- - 11E.E3 4.30 - - 

- - - - 1490 14.90 

= - - - 127 007 

- - - - 138 L4z 

= - - - .88 LR 

- - - - 15.44 745 

= - - - L16 1.09 

- - - - 2141 231 

= - - - 038 039 

- - - - 123 1326 

= - - - .43 054 

= = 11E.E3 10.33 39.98 30,83 

2 0.28 = 

= - - 0.8 3 = 

D] Ko amaunt kas been written off fback or provided as doubtful debs during the year in respect of related parties. 

€]l Key Managerial Persannel are entitled 1o post-=maloyrment benelits and other long Lerm employes benefils recognized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employes Bapedits’ in the inancial 

staternents. A5 these employes benefits are lump sum amaounts provided on the basic of sctuarial waluation, the same is not included sbove, 

A1 Remuneration bo Whole Time Direclors 

Particulass 2023-24 2022-23 

[a) Short Term Employes Benefits |Salay} 6131 61.31 

[b]  Commissien 1o Directoes A.00 - 

(€] Comribution to defined contribution plan (PF| 067 0.57 

Tatal B5.98 6154 

A2 Additionad Information pursuant to Schedule 01 to the Act for the year ended March 31, 2024 of enterprises consofidated as subsidiary and associates 

Mot Assets o total assets Share in Profit or [Loss) Lhare in Other Comprehensive | $hare in Total Comprehensive 

Mame of the company minus total liabilitics Incoma Income 

A5 % of Amount (Rs, As % of Amount A5 % of Amount Az ¥ of Amount 

consalidated InLags) | consolidated  (Rs. in Lacs) consolidated [R5 in Lacs) | consolidated  [Rs, in Lacs) 

nat assoats profit or loss athar total 

comprehansive comprahensive 

inrrme neomn 
Parent Company 
Super Tanrery Limited 103.58%, 10,127.45 100 963 590.76 100.00%, 1192 100.94% 602.68 

Subsidiaries - Foreign 
Super Tanrery |LLK.) Ltd. -3.62% 1353.49) -0.07% (0,40 - - -0.07% (040 

Peamesr livvestment Faoo i |a.0a) -0.68H 13.59] - -0.ETH 13.99] 

Super Hallla SRL 023 (22.583) -ZATH 114.44) - - -Z2.d2% [14.44] 

Subsidiaries - Domestic : 
Aasifi Tanners Lid 0.00% 037 0.20% 115 - - 0.1%% 1,15 

Secure Satety Ltd -0.26% (25.08) -0.07% (0.3 - -0.07% {0.39] 

Hx Landon Fashipns 0.00% |21} -0.03% 10,20 - -0.03% 10,20 

Super Corporation Limdted 0.01% .62 0,10% 0.5% - - 0.10% 0.59 

Tatal Subskdiaries 99.40% 9,723.03 7. 94% 573.08 100% 11.92 97.98% 58504 

Ron controlling interest i all the 

subisidiarias 1.56% 54,52 1.06% 12.04 - = 1.02% 12,04 

Tatal 100, 00% 9,777.55 100 585.12 !IHJK-I_ 11.92 1043 s597.04 

43 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A5 1 "Presentation of Financlal Siatements®, 

[a) Current liabilities expected 1o be settled within twelve months and after twelve months from the reperting date! 

Rs In Lacs 
Nota As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Parthcubars Ma, Within Afer Tatal Within After Total 

twilve twialve twialve twelve 

months manths manths months 
Borrowings T.751.24 175124 B 771,59 - 877159 

Trade and ather payables 3,646,54 3,546.54 3.554.86 - 3,554 86 

Other financial labilitles 95548 - 95549 736,17 - T36:17 

122 



sJPER TAMMERY LIMITED—b—4Ami0riAn1rc1i1-— . 

{b] Current assets expectad to be recoverad within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date: 
As in Lacs 

Note As at March 31, 2024 As st March 31, 2028 

Particulars Mo, Within After Total Within After Total 

twehe twalve twelve twehe 
manths manths f manths 

Imventories 5,663.40 : 5,663.40 191,67 - 6,191.67 
Trade Recelvable 5,905.21 590521 4,723 - 472213 
Orther Financial Adsets B8z.93 GE2.93 41178 & 41178 

Other Current Assets 1 B42.02 1,842 02 1 38710 = 1,387.10 

44, Additional Beguimory Infosmation 

Additional Regulatory infermation persuant to Cawse 681 of General instructlons for preparateon of Balance Sheat as ghven in Part | of Division |1 of Schedule 10 to the 

Companies Act, 2013, are plyen al respective place(s) to the extant relevant and are not of repeatative nature with no-additianal information, the same are diclosed 

appropeiately in stendalone financial tatements; 

45 Figuras of the previous year have been regrouped)rearranged wheraver required In order to make them compasable with those of current year, Figures have been ronnded off to the 

neargst rupees in lacs 

At per our attached report of even date Far and an bekall of the Board 

For Kapros Tandon & Co 

Chartergd Accountants 
Firm Registration Mo, 000952C 

Mohd. Imran 
Director (Finance) & CFO 

DIN-D0D3TE2T 

Iulkharul Amin 
Managing Directar 
DIN-D0037424 

Disyank Nigam 
Partnar 

M, b, 433443 

R K. Aowaathi 

Company Secretary 
Place: ¥angur 
Drate: 30.05.2024 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 
CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO0G4 21 

Regd. Office :187/170,Jajmau Kanpur-208010 

Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of Meeting Hall and also bring your copy of the enclosed 

Annual Report. 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
| hereby record my presence at the 40" Annual General Meeting of the company held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 

[ Regd. Folio No. DP ID* 

‘ No.of shares Client ID* 

‘ Name of the Share holder (in block letters) 

‘ Signature of the shareholder or proxy 

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 
CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO0G421 

Regd. Office 1187/170,Jajmau Kanpur-208010 

PROXY FORM / FORM NO:MGT-I 
{Pursuant to section105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

{Managemant and Administration) Rule 2014). 

e-mail Id: 
Name of the member(s): 

Folio No/* Client Id; 

Registered Address: 
“DP Id: 

I'We, being the member(s) of of shares of Super Tannery Limited, hereby appoint: 

1 _of having e-mail id or failing him 

2. of having e-mail id or failing him 

3 of having e-mail Id 

and whose signature(s) are appended below as mylour proxy to attend and vole (on a poll) for mefus and on my/ our behalf at the 

40" Annual General Meeting of the Company, o be held on Monday, September 30 2024 at 09.A.M. at 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur, 

208010 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
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** | wish my above Proxy to vole in the manner as indicated in the box below: 

Resolutions For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 
March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors. 

2 Declaration of Dividend. 

3.Re-appointment of Mr. Imran Siddiqui, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

4.Appointment of M/s Kapoor Tandon & Co (Registration No.000852C). as Auditors of the 
Company, and fix their remuneration. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS { Special /Ordinary Resolutions) 

5.Appointment of Dr. Mohd.|zhar as Non-Executive Independent Director not liable lo retire by 
rotation for a period of 5 years. 

6.Appointment of Ms.Kabita Rani Dhar, as Nen-Execulive Independent Director not liable to 
retire by rotation for a period of 5 years. 

7.Re-Appointment of Mr.Aftaly Ahmad, as Non-Executive Independent Director not liable to 
retire by rotation for a further period of 5§ years. 

8.Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the Compary. 

*Applicabla for investors holding shares in electronic form. 

Signed day of 2024 
pees 

Signature of Sharehalder Revenue 

Stamp 

Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder 

NOTE: 

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

AProxy need not be-a member of the Company. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding In the aggregate not more than 10% of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 

carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other parson of 
shareholder. 

Thisis only optional. Please puta'X in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the 'For’ or 
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vole in the manner as he/she thinks 

appropriate. 

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he sowishes. 

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated. 
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 
CiIN : L19131 UP 1984 PLC 006421 

Registered Office : 187/170, Jajmau Road, KANPUR - 208 010. 
Phone Mo, : 7522000370, 371, 372 Fax No. : 91-512-2460792 

Website : www.supertannery.com E-mail : share@supertannery.com 

BALLOT FORM 

1. Name and Registered address of the 
Sole/First named Shareholder 
{in block letters) 

2. Mame of the Joint Holders, if any 

3. Registered Folio No./DP ID No* 
(*Applicable to investors holding Shares in Demat Form) 

4. Number of Equity Shares held 

5. I/We hereby exercise my /Our Vote(s) in respect of the following resolutions to be passed at the 40th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 for the business stated in the 
notice dated 13" August, 2024 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the (X) at the 

appropriate box below. 

Resolutions No. Please mention No. of 

ORDINARY BUSINESS For Against | Abstain 

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors' thereon. 

2. Declaration of Dividend. 

3. Re-appointment of Mr, Imran Siddiqui, who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

4. Appointment of M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company Charlered Accountants 
Kanpur as Auditor of the Company and fix their remuneration. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: Special Resolution 

5, Appointment of Dr. Mohd.lzhar as Non-Executive Independent 
Director for a period of 5 years. 

6. Appointment of Ms. Kabita Rani Dhar as Non-Executive Independent 
Director for a period of 5 years. 

7.Re-Appointment of Mr.Aftab Ahmad , as non- Executive Independent 
Director for a further period of 5 years. 

8. Donation (Ordinary Resolution) to charitable and other funds not 
directly related to the business of the Company. 

Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form 

Place- Kanpur 
Date. 30.09.2024 Signature of Shareholder 
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MNote: 

1. This form should be completed and signed by the members. In case of Joint holding this form should be 
completed and signed (as per the specimen signature(s) registered with the Company) by the first named 
member and his absence, by the next namé member. Unsigned ballot form will be rejected. 

The Vote may be accorded by recording the assent in column'For'or dissent in column' AGAINST' by placing 
an X mark in the appropriate Column. 

In case of Shares held by Companies, Trust, Society, etc.the duly completed ballot Form should be 
accompanied by a certified copy of Board resolution. 

The Scrutinizers decislon of the validity of the ballot form shall be final. 

The Company is also offering e-voting facility as an alternate, for all the members to enable them to cast 

their vote electronically instead of dispatching physical ballot form. The detailed procedure of e-voting is sent 
to you along with notice of this Annual General Meeting. 

If a member has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote by physical ballot also and vice-versa. 
However, in case members cast their vote both via physical Ballot and e-voting then voting through e-voting 

shall prevail and voting done by physical ballot be treated as invalid. 

A member desiring to exercise vote by physical ballot may complete this ballot form and send it to the 

Scrutinizer Mr.K.N.Shridhar &Assocites 111&108, Chandralok Complex Birhana Road Kanpur 208001. 

Members may please note to bring copy of this ballot form to the meeting hall if they are coming to attend 
the Annual General Meeting personally. 
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BOOK POST 

If Undelivered, Please return to : 

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED 

187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208010 
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